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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

Property sector stabilizes in the second half of
2012.

During the first half of 2012, China’s property market was adversely
affected by government policies to control property prices.
However, in the second half of 2012, the market stabilized. The
Chinese government continues to insist that control measures will
remain on the property sector; however, given the slowing China
economy in the first half of 2012, the government made an effort to
boost the economy with policies such as increased infrastructure
spending and a new plan for urbanization that was released by
the 18th National Congress of the Communist Party. In addition,
interest rates have been cut twice and liquidity in the market has
improved. Economic growth in the mainland has stopped slowing,
with GDP stabilizing at a growth rate of 7.8% last year.

As a result, market sentiment for the property sector improved in
recent months and home buyers have shown increased interest
in acquiring properties. Property transaction volumes overall have
improved since June 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHES(H)

HKC’s property sales were in line with national
trends, with the Group now recording significant
contracted sales.

The Group’s property sales for the period were in line with the
market discussed above. In general, sales were slow in the first
few months of the year; however, momentum started to pick up in
the second half of the year. For 2012, contracted sales from our
property development projects in Tianjin, Jiangmen and Shenyang
reached RMB577.1 million. The amount is, relatively small
compared to other developers, as Shenyang project only launched
in the fourth quarter and only a portion of Jiangmen was available
for sale; but the contracted sales represented the first significant
amount for the Group as it makes the transition from a construction
group to a property development group.

Tianjin recorded contracted sales of RMB250.7 million. In
Jiangmen, HKC recorded RMB192.3 million in contracted sales
for its first phase. And although only launched in October 2012,
Shenyang recorded contracted sales of RMB134.1 million.

Most of these contracted sales were not recognized
as revenue for 2012, resulting in only moderate
profits for the Group.

Under Hong Kong accounting standards, contracted sales
can only be recognized as revenue at the time properties are
completed and handed over to buyers. As a result, only HK$25.7
million of the contracted sales were recognized in 2012, with the
Group recording a moderate gross profit of HK$12.2 million for the
year. As more residential property units are sold and handed over
to the buyers, the Group expects a larger amount of revenue and
gross profit to be recognized afterwards.

Expect the market to remain stable for 2013, a
conducive environment for the Group to continue
executing on its contracted sales.

With the Chinese government’s desire to stabilize growth through
increased infrastructure investments and urbanization, our belief
is that the PRC property market will also remain stable for 2013.
The central government’s restrictions have reduced investment
demand and speculation in the property market, but demand for
high quality housing remained strong. As a result, although sales
volumes have increased, prices have remained relatively stable. In
the Group’s projects in Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang demand
is clearly from end users, not from speculative investment demand.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHES(H)

Given this environment, the Group is targeting to achieve higher
contracted sales for 2013. Moreover, the Group will have more
property available for sale in 2013 as construction progresses.
In Tianjin, all ten towers of Tianjin Eka Garden have already
topped out. The Group expects higher sales in 2013 as project
construction nears completion. We also anticipate greater sales
of townhouses given the scarcity of supply in the city center area.
In Jiangmen, for the first half of 2013, the Group is planning to
focus on sales of higher margin townhouses. The Phase 2 units
will be available for sale in the second half of 2013. More high-rise
apartments and townhouses will be available for sale in Shenyang.

Alternative energy results were below expectation.
While the property sector shows evidence of a moderate recovery,
the Group’s investments in alternative energy were below
expectation. China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"),
the Group’s flatship for alternative energy recorded a HK$133.5
million impairment loss as Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”)
prices dropped sharply. The decline in CER prices were caused by
a weak world economy resulting in less industrial demand for CER
credits; the dropping out of Russia, Japan, and Canada from last
year's Doha Agreement; and an excess of CER credits produced
by numerous new alternative energy projects. A second major
problem is that the transmission grid remains underdeveloped. The
transmission grid was unable to take a significant percentage of the
power that the Group could have produced, resulting in a loss in
sales for CRE.

On the positive side, the increasing amount of pollution in China
is creating pressure on the Chinese government to provide more
financial and policy support to the alternative energy industry.

Given the current situation, CRE has made the decision to
moderate its expansion plans until there is more clarity on resolving
curtailment.

The Group will continue disposing non-core assets.
As part of the Group’s strategy to focus on the core property
development business, the Group disposed of its interests in
Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited in 2012. The net disposal
gain (after tax) was HK$137.4 million. For 2013, the Group will
continue to look for opportunities to dispose of its non-core assets,
with the goal of realizing profits and unlocking value from these
exercises.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHES(H)

Balance sheet remains strong.

The Group continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with a net
debt equity ratio of 2.4%. In 2012, the Group managed to arrange
bank financing for its development projects despite the tight market
liquidity and stringent government policies on bank financing to
property development projects. For 2013, the Group expects its
debt to rise as the Group will draw down bank facilities to match
with progress of the projects under construction. However, the
Group expects the net debt equity ratio to remain at a comfortable
level.

In 2012, the Group distributed and paid special dividends of a total
of HK3 cents per share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Financial Review

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$103.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$241.3 million). Basic earnings per share for the year amounted
to HKO0.9 cents per share, while basic earnings per share for 2011
was HK2.3 cents per share. For the year ended 31 December
2012, turnover amounted to HK$328.8 million, a decrease of 52.7%
compared to 2011, while gross profit for the year of HK$179.3
million represented a decrease of 43.1% over the gross profit of
HK$315.2 million reported in 2011, primarily because of a drop in
revenue from property sales.

However, the Group generated significant contracted sales in
2012. Most of the sales were not recognized in 2012, and will
only be recognized as turnover for accounting purposes at
the time properties are handed over to buyers. As the Group’s
development projects have all started construction in the past two
years, presales generated from these projects will be recognized
as revenue of the Group in the next few years as construction is
completed and the properties are handed over to the buyers.

During the year, the Group sold its interest in Yangpu Water Supply
Company Limited in Hainan for HK$254.6 million, resulting in a net
disposal gain (after tax) of HK$137.4 million.

While making significant progress on various projects under
development, the Group has successfully contained its operating
expenses for the year. General and administrative expenses
have been reduced. On the other hand, selling and distribution
expenses have increased to coincide with the increased property
sales activities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to maintain a strong financial position. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
HK$2,991.8 million, representing a reduction of 19.8% compared
with HK$3,730.9 million as at 31 December 2011. Total borrowings
as at 31 December 2012 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of
HK$80.3 million (2011: HK$253.4 million) and Renminbi borrowings
equivalent to HK$2,911.5 million (2011: HK$3,477.5 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
are mid to long term, with HK$899.7 million repayable within one
year or on demand, HK$936.8 million repayable within two to five
years, and HK$1,155.3 million repayable after five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWR D (&)

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had restricted cash of
HK$314.1 million (2011: HK$273.5 million) and unrestricted cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$2,317.9 million (2011:
HK$3,115.0 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the year.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum
financial structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance future investments.

Details of Charges in Group Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries had charged certain properties worth HK$3,989.0
million (2011: HK$4,506.1 million) as security for bank and other
loans.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings divided by
total equity, as at 31 December 2012 was 20.3%, compared with
26.1% as at 31 December 2011. The Group’s net debt ratio for the
same year end was 2.4%, compared with 2.4% as at 31 December
2011. This ratio represents total borrowings minus cash and
divided by total equity.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of a housing facility
fund for a property held in the PRC. Details are set out in Note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Business Risks

As a property developer in China, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing and other
execution risks.

Environment Policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable Group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels and heat pump technology where feasible.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

Business Review

Property Investment, Development and Management

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen; Guangzhou; Nanxun, Zhejiang; and Beijing, continued
to generate a steady stream of rental revenue for the Group during
the year.

Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District
of Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses and high rise units
totaling of gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 150,000
square meters. Construction of phase 1, which consists of 52 units
of townhouses, was completed. Construction for phases 2 and 3
began in 2011, and all ten towers have already topped out. Phase 2
units are expected to be completed by the end of 2013, and phase
3 units are planned for completion by the middle of 2014.
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Tianjin Eka Garden KEZEIREE

For the first half of 2012, pre-sales in Tianjin were relatively slow.
However, sales activities increased starting in July. For the full
year, the Group pre-sold 15,308 square meters of GFA, resulting in
contracted sales of RMB 250.7 million.

For the land bank of 804,000 square meters site area at Tuanbo
Lake in Tianjin, the Group is still waiting for the government
to process the controlling planning parameters for the area,
tentatively in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWR D (&)

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting of GFA
of approximately 189,000 square meters of townhouses and high
rise units. The project is located on an excellent site along a river
bank, within walking distance to the Jiangmen/Hong Kong ferry
terminal and an international school. The site is also close to the
Guangzhu Intercity Railway’s Waihai Station connecting Jiangmen
to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.

JLFY
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Jiangmen Eka Garden - Phase 1 ;T FIZEHATEE —H3

Construction of phase 1, which commenced in the third quarter of
2011, is expected to be completed by the third quarter of 2013.
For 2012, the Group pre-sold 29,551 square meters of properties
for its first phase, recording contracted sales of RMB192.3 million.
With the man-made lake and landscaping close to completion, and
showflats available for visit, the Group is now focusing on sales of
townhouse units. Phase 2 began construction in December 2012,
and presales are expected to launch in the third quarter of 2013.
Pending on Phase 2 sales results and general market conditions,
we are actively planning for the commencement of Phase 3,
possibly in the second half of 2013. Construction for all phases of
the project are expected to be completed by the second half of
2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWR D (&)

Shenyang

The Shenyang project, located in one of Shenyang’s prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in the city
center. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and C, consists
of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters of high rise
units, townhouses, and a small commercial space. Site B (GFA:
approximately 133,500 square meters) construction began at
the end of 2011, and completion is expected by stages starting
from the end of 2014 until the third quarter of 2015. Site C (GFA:
approximately 57,500 square meters), mainly for housing resettled
residents, is expected to be completed by the end of 2013.
There will also be a small commercial area as well as 12 units of
townhouses built on site C. The Group continues to work with the
local government to complete the relocation of the residents on site
A in 2013. Preparation for the development of site A, with GFA of
approximately 75,000 square meters, is underway.

Shenyang Eka Garden ;&[5 ZEH2TE E

The sales office and show flats were completed in August 2012,
and presales for Site B began in October 2012. During the ensuing
three months, the Group sold 10,683 square meters of GFA,
recording contract sales of RMB134.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Shanghai

The Shanghai commercial market remains stable. Despite
the uncertainties in the global economy and reduced growth
expectations in China, demand for prime office space remains
strong as multinational and domestic corporations continued
establishing or expanding their presence in Shanghai. According
to market research statistics, citywide prime office average rent
increased slightly in 2012, with availability around 10% at the end
of 2012. The Shanghai retail market continued to grow steadily,
with prime ground-floor average rent up about 6% in 2012 and
availability just below 10% at the end of 2012.
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Shanghai’s Sichuan North Road Lot 108 Project
/8m)IHEE& 108k E B

The Group has two commercial projects in Shanghai; both are in
the Hongkou District, an area that is benefitting from the improve
d infrastructure, including the completed International Cruise
Terminal, an underground road connecting to the Bund, new
tunnels linking Hongkou and Pudong, and new subway lines. At its
Sichuan North Road Lot 108 development, a GFA of approximately
161,000 square meters (a GFA of approximately 248,000 square
meters including basement) office and retail project, foundation
and piling work were completed by the end of 2012. Preparation
for basement construction is underway. The entire development
project is scheduled to be completed by 2016. For the North Bund,
a project in which the Group has a 25% interest, consists of GFA
of approximately 259,000 square meters (GFA of approximately
427,000 square meters including basement) of office, hotel, and
retail. The hotel tower now has already topped out and the main
tower has reached the 13th floor.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Nanxun

The project is a complex of three-storey buildings fully completed
as a trading centre for wooden floor, furniture and other building
materials. The GFA of Nanxun International Building Materials City
is approximately 180,000 square meters, in which approximately
83,000 square meters are offered for sales and the remaining GFA
of approximately 97,000 square meters are for lease. Given the
poor economy during the first half of the year, the sales and leasing
activities were slow. However, in the second half of the year, the
government announced that an older and competing market would
be closed down by mid 2013, which should result in the shift of
businesses in the old complex to the Group’s complex. As a result,
the Group expects an improvement both in terms of sales and lease
for 2013.

Beijing

The Group operates a GFA of approximately 17,100 square
meters retail complex at Legation Quarters, the former site of the
United States diplomatic compound in Beijing, which is situated
along the southeast corner of Tiananmen Square. The Group has
converted the compound into a high end retail shop, private club,
and restaurant complex. Operating results for the project have
improved significantly for the year as a result of higher occupancy
rates and improved tenancy mix. The compound is now close to
100% leased out. Efforts are continuing to enhance the return on
the project.

Alternative Energy

All of the Group’s alternative energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”).
Results were below expectation as CRE recorded a net loss.
Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) prices dropped sharply. As
a result, CRE recorded a provision of HK$133.5 million. Also, the
entire wind farm industry has been adversely affected by power
curtailment as the power grid was not able to take up all the
electricity produced by the windfarm operators. CRE was therefore
not able to sell all the electricity that it produced. Please refer to
CRE’s annual report for more details.

Infrastructure

As part of its plans to divest non-core assets, the Group sold its
water supply business in Hainan for HK$254.6 million, resulting in a
net disposal gain (after tax) of HK$137.4 million.

The Group has a Build-Operate-Transfer toll road project in Guilin,
which links up with China’'s Western Expressway. For the year,
traffic revenue increased by 27.4% to RMB35.3 million compared
to last year. However, the toll road is still operating at a loss given
high interest expense.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWR D (&)

Business Model

The Group is a PRC property developer focusing on investing
and developing property projects in Mainland China. We aim to
develop high quality products to create sustainable value for our
shareholders.

The Group has a diversified property development model with
investments in both residential projects for sale to end users; and
commercial projects for rental income. The residential projects
currently under development are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen, and
Shenyang. The Group’s commercial projects, which are primarily
involved in office buildings and retail, are located in prime business
areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance between
residential development for sale and commercial investment
properties for lease in order to create a sustainable model with
growth potential. Residential properties for sale generate higher
margins over the short term, and fast turnover, which enhances
return on equity. Investment properties for lease, on the other hand,
create steady recurring income and cash flow as well as long term
capital appreciation.

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given
the volatility of the property industry, HKC aims to maintain a
conservative net debt/equity ratio.

The Group has also made an investment in the alternative energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s need to
develop non polluting sources of energy.

Prospects and Strategy

Properties

2013 is expected to be a stable year for the PRC property industry.
The PRC government will continue to maintain its controls on the
sector in order to avoid sharp price increases. However, we believe
the government will be prudent and will not take measures that
will damage the market. It is end user demand, not speculative
investment demand that is currently supporting the market, and
prices have been relatively stable.

Having commenced development on all of its major property
projects, and with more GFA available for sale, the Group is poised
to benefit in 2013. For 2013, the Group will continue focusing
on presales of its residential properties in Tianjin, Jiangmen and
Shenyang. In Tianjin, the Group will continue selling its high
rise apartments. In addition, with landscaping now completed,
we expect to increase marketing efforts for the townhouses. In
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Jiangmen, the Group will focus on sales of townhouses during
the first half of 2013, and anticipates focusing on phase 2 high-
rise blocks in the second half of 2013. In Shenyang, sales activity
will increase as more high-rise blocks and townhouses become
available for sale.

All three projects mentioned above are the Group's first residential
projects developed in their respective cities. The Group is
gradually building up its “Eka Garden” name brand and reputation.

The existing development projects will contribute to the Group
turnover in 2013 and onwards. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
exploring to sell its non-core investments which no longer match
with the growth direction of the Group. Management believes these
sales will unlock the value of the Group’s assets and strengthen the
balance sheet so that the Group will focus on its core business of
property development.

With completion and successful sales of existing projects, we
have started looking for new investment opportunities. Areas in
the proximity of our existing projects are a particular focus for the
Group’s future growth. These potential investments can enhance
our position as a PRC property developer and can create long term
sustainable growth.

Alternative Energy
CRE is now an independent listed subsidiary of the Group,
dedicated to the alternative energy business.

Pollution is becoming an increasing problem in China, resulting
in widespread requests to the government to control the
problem. Because of such awareness, we do expect the Chinese
government to introduce more policies to help resolve some of the
problems in the renewable energy sector. On the other hand, CRE
believes that curtailment will remain an issue for 2013. As a result,
it has decided to moderate its expansion plans until there is more
clarity on the issue. Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more
information.

Employees

As of 31 December 2012, the Group employed approximately 560
employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China. All employees are remunerated according to the nature
of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s overall
performance and prevailing market conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Corporate Governance Practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices and its board of directors
(the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is essential to
safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees
and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions and certain recommended best practices set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices which was
amended as the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
effective on 1 April 2012, contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 December 2012, save for the deviations
with considered reasons as explained stated in the following
relevant paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December
2012 maintained a balanced board with strong independent
element. The Board currently comprises ten Directors with three
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses
expertise and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a
whole. In addition, the Company had maintained four Independent
Non-executive Directors which formed at least one-third of the full
Board. Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships,
where applicable, are set out in pages 36 to 41 of this Annual
Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
were exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the
Chairman and Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie is the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. Their responsibilities had been
clearly set out and approved by the Board. The Board considers
that this arrangement facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its operation.
The Board shall nevertheless review its structure from time to time
and will consider appropriate move to take should circumstances
so required. Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company, is
the father of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, Executive Director.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs
and formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing its
financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers to
the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing those
functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of the
Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions and
investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority of
the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or the
threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as defined
in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for the Board;
whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of reference of
the Executive Committee and those not specifically reserved for the
Board are delegated to the Executive Committee and management,
as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently. The management
provides monthly management accounts of the Group to the
Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest performance and
financial position.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his/her appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports as
appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors
All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort
to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
decision. Details of the role and function as well as a summary of
the work performed by the Nomination Committee are set out under
the heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

All Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose as
being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are subject to
retirement and re-election at the 2013 annual general meeting are
set out on page 45 of this Annual Report.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip joined the Company as a non-executive
director in November 1999 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2010. Mr. FAN
does not play any management role in the Group. The Board
considers that Mr. FAN has maintained an independent view in
relation to the Company'’s affair.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are available on both the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual Directors
at these meetings is set out in the table below:

BEEgw)
EESNEEZEEER
EETHETES  UHHRAATEERIRE

R-BRECKRIUZEERES  HPEEEX
ZEg REZBeNFMEZEE  UERAHK
EREER BERZES  REZBENFMHZ
EgBEaEE - SR ANDR R R A P Aagh o

FRCEFR  EREAR RE
ZRGRET TR SEFRLSE
WRBR TR :

Number of meetings attended/held

EBHEBITEEYE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEng Ezg ERZEE FHZEEE REZEE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric &Ik 7/7  2/2(Notefftzt) 2/2(NoteffizF)  1/1(Noteffi )
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RAUBILAE 6/7 1/2(Noteffizt) 2/2(Notefffzt) 1/1(Notelfizt)
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick BEREE 717 N/ATNE A N/AT i F N/AT @ F
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan HFERLTE 0/7 N/AZ i3 N/AZ 43 N/AZ 1 F
Ms. YEN Teresa BHREzL 517 N/AE A N/A i A N/A 3 F
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FEALEE 5/7 N/AT i A N/AT i F N/AT i
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BLBRE 717 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EBREELE 4[7 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BEMEE 717 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior mYHEE 717 2/2 2/2 1/1

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees (continued)
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman and/or
the CEO prior to the meeting

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date of the meeting.
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are complied
with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEO is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and ensure
their views are communicated and heard by the Board. During
the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Chairman
did not hold any formal meeting with Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present (as provided for in code provision A.2.7 of the CG
Code) due to the tight schedule of the Chairman and Non-executive
Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four
members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo,
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip,
all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by
comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment and
responsibilities of Directors. On 9 March 2012, the Board adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee with the operation model that the Remuneration
Committee has the responsibility, powers and discretion to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy and
structure of Directors including those retired and re-elected at
the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company and approve
the year-end bonus of the Executive Directors. No Director was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The attendance
records of each member at the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee are set out on page 20. Details of the Directors’
remuneration and the remuneration of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four members
namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert
Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom
are independent. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the year, and the attendance details of each member are set
out on page 20.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee
includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and sufficient number of independent directors to
maintain a balanced board; and

° making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time to
align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit
Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director,
comprises four members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr.
FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance is the
collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has delegated
the corporate governance functions to the members of Audit
Committee who are in an objective and independent position to
oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external auditor.
The attendance details of each member are set out on page 20.
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included reviewing interim and annual financial statements,
continuing connected transactions, internal audit reports on the
internal controls and risk management matters, the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
reviewing and recommending re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated executive
who is accountable to the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities, or activities
violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics or
otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and to ensure
protection from possible retaliation against any of our employees
who has reported concerns in good faith.
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Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the key
initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and oversee
the operating performance and financial position of the Group and
all strategic business units. The Committee comprises all Executive
Directors and senior executives of the Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units of
the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

Investment Committee

The Company has established an Investment Committee with
written terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired by
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, comprises four members namely Mr. OEIl Kang,
Eric, Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie, who are Executive Directors, and
Ms. YEN Teresa and Mr. WAN Ming Sun, who are Non-executive
Directors.

The objectives of the Investment Committee are to oversee the
Group’s investment transactions, including review of establishment
of investment benchmarks and review of investment performance
as well as to report and make recommendation to the Board in
relation to the foregoing matters.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of
the Company and other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-
to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and senior
executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of various business units of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operation
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERES (F)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries, the Company has obtained confirmation from all
Directors that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 74.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor
amounted to approximately HK$6.0 million and HK$2.1 million
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax advisory
services, corporate exercise professional fee, due diligence
services and corporate governance consultation.
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Directors’ Training

During the period between 1 April 2012 and 31 December
2012, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The training programmes included seminars and courses,
reviewed the updated laws, rules and regulations and materials
on topics relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities.
Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training record. The training received by each Director
is set out below:

=8|
RZE——FNWA—HBE=Z—=-F+=A
=t+—HHH 2BEFHELHEERLENE
FHARTEECHBESEEE - F)IRIEREH
B2 GRAE - mBIEmITARE AR KRN - ARE
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BESB 2R -  SESMEX 25)IH
UM

Training
A

Read materials Attend seminars
Name of Directors EENA B EM R HEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =R E v
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie R BIRAE 4 v
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick EREREE v
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan |mEREE 4
Ms. YEN Teresa BRELZT v v
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FEAL S AE 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIM FHTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BEBEAE v 4
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREELE v v
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo &R AN ST A v v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EIIALAE 4 4

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly encouraged
to enroll in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars regarding the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirement to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness, while management is charged
with the responsibility to design and implement the internal control
system to manage risks and compliance. The Group has in place
a framework of internal controls that is consistent with the COSO
(the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission) framework which has the following five components:

Control Environment

. Risk awareness and control consciousness are built into the culture of
the Group.

o RAKE®OEXCARERRBAREZEER

. Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and
high ethical standards to the staff are established.

o RUREREIEHEARAHBHERDERSBBIRT AR -
. Organisation structure, limits of authority and responsibility are set and
communicated to staff concerned.

o RUMAEIE  BALRRETHE  WEEMETERLAS

Risk Assessment

. Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Group’s objectives are conducted regularly,
forming the basis for determining control activities.

o EHHF  HMERIERVEAEEEREIEZEERE - #MERE
EEIEREE -

Control Activities

J

J

. Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

o HIEBEREF - BREEEZETEART -

. Control activities include authorisation, approval, performance review,
segregation of duties, asset security, access control,
documentation and records, etc.

o ENEDOERE B RERN  BEIS  EERE  FEUE
B X RS -

Information and Communication

J

. Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right
person in a timely manner.

o ERFEA - HERAEE ATRMERER -

. Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties
are established.

o EUAREMEIFIZ M REINEA L ZEREE

. Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected
improprieties.

o BESRTETARLEBRE -

J

Ongoing assessment of effectiveness of internal control system.
PRV ERBEIE R 2 AL -

Close supervision of management and designated executives.
EEFREETHABRTEY -

Internal audit activities to identify control weaknesses for timely
rectification.

o EBNEEDEBHAIEIRIE - WEEAE -

~
.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices
within the Group are transparent to all. The Group strives to
conduct all business affairs based on good business ethics and
accountability. We have in place a formal Code of Conduct &
Business Ethics that is communicated to all staff members. We aim
to build risk awareness and control responsibility into our culture
and regard them as the foundation of our internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. We
maintain an effective internal audit function, the Internal Control
and Risk Management (“ICRM”) Department, whose main features
include:

(i)  independence from operational management;

(i) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every
operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff; and

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant
risks or where significant changes have been made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans with
respect to each key risk identified are developed and implemented
with regular review and update, which include establishing or
enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Processes

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control system
through the following:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and objectives
on an annual basis.

An organisation structure with defined lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and evaluate
risks on an ongoing basis. Senior management reviews the
risk assessment process and monitors the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are maintained
with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions are
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the CEO, and carries out independent reviews on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Key audit findings and implementation progress
of internal control recommendations are regularly reported
to the Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline adopted in 2012.

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a certification
of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this review covers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness (continued)

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the control systems’
performance of the Group. External auditors also report on any
control issues identified in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least
once each year and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective and
adequate for the year ended 31 December 2012. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the operational, financial, and
compliance controls and risk management function of the Group
were identified.

Price-sensitive Information
With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing
Rules and statutory regulations with regard to the timely
and proper disclosure of price-sensitive information,
announcements and financial disclosures and authorises their
publication as and when required.

(iiy has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the
securities transactions of those employees who, because of
their positions, are likely to have access to confidential or
inside information.

(iii) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or committee
matters and to the Head of Legal on administrative matters. All
Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary for the ongoing discharge of their duties
and responsibilities. For the financial year ended 31 December
2012, the Company Secretary took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training organized by the Stock Exchange and various
professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated version
of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company at
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the
year, there was no alteration on the constitutional documents of the
Company.

General Meetings

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 1
June 2012 (the “2012 AGM”). The CEO chaired the 2012 AGM in
the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the Chairman’s
prior business engagement. The external auditor attended the
2012 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence. For the special general
meetings at which connected transactions were considered,
an Independent Non-executive Director was invited to chair the
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. In addition, independent financial advisers
were also available to answer questions from the shareholders of
the Company.
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General Meetings (continued)
The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2012 AGM  FTREJEGEER T —FREFAFAES LB
and special general meetings is set out in the table below:

BRERKE#)

REFRIREZHFELCHE

Number of meetings attended/held

(note)
HEBITERRE
(B &E)
Special
2012 AGM general meetings
—E--F =R
Name of Directors EEHE BRAFAE BRIRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =HIEE 11 1/3
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie R BLAE 1/1 3/3
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick BEHRELE 1/1 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan EHREE 0/1 0/3
Ms. YEN Teresa MaEHLt 0/ 0/3
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FRAL LA 0/1 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BLEBEE 1/1 0/3
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BEELE 0/ 0/3
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo EEASEE 1/1 3/3
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior mEVASLE 1/1 3/3
Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors Mt REA-F-—FUA-BREMZIEXREAR
are required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision SFAIZSFAMEXA6.7 » B IENITEERIE
A.6.7 of the CG Code effective from 1 April 2012. One special PTESALRRRAR - ARAR-F—Z
general meeting was held before 1 April 2012. All Independent Non- FMA—BHARTT —RBRRFBHAEG - AR
executive Directors and Non-executive Directors were encouraged ASBRBEIFNTEERIFNTERNR
to attend the general meetings to inter-face with shareholders of BRAE - NERARRRRES - RS
the Company but some of them were not in a position to attend the AREBINABRECRBRIFL 2 KB LIFRR
general meetings due to overseas commitment and pre-arranged HIEBRAE
business engagements.
Shareholders’ Rights SRR

Procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
convene a special general meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition (“Requisitionists”).

FRARARRBARREIAGEZEF

BEERE-NN—FRRVEF74HERR
RIERMAIESSHE FETLIR T2 —
RRRBERAZREEREBNESS
FARMERREZEEZH([2FA]) B
kEEEREFMATMNETERITRES
RIRE o
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Shareholders Rights (continued)

34

Procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
convene a special general meeting (continued)

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution for the Company’s reference and consideration,
signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the “Branch Share
Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene a special general meeting within two months after
the deposit of such requisition, and will serve sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all members of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move a
resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate a
statement of not more than one thousand words in relation to
business to be dealt with in any general meeting to members
of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the written
request must state the resolution (preferably accompanied by
a statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution), signed
by all the Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company and preferably with a copy of such request
sent to the head office of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South
Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not less than
one week in the case of any other requisition.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

ii. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings (continued)
The request will be verified by the Branch Share Registrars.
Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, and the Requisitionists have deposited
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving effect thereto, the Company will send the notice of
resolution or the statement to its members.

iii. Procedures for election of directors of the Company
The procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
www.hkcholdings.com.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of the
annual reports and interim reports of the Company are distributed
to its shareholders in accordance with statutory and regulatory
requirements and also to interested parties recorded in the
Company’s mailing lists. The publications of the Company,
including financial reports, circulars and announcements, are also
available on the Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended
the 2012 annual general meeting in the absence of the Chairman
of the Board due to the Chairman’s prior business engagement.
Other members of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant
Board Committees and the external auditor of the Company also
attended the annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer
questions from the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the following
ways:

Post:  9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax:  (852) 2722 6266
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREERE

Directors

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan
(Chairman and Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, aged 68, is the Chairman and an non-executive
director of the Company since April 2004. Mr. OEl was a graduate
of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing University
where he majored in Computational Mathematics. Involved in
Asia’s pulp and paper, finance, banking, property and agricultural
industries since 1974, Mr. OEI sits on the board of two listed
companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper Tbk. and PT.
Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father of Mr. OEI Kang,
Eric, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric
(Executive Director)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 42, is an executive director of the
Company since April 2004. Mr. OEI also holds several directorships
in other members of the Group and he is the chairman of the
Investment Committee and Executive Committee of the Company.
Mr. OEIl was educated in the USA and obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering), and
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his career,
Mr. OEl worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and PCCW in Hong
Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles,
USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the
Group. Mr. OEl is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
OEIl currently is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”), a subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie
(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie, aged 58, is an executive director
of the Company since 1 September 2010 and he has also been
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
the same date. Since 1 September 2010, Mr. CHANG has been
appointed as an Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of CRE.
Mr. CHANG also serves as a director of certain members of the
Group and a member of the Investment Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. CHANG was graduated from George Mason University in
U.S.A. He is a certified public accountant in the State of New York,
a member of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHANG started his career at US Office of KPMG (formerly
known as KPMG Peat Marwick) (the “Firm”) and became a partner
specializing in the financial services industry. He was also the
Firm’s director of Chinese Practice in the United States. He then
joined CITIC Pacific Ltd in 1994 and was an Executive Director and
the Deputy Managing Director of that company. He also served
as an alternate director on the board of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited. Both CITIC Pacific Ltd and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHANG is also an independent non-executive director of Pou
Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick
(Executive Director and Managing Director)

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick, aged 64, is the Managing Director
of the Company since June 2011. Mr. CHUNG also serves as a
director of certain members of the Group and a member of the
Executive Committee. Mr. CHUNG has a Master of Science degree
(Real Estate) from the University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (United Kingdom),
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (United
Kingdom) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Between 1975 to 1981, Mr. CHUNG was the Group Property
Manager and Special Projects Manager of United Estate Projects
Berhad of Malaysia (now UEP, Sime Darby Limited) which
developed a new town of over 700 hectares. In his professional
experiences, Mr. CHUNG had worked in leading public listed
companies in Hong Kong such as Hong Kong Electric Holdings
Limited (now known as Power Assets Holdings Limited) and CLP
Holdings Limited. Mr. CHUNG joined CITIC Pacific Limited in 1992
and was an executive director responsible for the company’s
property, environmental and infrastructure development in Hong
Kong and Shanghai. CITIC Pacific Limited is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was a founding director and/
or executive director of substantial developments such as the
Western Harbour Tunnel, the South East New Territories Land Fill
(Green Valley), the Festival Walk, Discovery Bay (a 640 hectares
new town), CITIC Tower. Mr. CHUNG is an independent non-
executive director of Vanke Property (Overseas) Limited (formerly
known as Winsor Properties Holdings Limited), a listed company in
Hong Kong.
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Ms. YEN Teresa
(Non-executive Director)

Ms. YEN Teresa, aged 43, is a non-executive director of the
Company since October 2007 and is a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Ms. YEN is a Senior Advisor to
Cerberus Asia Capital Management, LLC. (“Cerberus”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In her capacity as Senior
Advisor, Ms. YEN is responsible for advising the Cerberus group
on all of its investments in the Greater China region, including the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Moreover, Ms. YEN brings particular
expertise to real estate and real estate related transactions. Prior to
joining Cerberus, she was part of the KPMG real estate consulting
practice where she managed real estate consulting engagements
involving United States, Japan, Korea and Taiwan, and worked
extensively in the distressed debt market in Japan between
1999 and 2001. She also has corporate and real estate banking
background from her earlier career with Sumitomo Bank, Long-
Term Credit Bank of Japan and Heller Financial. Ms. YEN received
her undergraduate degree from University of California at Berkeley
and her master degree in business administration from University
of Southern California, Marshall School of Business. Ms. YEN is
an independent non-executive director of Yue Yuen Industrial
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. WAN Ming Sun
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. WAN Ming Sun, aged 39, is a non-executive director of the
Company since February 2008 and is a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. WAN holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics from lllinois Wesleyan University in U.S.A.
Mr. WAN is a Senior Equity Analyst for Penta Investment Advisers
Ltd. (“Penta”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
has over 15-year investment experience. Prior to joining Penta,
Mr. WAN worked for UBS AG, Hong Kong as a Director of Sales
Trading and was responsible for trading Asian equities and
generating investment ideas for clients. Asiamoney’s annual
poll named Mr. WAN The Best Regional Sales Trader in 20083.
Mr. WAN’s knowledge of the real estate sector is extensive.
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Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, aged 63, is a non-executive director
of the Company since November 1999 and re-designated as an
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2010. Mr. FAN
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s
Degree in Operations Research from Stanford University and a
Master’'s Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Mr. FAN is presently an independent non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited, Hysan
Development Company Limited and First Pacific Company Limited
(all companies listed on the Stock Exchange), an independent
director of Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange), Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co.
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
Goodman Group (a company listed on the Australia Securities
Exchange).

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years working with the
commercial department of a local law firm. He subsequently joined
the corporate finance department of Standard Chartered Asia Ltd.,
the investment banking arm of Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.
In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager of
Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China Strategic
Holdings Ltd in 1992.

In March 1999, he joined the Pacific Century Group as executive
director with responsibility for the group’s merger and acquisition
activities. Mr. CHUNG is currently the executive chairman of CSlI
Properties Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT Management
Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager of the HKT Trust).
Mr. CHUNG was a non-executive director of PCCW Limited.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a
Master of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and Finance
and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting. He is a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. His
career includes more than 20 years’ accounting and corporate
advisory services expertise in several listed companies in Hong
Kong. The co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm,
Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a certified public accountancy
practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an executive director of 21 Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of CSI
Properties Limited, South China Land Limited, Goldbond Group
Holdings Limited, C.P. Lotus Corporation, Chong Hing Bank
Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Imagi International Holdings
Limited and Top Spring International Holdings Limited, all being
Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 58, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company since September 2004.
Mr. DA ROSA holds both Bachelor’'s and Master’s Law Degrees
from the University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 1980. He currently is a practicing solicitor and a
partner of Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an Accredited Mediator with certain institutions in the
U.K. and Hong Kong.

He is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In the
past three years, Mr. DA ROSA had been a non-executive director
of eSun Holdings Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESrEREERE (&)

Mr. DA ROSA serves as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings) Panel, Tribunal Convenor of the Solicitors Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel, and Deputy Chairman of the Panel of the Board of
Review (Inland Revenue) respectively. He also served as member
of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission from February 2003 to March
2009.

Senior Management

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
(Project Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 47, is the Project Director of
Property Department of the Group since December 2010. He
also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and a member of Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE
holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity Surveying (Hong Kong
Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) degree with honours
(City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc degree in Construction
Management (Reading University, UK). He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor, a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years of project management
experience in property developments in Hong Kong and China.
Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE was the General Manager
(Property Projects) of the Property Department of CITIC Pacific
Limited.

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy
(Investor Relations Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 52, is a member of Executive
Committee and has been with the Group since 2007. He has been
instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is serving as a
Director of Investor Relations. He has also served as a former Chief
Financial Officer. Mr. WONG is a member of Executive Committee
for CRE.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’'s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from the Yale
School of Management. He started his career as an investment
banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where he was involved in
project finance. He moved to Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and
was involved in a variety of corporate finance activities, and was
involved in some of the first H share IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG
then worked in equity research at Societe Generale in Shanghai,
and later as head of China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong
Kong. Before joining HKC, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial
Officer for DVN Holdings Limited, where he was involved in fund
raising and introducing strategic investors to the company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESrEREERE (&)

Mr. YEUNG Ka Hong, Eric
(Business Development & Management Director)

Mr. YEUNG Ka Hong, Eric, aged 39, is the Business Development
and Management Director since he joined the Group in 2010. He
is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company and a
director of some subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. YEUNG holds a
Bachelor of Science in Surveying degree. He is a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and a Registered Professional Surveyor
(General Practice). Before joining the Group, Mr. YEUNG had
been working in the property department of a Hong Kong listed
company, a property development consultancy firm, and a real
estate investment company.

42 HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

BRERERF=thEx B=-F— Tiﬁ]ﬂ)\$
SELEXBARKEEAE B BRAEAR

HITZEEKE  IRNARERD Mﬂ%@ﬂ&lﬂ&
BEERTE - HEERARELCHER) B - %
7%%‘%“%%%%2@5 C REEREFINEMMES
EE  ZMEFUEM(EZNE) - EMAKR
SEAE BEEBTER—KEELTRARME
i —%i‘m?%"fﬁé%ﬁf‘ﬁ A E-FHERER

‘]j_” DKl
o



Report of the Directors
BEEEREE

The directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of HKC (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders of the Company their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment, alternative energy investment and operation and
infrastructure. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities are set out in pages 192 to 200 of the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2012 by geographical and business segments is set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 75.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 202 to 204.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against such
rights under the law of Bermuda.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Reserves #E

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the &R ARRNMAERZ FEESHFISHENGE
Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated B/ #=R&XMI7E34 °

financial statements.

Distributable Reserves A DIk E

At 31 December 2012, the distributable reserves of the Company WR-Z——F+-A=+—H AQRAIHDIK
available for distribution was HK$730.7 million (2011: HK$1,158.0  Z A5k # A730,700,000/8 0( —F——4F ©
million), calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of  1,158,000,000/87T) * N ERE—LN\—F

Bermuda (as amended). NRAVE(BIERT)FHE -
Five-year Financial Summary LFEUBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEEBERMMBFEZEEUREERAE
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 201. MEERHMNE201H -

Donations B

During the year, the Group made no charitable and other donation F R @ AEBEWEELES REMIBR(ZF
(2011: Nil). ——F |-

Directors =

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: FRAREBEEARREDH 2 EEMOT ¢
* OEI Tjie Goan (Chairman) * =5ER(EE)

#  OEl Kang, Eric # =M

#  CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Chief Executive Officer) #  RUFB(7TEAAE)

#  CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (Managing Director) #  EEREFLLE)

* YEN Teresa * ) # B

* WAN Ming Sun * FERIL

@ FAN Yan Hok, Philip @ SBIES

@ CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico @ @ERE

@ CHENG Yuk Wo @  #EA

@  Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior @ #Im|

# Executive Directors # WiTE=E

* Non-executive Directors * FEMITES

@ Independent Non-executive Directors @ BUIEMITES
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
Mr. WAN Ming Sun, Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip and Mr. Albert Thomas
DA ROSA, Junior will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors of
the Company.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers that all of them to
be independent.

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s fees
with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the Company,
and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to HK$100,000.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick has tendered a notice of retirement
as Executive Director and Managing Director of the Company and
other positions of the Group with effect from 1 July 2013.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes

Share Options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

46

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to recognise the
significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to the growth
of the Group or Invested Entities by rewarding them with
opportunities to obtain ownership interest in the Company
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success
and prosperity of the Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute
to the growth and development of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the HKC Option Scheme is 671,418,554 shares which
represent approximately 5.97% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue;

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of the Company (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in daily quotations sheet on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire
on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ExegEE@
Share Option Schemes (continued) MR 8l (m)
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE (&)
Movements of share options granted under the HKC Option FRREEFSEZRBERIETSRH ZBERER
Scheme during the year are as follows: ZEBET
Number of share options
EREYE
Adjustments on Exercise price
Outstanding at Adjustmentson 24 December Outstanding at per share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19 July 2012 2012 31 December (adjusted)
Name interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed (note 1) (note 1) 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS) (note 3)
R-%-2F  RZF-ZF
R=8-ZF tAthE tZAZtBE  R-E-CF BRTEE
-A-H Bitg/ k14 Z#E tZR=t-B (Bag)
% BatE HAE  CEE  BFE B&M (&) (1) HAGR REAH 8 (7 )(W33)
Directors
B2
OElKang, Eric  Personal 680,625 - - - 21,07 48,061 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
=t A ZEERETZATEA 14 December 2016

“ITHETCATRAE
ZE-AFTCATRA
1,134,375 - - - 35,119 80,102 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“EEAET-ATEE 14 December 2016
ZF5\F+ZATRAR
“I-AET-ATEA
363,000 - - - 11,238 25,632 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“%%/\§Zh-R 31 January 2018
“EENE-R-BEZ
Z5-\5-A=1-H
544,500 - - - 16,857 38,449 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZZF\EZR-A 31 January 2018
“3-%F-f-HZ

ZE-\F-f=1-H
907,500 - - - 28,095 64,081 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ZE\EZA-A 31 January 2018
“E——%-f-B%
ZE-N\F-A=1-H
Family 680,625 - - - 21,071 48,061 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Kk “EERET-ATER 14 December 2016

“55tF+-ATRAR
ZI-ETZATRA
1,134,375 - - - 35119 80,102 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“ETNET-ATRA 14 December 2016
ZER\E+ZAThAR
ZE-~E+ZATEA
363,000 - - - 1,238 25,632 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1,242
“ZE\EZA-A 31 January 2018
“EENF-F-RE
ZE-N\F-A=1-H
544,500 - - - 16,857 38,449 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
—%%/\§zh-R 31 January 2018

ZE-TECA-HE

ZZ-\F-A=t-H
907,500 - - - 28,095 64,081 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZZF\EZR-A 31 January 2018
ZF--FZR-EE
“2-\f-R=1-8
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EERREE(H)
Share Option Schemes (continued) BIRAEST &l ()
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE (&)
Number of share options
EREHE
Adjustments on Exercise price
Outstanding at Adjustmentson 24 December Outstanding at per share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19 July 2012 2012 31 December (adjusted)
Name interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed (note 1) (note 1) 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS) (note 3)
R-B-2F RZ%-zf
R=%-2f tATAE TIAZTEA  RZ%-ZF SRRE
-A-H Bitg/ kL] Z#% TZR=t-B (B9%)
% BEtE HATE  BRE B BN (&) (1) HATE RHEH 8 () (W3)
Directors
g2
CHANG LiHsien, Personal 6,000,000 - - - 185,758 423,682 6,609,440 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0.443
Leslie A “Z-ZE0A-R 31 August 2013
FUg “E-FAA-HE
ZE-ZE\f=1-H
9,000,000 - - - 278,637 635,523 9,914,160 1September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0443
“E-2505-R 31 August 2014
“F-ZFNA-HE
ZZ-RENAZT-R
16,000,000 - - - 464,396 1,059,205 16,523,601 1September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0443
“5-%E0F-H 31 August 2015 (note 2)
“5-ZENA-BE
“Z-RFN\A=T-A
iE2)
CHUNG Wai Sum, Personal 2,000,000 - - - 61,919 141,227 2,203,146 10 June 2011 10 June 201210 0327
Pairick A ZE-—55A1A 9 June 2014
#ER ZZ-CERATEE
“Z-MERARA
3,000,000 - - - 92879 211,841 3,304,720 10 June 2011 10 June 2013 to0 0.327
“E-—57A1A 9 June 2015 (note 2)
“E-CERATHEE
ZZ-RERANA
k7))
5,000,000 - - - 154,798 353,068 5,507,866 10 June 2011 10 June 2014 to 0327

ZE-—55A1A 9 June 2016 (note 2)
“E-MERATAR
ZE-~ERANA

(BrsE2)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ExegEE@
Share Option Schemes (continued) BREE (@)
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE (&)
Number of share options
BREYE
Adjustments on Exercise price
Outstanding at Adjustmentson 24 December Outstanding at per share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19 July 2012 2012 31 December (adjusted)
Name interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed (note 1) (note 1) 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS) (note 3)
R-2-2F  R-F-Z2F
RZB-ZF tATAB tZAZtRE  R-EF-Cf BRIEE
-A-8 Biif/ Pkt Z#% +ZR=+-8 (&7E)
i$] BatE WAGE CEE  BAR  B&R i) (k1) HAGR REAH 8 (7 )(H33)
Directors
FAN Yan Hok,  Personal 726,000 - - - 22,476 51,265 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Philip A “55\5-F-H 31 January 2018
e ZEENFZA-RE
“Z-\f-A=1-A
1,089,000 - - - 33,715 76,898 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“EEN\5ZF-R 31 January 2018
Z2-EE_f-HE
Z2-\f-A=1-8
1,815,000 - - - 56,191 128,163 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1o 1,242
“ZE\EZf-R 31 January 2018
“2—5-f-0F
ZZ-\§-A=t-A
CHUNG Cho Yee, Personal 726,000 - - - 22,476 51,265 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Mico A “EE\5-E-H 31 January 2018
T ZEENFZA-RE
“Z-\f-A=1-A
1,089,000 - - - 33,715 76,898 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“EEN\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
Z2-EE_f-HE
Z2-\f-A=+-8
1,815,000 - - - 56,191 128,163 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 201110 1,242
ZZF\EZf-A 31 January 2018
s b=
ZZ-\§-A=t-A
CHENG YukWo  Personal 726,000 - - - 22,476 51,265 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
gan A “Z5N\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“EENE-R-BZ
“Z-\f-A=+-A
1,089,000 - - - 33,715 76,898 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“EEN\52R-R 31 January 2018
Z2-EE_f-AE
Z2-\f-A=1-8
1,815,000 - - - 56,191 128,163 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 10 1,242
ZZF\EZf-A 31 January 2018
“2-5-f-0F
“3-\f-A=1-8
Albert Thomas DA Personal 726,000 - - - 22,476 51,265 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ROSA, Junior A “Z5\EZA-A 31 January 2018
B ZEENFZA-RE
“Z-\f-A=1-A
1,089,000 - - - 33,715 76,898 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“EEN\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“2-EE_f-BE
Z2-\f-A=1-8
1,815,000 - - - 56,191 128,163 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 10 1,242
“ZF\EZf-A 31 January 2018
i
ZZ-\§-A=t-A
Sub-Total /s 61,780,000 - - - 1,912,675 4,362,500 68,095,175
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued) R EL S (m)
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE (&)
Number of share options
BREYE
Adjustments on Exercise price
Outstanding at Adjustmentson 24 December Outstanding at per share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19 July 2012 2012 31 December (adjusted)
Name interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed (note) (note) 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS) (note 3)
i R )
Hog-=f tATAR tZESTRE  RoR-cf SEAER
-A-8 Bitg/ LB Z#E tZR=t-B _ (ERg)
1t EstE HAE  CEE  BFE B&M (&) (&) HAGR REAH 8 (7 ) (W&3)
Employees 6,413,000 - - (873222 198,539 393,027 6,131,344 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
and other ZZ5RE+ZATHE 14 December 2016
participants ZEStET-ATRAZ
BER ZR-RETZATEA
At2EAL
11,313,500 - - (1871,191) 350,254 670,718 10,463,281 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
ZESRFTZATRA 14 December 2016
“EE\ETZATRAE
ZT-RETZATRA
14,822,500 - - (3118652) 458,896 833,060 12,995,804 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1,066
ZZ5RE+ZATHE 14 December 2016
ZEENFTCATRAR
ZF-~ETZATEA
6,050,000 - - - 187,306 42112 6,664,518 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.726
“E5tECA=R 2 July 2017
ZERLETCATRAR
“E-tEtAZA
3,025,000 - - - 93,653 213,606 3,332,259 3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1.726
ZRRHELAZH 2 July 2017
“ER)\FT-ATREE
S o
3,025,000 - - - 93,653 213,606 3,332,259 3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1726
“E5tECA=R 2 July 2017
ZEENETCATRAR
“E-tEtAZA
15,730,000 - - (1342238) 457,016 1,016,756 15,861,534 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1,242
ZZE\EZf-A 31 January 2018
“EENE-R-RE
ZZ-\f-A=1-8
23,595,000 - - (2013357) 685,527 1525137 23,792,307 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.242
“2Z/\§ZhF-R 31 January 2018
“5-3F-R-RE
“T-\§-A=1-8
39,325,000 - - (3355,5%) 1,142,554 2,541,906 39,653,865 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZZE\EZf-A 31 January 2018
“E-—FZf-RE
ZZ-\f-A=1-8
Sub-total /P 123,299,000 - - (12.574,259) 3,667,398 783,028 122,007,171
Total @t 185,079,000 - - (12.574,255) 5,580,073 12,197,528 190,282,346
EHRER(EZER)BRAF 51
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of the Company (continued)

Notes:

Adjustments to the numbers of HKC shares underlying the
outstanding share options of HKC were made as a result of the issues
and allotments of scrip shares of the Company.

The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the
attainment of the performance target as determined by the Board.

In accordance with the HKC Option Scheme, the exercise prices of
the share options were adjusted from HK$1.174 per share, HK$1.901
per share, HK$1.368 per share, HK$0.488 per share and HK$0.360
per share to HK$1.139 per share, HK$1.844 per share, HK$1.327 per
share, HK$0.473 per share and HK$0.349 per share respectively as
a result of the issue and allotment of scrip shares by the Company on
19 July 2012.

In addition, the exercise prices of the share options were further
adjusted from HK$1.139 per share, HK$1.844 per share, HK$1.327
per share, HK$0.473 per share and HK$0.349 per share to HK$1.066
per share, HK$1.726 per share, HK$1.242 per share, HK$0.443 per
share and HK$0.327 per share respectively as a result of the issue
and allotment of scrip shares by the Company on 24 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012
under the HKC Option Scheme.

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the “CRE Option
Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE Option Scheme
are set out below:-

(a)

52

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human
resources that are valuable to the CRE Group or any entity
in which any member of the CRE Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to recognise
the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to the
growth of the CRE Group or Invested Entities by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in CRE
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success
and prosperity of the CRE Group or Invested Entities.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 69,153,475 shares which
represent approximately 2.93% of the issued share capital of
CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares
of CRE in issue;

(i) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1% of the
shares of CRE in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in
aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the board of
directors of CRE may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the board of directors of
CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

B RERHE ()
ARATMBLATZERE &)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)
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R -
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RIERE B RERET BT HEIT Y
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (continued)

(h)

()

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire
on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.

Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option

B RERHE ()
AN EI MR D B 2 R ()

(h)

()

EEERERBEEE
TEEAERLRATRSE @ (\ROHRE
A HIER RS A RERMAIIETE
(IR 1 BEER IR H B B AT T (B2 25 B AR
RS A RERIIFHURHE - (i)
fHHEE -

BT &
RIEFPEB AR RERETE ZI6EZ 0 B
ERTRIE - TRIPEBERRERE
SEIFHAI0F  BR_ZT—N\FHA
—+tBEm -

FAREHEBERRERET S SR ERE

Scheme during the year are as follows: ZEEFBOT
Number of share options
ERERA
Outstanding Exercise
Outstanding at price per
Nature of  at1 January Cancelled/ 31 December share
Names interest 2012 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
i 2 R-%-Zf BR
-A-8 Bi#/ t-A=t-A (i3
i BiltE WA BER B2hk B&M HATE HHAE s (B7)
Mr. CHANG Li Personal 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0570
Hsien, Leslie A S 31 August 2013
(Director) “2——%nA-R%
RUERH(EZ) ZE-ZEN\A=T-B
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0.570
“E-FEnA-A 31 August 2014
“T-ZENA-RE
“ET-MENA=T-R
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.570
“2-TENA-H 31 August 2015 (Note)
“T-CENA-RE
ZZ-RENA=T-A
(Hf3E)
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ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (continued)

B RERHE ()
ARATMBLATZERE &)

Number of share options
ERERE
Outstanding Exercise
Outstanding at price per
Nature of ~ at1 January Cancelled/ 31 December share
Names interest 2012 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2012 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
2 R=%-zf B
-A-8 Bi#/ t-A=t-A (i3
i3 ERitE HATR BEY Bk B4N HATE RHAE gL (Bx)
Mr. LEUNG Wing ~ Personal 550,000 - - - 550,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Sum, Samuel A ZE-FE-A2+B  19Janvary 2013
(Director of CRE) “2——%--fH%
PRR%E ZE-ZE-ATAER
(PEEEER
JEZ) 825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
TE-TE-ACFE 19 Janvary 2014
ZR-CE-C1HE
“Z-mE-ATAR
1,375,000 - - - 1,375,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
“5-FF-F-+H  19January 2015 (Note)
ZT-CE-fZTHE
ZE-nE-ATAR
(HfzE)
Dr. YUNG Pak Personal 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Keung, Bruce A ZE2-TE-AZTH 19 January 2013
(Ex-Director of “Z——f-f-tHZ
CRE, resigned ZE-=F-AThE
on 18 September
2012) 1,650,000 - - - 1,650,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
e “E-EF-AZFE 19 Janvary 2014
(PEEERE A ZE-CE-BCTHEE
EF ROFC “Z-RE-ATAE
ENAT)|BEH)
2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
“E-ZE-F-TH 19 January 2015 (Note)
ZT-CE-fZTHE
“2-RE-ATAH
(HzE)
Total &3t 13,250,000 - - - 13,250,000

Note: The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the
attainment of the performance target as determined by the board of
directors of CRE.

Mzt BREASEEPEBLARREFEMENR
B ERR T SRR RATE -

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012
under the CRE Option Scheme.

B EXHBEEN  REE-_Z——F+_A
—t+—BUFE  BECHBERERETPEBL
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company:

EENEBS 2 ER
NZZE—=—F+-A=+—0  SEEXELRQH
FETRABRARG S EEMAEREE(TE
REBESRAEGRI([#FHKBAEGD]))EXVE
- BRSO RESFTEEELRESF X
HE G0 3521648 17 B M & me fit 2 i 25 K%k
B R A R EERMz EmARRIM SRt FrEL -
MBEITAESHETESR S NEESTA([EZEST
Bl DR EBME AD R MBS BT 2 s Kok A i
B

(i) REDRARDREBROZHFR :

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of the

and underlying existing issued

shares of the share capital of

Name of Directors Nature of interest Company the Company

¥ NN EELRRE

87N 2BITRAE

BEEHA REmME HERGHE BHAES T

OEl Kang, Eric Personal fE A 34,429,607 ! 0.306%

=Ml Corporate A A 4,675,014,112 2 41.586%

Joint #£[d] 121,603,844 2 1.082%

Family Ik 3,998,705 4 0.036%

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal fiE A 33,047,201 ° 0.294%

RIUE Joint [ 17,500,000 ¢ 0.156%

CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick Personal fEl A 15,115,732 7 0.134%
BER

FAN Yan Hok, Philip Personal fEE A 3,998,708 & 0.036%
DX

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Personal fEl A 3,998,708 ° 0.036%
ERE

CHENG Yuk Wo Personal fE A 3,998,708 1° 0.036%
LR AN

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Personal fEl A 3,998,708 " 0.036%
IR ]
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of associated corporation of the Company:

EENE

%o ()

(i) REQXBEBEEROGREBRSD 2
"R

Number of shares
and underlying
shares of the

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
share capital of

Name of associated Nature of associated the associated

corporation Name of Directors interest corporation corporation

HEEE gL

ZBRHBR BECRITRE

HEEE AR EBEHE ERtE HERGHE Nl

China Renewable Energy OEl Kang, Eric Corporate A 7] 1,836,550,369 " 77.940%

Investment Limited (“CRE”) =1l Personal f&A 2,175,086 0.092%

PEBLERERRERRAR Joint #F 24,724,353 1.049%
(THEBEsR])

CRE CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie  Personal f&A 5,000,000 18 0.212%

FEIB AR RIUE Joint 570,000 ¢ 0.024%

CRE CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick Personal f& A 205,200 "7 0.009%

B HAGER EER

Notes: ks

1. The personal interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an 1. = Ml 45 A& 2 {6 A %5 45 30,430,902 i 72X
interest in 30,430,902 shares of the Company and an interest in AR AR R E X[ EREE
3,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by —HATRHMA AR IR EREEE
the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section 3,998,705/ HEA AR D #E & -
above.

2. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents 2. HZRAEz AR EEEREEEEAR
an interest in 1,691,419,708 shares of the Company held AaEl([&lEF])#HH 21,691,419,708 %
by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and an interest in RATROEZEHEAEBRFR AT
2,983,594,404 shares of the Company held by Genesis Capital (TZEAl ) 8 22,983,594,404 f& 7R
Group Limited (“Genesis”). Both Creator and Genesis are AR {D#E# - Claudio Holdings Limited
wholly-owned by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a (IClaudio]) 2B BRI ZERER -
company owned as to 50% by Mr. OEI Kang, Eric and as to the ClaudioZz 50% Emm=MITEHE R - A
remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau. BE0%EmME s ZFRBL LA -

3. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 3. EREE HEESERFHEEZTFIE
121,603,844 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, L+ HREHAZ2121,603,844 8% & A A%
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau. D2 RE o

4. The family interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an interest 4. EM St 7 Rkt igE X (AR

in 3,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau, wife of Mr. OEI Kang,
Eric, as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

B —EHRA DR AEREEZETF
BB LR BREER 23,998,705
B AR () # 2 -

ERERRER)ERAT
—E-_FFR
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

58

5.

10.

11.

12.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents
an interest in 33,047,201 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 17,500,000 shares of the Company jointly held with
his wife, Ms. WU Tung.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick
represents an interest in 4,100,000 shares of the Company
and an interest in 11,015,732 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip represents
an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico represents
an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo represents an
interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
represents an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect
of options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

Since as at 31 December 2012, the Company was held as
to approximately 41.59% by Claudio (via its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company owned as to
50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of shares of CRE in which the
Company is interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric represents (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares held by
the Company in CRE; (ii) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of
CRE held by Genesis; (iii) an interest in 149,358,990 shares of
CRE held by Creator; and (iv) an interest in a 6.4% convertible
note issued by CRE to the Company with a principal amount
of RMB75,000,000 carrying rights to convert into 135,584,558
ordinary shares in CRE at the conversion price of HK$0.68 per
share, subject to adjustment.
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2 REIRERZENARARRFBIE AR
TR B 1,275,540,924 % B D S ¢ (i)
FEAIFT3 A 276,065,897 A% B 5 A BEIR
BEp#EZS ¢ (i) BV ATH5 A 149,358,990
P BB AR MR - R(iv)EFRE
BEERARQARBITASEAARE
75,000,0007T 2 6.4E AR EHEFE 2
2 AR H R ESR0.68 T (Al T
) 34 5 135,584, 558 % R B FF A 4L TR
LR o



Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

associated corporation of the Company: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

13.  The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 2,175,086 shares of CRE.

14.  The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 24,724,353 shares of CRE jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau.

15.  The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents
an interest in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by CRE as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section
above.

16. The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 570,000 shares of CRE jointly held with his wife, Ms.
WU Tung.

17. The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick
represents an interest in 205,200 shares of CRE.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar Mas,
a company together with its subsidiaries, associates, including
Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd., and its holding companies (if
any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are engaged in, among other things,
general trading and property development and investment. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is not interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Mr. OEI Kang, Eric,
a member of the Oei Family and the son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan,
does not hold any directorship in the Sinar Mas Group. Having
considered that the Company itself has its own management
supervising the daily operation and making financial and business
decisions, the Company can operate its business independently
from the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie are the
executive directors of CRE whose principal business activities are
alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective
associate(s) was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of
Directors and “Related Party Transactions” in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

FERRNEBS 2R
R-B——F+-A=+—B UTAL(EE
RAATEBTRABBRINRARTZRG R
B % 155 336 14
BEFEME M BESAR -

HERO P EEERLR

RELXTARGREERG 2FR

Number of shares
and underlying

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued

shares of share capital of

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest the Company the Company

AATE HRARRE

B R ERITRAE

BEREE BB ERME HERGEE BABEDL

OEIl Valonia Lau Personal fiE A 3,998,705 1 0.036%

= Corporate A @) 4,675,014,112 2 41.586%

Joint ££[A] 121,603,844 3 1.082%

Family =X ik 34,429,607 4 0.306%

Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Em#E A A 4,675,014,112 5 41.586%

Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner E#=HEA A 2,983,594,404 © 26.540%
ZRIREBRAT

Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner EzE#EA A 1,691,419,708 7 15.046%
BliESEARAF]

Cerberus Institutional Associates, Corporate 2 7] 1,565,348,316 ¢ 13.924%

L.L.C.
Promontoria Europe Investments Corporate 2 7] 1,665,348,316 13.924%
Xl LDC

Promontoria Holding Cooperatie U.A. Corporate ‘X 7] 1,565,348,316 13.924%

Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. Beneficial owner Ez5#EA A 1,565,348,316 13.924%

Stephen A. FEINBERG Corporate 2 7] 1,5665,348,316 13.924%

Penta Investment Advisers Limited Investment Manager 1% & &£ 32 785,894,865 ° 6.991%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company (continued)
Notes:

The personal interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 3,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company to her.

The corporate interest of Mrs. OE| Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 1,691,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator and an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis.

The joint interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest in
121,603,844 shares of HKC jointly held with her husband, Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric.

The family interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest in
30,430,902 shares of HKC held by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and an interest
in 3,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by HKC
to Mr. OEI Kang, Eric as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section
above.

The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis and an interest in
1,691,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator. Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau are directors of Claudio.

The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEI
Valonia Lau are directors of Genesis.

The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
1,691,419,708 shares of HKC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau are directors of Creator.

An interest in 1,565,348,316 shares held by certain funds affiliated
with and managed on a discretionary basis by Cerberus.

The investment manager interest of Penta Investment Advisers
Limited includes an interest in 785,894,865 shares held by certain
funds of Penta which are managed by Penta on a discretionary basis.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

62

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

FTERRNESR 2D #)
REDATRGRAEABRG 2178 (&)

Bt

1. BEL T Z7AARZEARARAR TR ZER
AR 23,998, 705X HERARLID ©

2. AEstz rAFERAESFE 2
1,691,419, 708 R BB ER KD 2 = R HEES]
522,983,594, 4048 BB RN 2 S o

3. BErtz HAESEERK 2 IREM LA
A3 4E 2121,603,844FE B E RN 2 o

4. BEL T 2REEEERENLEERERN
30,430,902 R BB ZJM N < = - A RE E
X [BERETS Sl E st R =Rk
ERT R BB E A R 23,998,705 AE R AR 1D 2
WS o

5. Clavdiox EmEm R ERBEEAR B 2
2,983,594,404 R BB RN 2 - AKRA
BIERB 21,691,419, 708 F B R AL 2 #E
o mHlkAERBIZEZ LT AClaudior ES ©

6. FEH 2 BEREEZBIEN2,983,594, 404 EHE
BRGHZER  EMEERBELTAERZ
£E-

7. BIEZESEREIEN,691,419, 708 EE 2
BB 2 - BN EERIB LT REEY
Bx-

8. fiCerberus® T E & (B Cerberusi B I (g H
2L )IFAE 21,565,348,316 A 1D 2 s o

9. Penta Investment Advisers Limited Z 1% & £ 3#
B mPentas THEE (HPenta2 EER)
578 2785,894 865 XD 2 #E2E ©

BEXHWBEEN R TE——F+_A=+—
B ARQAREFAMEBETMAL(ARREER
FBITRABBRIN RARRZ D RAEBERKRD
PR SRR ES RS KO EXVEPE 336157
ERENBCMZERSAR -



Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Related Party Transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain transactions
in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms
which were “Related Parties Transactions”, the details of which are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements. Some of
these transactions also constitute “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under the Listing Rules as
summarized below.

Connected Transactions
Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out below:

()

Disposal of Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited
On 22 May 2012, the Board announced that HKC
Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a Framework Agreement
with, amongst others, Hainan Jinhai Trading (Hong Kong)
Company Limited to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of, and the loan advanced to, Treasure Island
Investment Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HKC Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited at an aggregate
consideration of HK$254,610,000 (the “Disposal”).

Treasure Island Investment Holdings Limited held the entire
issued share capital of HKC (Yangpu) Water Supply Limited,
which in turn is the owner of 65% of the entire equity interest
of and in JFHEMKEREMTRA (Yangpu Water Supply
Company Limited). The principal business of Yangpu Water
Supply Company Limited is management and maintenance of
raw water supply facilities in Yangpu Economic Development
Zone and provision of raw water supply services to the
Yangpu Economic Development Zone.

Hainan Jinhai Trading (Hong Kong) Company Limited, being
a company indirectly controlled by the Oei family, including
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan (the Chairman and Non-executive Director
of the Company) and OEI Kang, Eric (Executive Director of the
Company), is accordingly an associate of connected persons
of the Company, and the Disposal constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Disposal was duly approved by independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 19 June 2012. Details of the Disposal
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 1 June
2012.

The Disposal enabled the Group to realize a significant
gain from its investment in Yangpu Water Supply Company
Limited and was in line with the Group’s strategy of disposing
non-core assets. The Company no longer held any equity
interest in Treasure Island Investment Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries upon completion of the Disposal on 21 June
2012.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
(ii) Subscription Agreement with CRE for the issue of

64

the CRE Convertible Note (2012)

On 2 November 2012, the Company and CRE entered
into a subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”)
pursuant to which CRE agreed to issue to the Company
a convertible note in principal amount of RMB75 million
at an issue price equal to its principal amount, raising a
total of about HK$92.20 million (before expenses) for CRE
(the “CRE Convertible Note (2012)”). The CRE Convertible
Note (2012) bears interest on its outstanding principal
amount at 6.40% per annum until its maturity date falling
on the third anniversary of its issue date. CRE will redeem
the CRE Convertible Note (2012) on its maturity date at its
principal amount outstanding together with accrued and
unpaid interests. The CRE Convertible Note (2012) will be
convertible into fully paid-up CRE shares at HK$0.68 per
share of CRE (subject to adjustment). As CRE is a subsidiary
of the Company, the purpose of the subscription of the CRE
Convertible Note (2012) was to provide financial assistance to
CRE as a member of the Group.

The Company is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of CRE. As at the date of the Subscription Agreement,
the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiaries had
indirect interests in about 54.13% of the issued CRE Shares.
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is an executive director of the Company
and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of CRE and
his associates had interests in an aggregate of about 42.42%
shareholdings in the Company. Apart from the indirect
interests in CRE held through the Company’s shareholdings
of about 54.13%, Mr. OEI Kang, Eric and his associates (other
than HKC Group) also had interests in about 19.20% of the
issued CRE Shares. Accordingly, CRE is a connected person
of the Company and the subscription of the CRE Convertible
Note (2012) and acquisition of CRE Conversion Shares both
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For the purpose of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the connected transactions were
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but were exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirements. Details of the connected transactions were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2012.

On 18 December 2012, the subscription agreement
completed and the CRE Convertible Note (2012) was issued
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

()

(i)

Yangpu Water Supply Agreement

On 8 December 2011, Yangpu Water Supply Company
Limited (held as to 65% indirectly by the Company) entered
into a supplemental agreement with Jinhai Paper Pulping
Industrial Company Limited (“Jinhai”) for, among others,
extending the term of the water supply agreement dated
13 January 2004 (which was amended and supplemented
on 23 November 2005, 25 April 2006 and 12 January 2009
respectively) for a further period from 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2014. Jinhai is an associate of a connected
person of the Company by virtue of being indirectly
controlled by the Oei family, which is in turn a connected
person of the Company. The provision of water supply
services contemplated under the water supply agreement
and the supplemental agreement constitute a non-exempt
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and
if subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.35 of
the Listing Rule. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group received a revenue of HK$16.4 million for provision of
the water supply services to Jinhai.

On 21 June 2012, the Group ceased its interests in the
Yangpu water supply agreement and the supplemental
agreement upon completion of the Disposal as detailed in
paragraph (i) of the “Connected Transactions” section.

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its wholly-
owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in respect of project
loan facilities granted by banks to the relevant project
companies, which are subsidiaries of CRE (the “Guarantees”).
CRE is a subsidiary of the Company and Mr. OEI Kang, Eric
(Executive Director) and his associates held approximately
19.20% direct interest in CRE as at 31 December 2012. The
provision of the Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual
review and disclosure requirement under Rule 14A.41 of the
Listing Rules. Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2011.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BERERS #)
(ii) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) (i) MPBEBERRZHEQARERERK
(%)

ERzZEZFEBHEIIWT

The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out below:
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(1) Date . 28 August 2006 (1) A  ZEEREF
NBEZF+N\H
Project company DMENEE(HLI)BERAF (Asia BERE  DMESBE(HMAT)
(borrower) Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company (7)) ERRE - BRAAF
Limited), which is currently a non- BERRZEZENE
wholly owned subsidiary of CRE. NS
Amount secured : The Guarantee provided for this EReE  MLBEEARIMELZ
project company was given in favour ERDUBTAEY &
of the bank to secure repayment of A HBREZEFFE
all monies due from the operating ETERBITEKEE
company to the lending bank under REIZMERE 25
the loan facility, including the ERBMEBTAE
principals, interests accrued and other AMEREMER 18
losses, damages and monies payable KRERFHE -
under the loan facility.
The loan in the sum of RMB200 million REBELERER Z
(approximately HK$248.8 million) ERBEARARK
was originally granted and utilized. 200,000,000 7T ( £
The loan was a term loan and carried 248,800,000 & 7T ) ©
interest at such annual rate as agreed ERATHEN kR
with lending bank, determined by ERBETHRELBEF
reference to PBOC Benchmark FIREFE  K2EHE
Rate for loans of the same grade ARBAIRERER K
and tenure. The interest rate will be FHBERZEERE
adjusted annually on each anniversary EE - RBEMER
of the related advancement (and, in B MESRERBEA
relation to an extended term agreed RRTEREUZEE
by lending bank, on each anniversary FlE  REBEH2E
of the date falling immediately after —AEE A (ERERR
the original maturity date) based on AHEZEREE 2
the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in ERINBRE2E—R
effect as prescribed in the facility FER)REHE -
agreement.
As at 31 December 2012, the total E@:g— iﬂ‘i
outstanding principal was RMB138 =+t—H KEE
million (approximately HK$171.6 PN @% AARE
million) and the extent of the 138,000,000 7T ( #
Guarantee was for the same amount. 171,600,000 7T ) + ¥
REB|IEHER -
Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments BEXAE  RBEREAT  EXN
maturity dates of  scheduled over the term of the loan ZER BA‘% TEN D BEE -
loan facility as provided in the facility agreement, REE mEINHERA-T=—-—
with the final maturity date falling on 30 H ﬁ)\ﬂf‘l‘El °
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(ii) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

(2) Date

Project company

(borrower)

Amount secured

. 3 March 2006

CEARNEE(BE)BR2AG (Hong

Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company
Limited), which is currently a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.

. The Guarantee provided for this

project company was given in favour
of the bank to secure repayment of
all monies due from the operating
company to the bank under the loan
facility, including the principals,
interests accrued and losses,
damages and other monies payable
under the loan facility.

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million
(approximately HK$248.8 million)
was originally granted and utilized.
The loan was a term loan and carried
interest, settled quarterly, at such
annual rate as agreed with lending
bank, determined by reference to
PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the
same grade and tenure. The interest
rate will be adjusted annually on each
anniversary of the date of related
advancement (and, in relation to an
extended term agreed by lending
bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original
maturity date) based on the PBOC
Benchmark Rate then in effect, as
prescribed in the facility agreement.

As at 31 December 2012, the total
outstanding principal was RMB138
million (approximately HK$171.6
million); and the extent of the
Guarantee was for the same amount.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BERERS #)
(ii) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) (i) MPBEBERRZHEQARERERK
(#&)
Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments BEREE  RER Hﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁz’f
maturity dates of ~ scheduled over the term of the loan ZZ@M HE  BERREFHEA
loan facility as provided in the facility agreement REE 5 H T,a B &I E
over the term of the loan, with the final = RE-_ZT-_—F-H
maturity date falling on 27 February —++tH-
2021.
(38) Date : 22 December 2008 (3) A CZEENF
+ZA=+Z=H
Project company CBEFERNTIEREER QA HERE  AEMERNTFIER
(borrower) (Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi (7)) #BERRF - BAIAT
Wind Power Ltd.), which is currently a BBERRc2EWEB
wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE. NS
Amount secured : The Guarantee provided for this EREE - MULEBEARMELZ
project company was given in favour ERDUBETAX R
of the bank to secure repayment of A BREZEERHE
all monies due from the operating BETERRTEREE
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company to the bank under the loan
facility, including the principals,
interests accrued and other losses,
damages and monies payable under
the loan facility.

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million
(approximately HK$373.1 million)
was originally granted and utilized.
The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed
with lending bank, determined by
reference to PBOC Benchmark
Rate for loans of the same grade
and tenure. The interest rate will be
adjusted annually on each anniversary
of the date of related advancement
based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate
then in effect, as prescribed in the
facility agreement.

RRAIZFMERE  BE
EXBBBTAS &
AREREMER B
KRBT -

300,000,00 T
373,100,000 % n:) o
ERATHEN ke
BRROTHBEZEBE

MZEE - g2EH
ARBITHRBERFRE R

FHIZERZEENE
BT - RBBWZAMA
B\ FREREPEA
RBOTERERIEE
ME - REBRRZE
—BAFERRFHE -



Report of the Directors (continued)

EESREE(H)
Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BERERS #)
(ii) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) (i) MPBEBERRZHEQARERERK
(#&)
As at 31 December 2012, the total RZZE——F+_-A
outstanding principal was RMB225 —t—-H XEE
million (approximately HK$279.9 FeBEABARK
million); and the extent of the 225,000,000 T ( #
Guarantee was for the same amount. 279,900,000/ L) + #
REB|HEHER -
Repayment and . The loan is repayable by installments EFmE  REXHRNERRERZ
maturity dates of ~ scheduled over the term of the loan ZEF  HAE - BRREREA
loan facility as provided in the facility agreement REH  HHER m%IEA
over the term of the loan, with the final = AEZEZ—F+=A
maturity date falling on 22 December —+=B-
2021.

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEESHIZERERZER

on the continuing connected transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the 1RIEEMMRAIE14A371& @ AR BB IEATT
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have ZEZEHFHEASRK EXEORHEZFE
reviewed and approved the continuing connected transactions BEXRS([FEBERS])  WHERFEBRER
described in (i) and (ii) above (“Continuing Connected SJyRATRAI#EST :

Transactions”) and confirmed that the Continuing Connected

Transactions were carried out in accordance with the following

principles:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (a) MAEE—RBEEBH

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable than terms  (b) TERBIYE=F M (&) KEERHEH 2
available to (or from) independent third parties; —RRE I

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements (¢) WREREFEMERH 2 HEBHEEK
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions; and &

T

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the (d) ZRAFABEEAFTAEAQNFILRERRE
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Fzs o

1]
i
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Report from the auditor on the continuing connected
transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in accordance with the Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related Party
Transactions” in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 25.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 57.1%
Sales

The largest customer 15.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate 42.0%

Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial Company Limited (“Jinhai”) is one
of the five largest customers of the Group. Jinhai is an associate of
a connected person of the Company by virtue of being indirectly
controlled by the Oei family (the family members of Mr. OEI Tjie
Goan, the Chairman of the Company), including Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric (an Executive Director of the Company), which is in turn a
connected person of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their
associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers noted above.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 35.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. A
Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been adopted
in this regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Review of the Audited Financial Statements by Audit
Committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises four independent
non-executive Directors with written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and reports
to the Board. The audit committee has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BE HEIERALQRLHES
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2012 Interim
Report are set out below:—

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (Executive Director and
Managing Director)

On 1 September 2012, Mr. CHUNG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Vanke Property (Overseas)
Limited (formerly known as Winsor Properties Holdings Limited), a
listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick will retire as an executive director
and managing director of the Company with effect from 1 July
2013.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip (Independent Non-executive Director)
On 21 December 2012, Mr. FAN was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of First Pacific Company Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

On 19 March 2013, Mr. FAN was appointed as an independent
director of Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd., a listed company on
the New York Stock Exchange.

Ms. YEN Teresa (Non-executive Director)

On 28 November 2012, Ms. YEN was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited, a
listed company in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% BT R

_E
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 200, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

B ZHARE
HERBER(ZER)BRITARR
(REFZEEMA LB HRAA])

AZBED (A TR TR B BEAIIENETS
E200EFBER(ZER)BERARATEME[E
RADEEMBAR(RE ERE ] EE IS
BER - MEEUBERREER_T——F+_H
=t BENEANMAREERBEREHEZZA L
FENGFAEGER HERHBER Heka
BHRNGERENER @ WRTESHABRM
2 NEMMEREER -

ESNGeMBERRARENER

BERREFAARRBERLESTMASRMNE
BB EER REBCR REDI B FE R R

UrEMBERE - UeHEEMBRRIELERM
RFNRIR - REBEERRREGAMBEIHRRA
BERAEES - UEGEEMBHERRTIFEHR
HEF IR RR M G B B AR -

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

A R AT E T - B R T A 2210

Ak © +852 2289 8888 » HE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBERE (H)

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

2 A2
relEmRk
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——-F+-A=t—HLFE

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B aE BEAT Er-Y: v
HEE e e 3 5 328.8 695.5
Cost of sales SHE X AN (149.5) (380.3)
Gross profit EF 179.3 315.2
Other income HAth g A 6 243.2 666.6
Fair value adjustments on wEYE
investment properties RNFEFE 16 71.0 (142.0)
Provision for impairment losses on assets & E i EE B R 7 (20.6) (26.0)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R KA (53.8) (34.6)
Administrative expenses THER (233.7) (279.0)
Other and general expenses EfR—HEH (68.7) (120.2)
Operating profit FEE— Py 8 116.7 380.0
Finance income U 9 52.3 29.0
Finance costs BhE R A 9 (160.5) (192.4)
Finance costs — net RhE R A F R 9 (108.2) (163.4)
Share of profits less losses of FE{G B = A )
associated companies g AR E 1R 22 148.0 111.2
Share of profits less losses of i =X /NC]
jointly controlled entities AR E 1R 23 (2.3) (17.6)
Profit before income tax P8R RRR 154.2 310.2
Income tax expense FrigHisz i 12 (41.6) (120.4)
Profit for the year REEHF 112.6 189.8
Attributable to: TR :
Equity holders of the Company RAEE=TEA 13 103.3 241.3
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 2 9.3 (51.5)
112.6 189.8
Earnings per share for profit attributable &2 T w&=EHE AEG
to equity holders of the Company, B ZERER
expressed in HK cents per share DR EWS|R 14
Basic =PI 0.9 2.3
Diluted 51 0.9 2.1
Special cash dividends HERERE
(before distribution in kind) (REBY 2 IKAT) 15
First, paid BR BIRE 220.1 108.3
Second, proposed TR - BRT - 108.3
220.1 216.6

—7

§5§E%ﬁ(i”"ﬂﬁ)ﬁﬁ5‘<"ﬁ 75
——FFR



SEZTEHBERR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BE&BR BEBTT
Profit for the year A B A 112.6 189.8
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 EUA
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AtHESEE
financial assets NS ERE 1.8 1.0
Currency translation differences fERME =R 111.1 478.5
Other comprehensive income for the year, ZAEEHMWE2EWA -
net of tax MR E 112.9 479.5
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEBAERE 225.5 669.3
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTEEZERA(EE)
attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company RATE=FEA 200.4 681.8
Non-controlling interests FEPE R RS 25.1 (12.5)
225.5 669.3
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=A=+—8

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
+=-A=+—H8 +=—RA=+—H
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEAT BEATT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEMFE 16 6,182.1 5,966.3
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LA E R 17 3,214.4 3,370.0
Property, plant and equipment M - HES KRR
— Other property, plant and equipment —H My - A RERE 18 1,108.6 1,370.2
— Construction in progress —EREIRE 18 69.3 47.9
Intangible assets mREE 19 1,204.6 1,206.1
Properties under development EREPYE 20 1,509.0 917.1
Interests in associated companies KRB &R A 2 i 22 1,171.9 1,118.6
Interests in jointly controlled entities NN NCI P o 23 2,082.9 2,069.1
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESMEE 24 27.5 31.8
Non-current receivable FE 7 B FE LR 29 - 295.6
Total non-current assets FREEELLE 16,570.3 16,392.7
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 26 9.0 10.4
Properties held for sale ESHERGE 2% 27 711.1 157.6
Financial assets at fair value through EBEAFEEETKRIEZ
profit or loss SMEE 28 14.1 14.0
Trade and other receivables JFE M5 B % B L i & UK K 29 586.2 425.8
Restricted cash 2R HE 31 3141 273.5
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 32 2,317.9 3,115.0
Total current assets RBEELRE 3,952.4 3,996.3
Total assets EEHAE 20,522.7 20,389.0
BEEAER(ER)BRAR 77
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

RREERBRE)

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=A=+—8

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—E—C—F =%
t=A=+—-B t=A=+—H
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEAT BEATT
EQUITY fEm
Capital and reserves attributable to AATERFEA
equity holders of the Company EBhEARFHE
Share capital [N 33 112.4 108.3
Reserves Ee 34 12,350.6 12,271.4
Proposed special dividend R 5 Bl AR B, 15 - 108.3
Equity attributable to equity holders of A FERFIZAA
the Company LR 12,463.0 12,488.0
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 2,249.6 1,792.4
Total equity ERARE 14,712.6 14,280.4
LIABILITIES &E
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings (RN 35 2,092.1 2,990.9
Other non-current payables Efth IEm BN FE TR 13.7 19.5
Deferred income tax liabilities ST AR 37 1,126.7 1,116.0
Total non-current liabilities FFRBEEAE 3,232.5 4,126.4
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JFEE 1T BR R R L A JE T 5K 36 1,582.3 1,130.6
Borrowings BN 35 899.7 740.0
Derivative liability PETEERE 38 2.2 9.4
Current income tax liabilities BIEART ST A& 93.4 102.2
Total current liabilities nREEEERE 2,577.6 1,082.2
Total liabilities BB 5,810.1 6,108.6
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHEE 20,522.7 20,389.0
Net current assets REBEEFRHE 1,374.8 2,014 .1
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAE 17,945.1 18,406.8
OEIl Kang, Eric =/
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RYE
Directors o
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2012
RZZE—=—F+=A=+—8

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
Note HKS$ Million HK$ Million
B aE BEET BEATL
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z2HE 21 168.6 166.9
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EE NG 21 9,579.9 9,478.7
Other receivables H th jE UK 29 1.7 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 32 93.5 409.6
Total current assets REEELARE 9,675.1 9,889.4
Total assets EEHAE 9,843.7 10,056.3
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to AT EREFEA
equity holders of the Company BEERE #FE
Share capital [N 33 112.4 108.3
Reserves & 34 9,720.4 9,825.6
Proposed special dividend FRE RIS 15 - 108.3
Total equity A 9,832.8 10,042.2
Current liability nEBAE
Other payables H fth FE AT 3K 36 10.9 14.1
Total liability EEHE 10.9 14.1
Total equity and liability ERREEHAE 9,843.7 10,056.3
OEIl Kang, Eric =
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RYE
Directors EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable

to equity Non-
holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
NNGL:
BEAELR FERER BRAE
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
i3 BEAT BEAT BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2011 R=EB-——F
—R—B&R 12,502.3 1,142.6 13,644.9
Comprehensive income ZEKBA
Profit/(loss) for the year AFEEEF,/
(E#8) 2413 (51.5) 189.8
Other comprehensive income Hitn 2 E B A
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHPESmHEE
financial assets N EW S 34 1.0 - 1.0
Currency translation differences EHME= 34 439.5 39.0 478.5
Total comprehensive income/ AEERXABA
(loss) for the year (BB)#%E 681.8 (12.5) 669.3
Transactions with owners HEEAZRS
Employee share option benefits E B BRERN 34 3.1 1.6 4.7
Exercise of bonus warrants TTEEAL TR AR = 33,34 160.8 - 160.8
Release of reserves FRBR G
— upon disposal of subsidiaries — RN EHBA B (202.7) (2.1 (204.8)
— upon disposal of an associated —REE—FeE
company NG5 (129.5) - (129.5)
Changes in ownership interests in B T3 RE B & A 7]
subsidiaries that do not result in CHEARERZHER
a loss of control arising from the BER AR
following factors
- exercise of a listed subsidiary’s —TEAEEDK—H
bonus warrants, distributed by B RRZ
the Group AR5 (31.0) 81.1 50.1
- conversion of convertible preference  —ERAEE IS
shares and distribution of certain —RHRERAZ
shares of a subsidiary held by the AR E R &
Group DIEETRMD 34 (382.6) 382.6 -
2011 first special cash dividend paid —T——FEH
EVSEHIEES ) (108.3) - (108.3)
Contribution from a non-controlling RE—EHRBARZ
shareholder in a subsidiary —RIEERRREE - 196.9 196.9
Distribution of proceeds from sale of m— B IEERIRE DB
equity interest of a subsidiary to a ELE—HEREAR
non-controlling shareholder IRz TS SR 34 (5.9) 5.9 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling REREEN G EL) 458
shareholders - (6.1) (6.1)
Decrease in amounts due from a R —H IR AR R
non-controlling shareholder FIERD - 2.4 2.4
Total transactions with owners BREEAZRZHEE (696.1) 662.3 (33.8)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=B——F
TZA=t-R&#H 12,488.0 1,792.4 14,280.4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

mERRSBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable

to equity Non-
holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
PANETE £
BEAELR FERER BnAE
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
i3 BEBT BEBT BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=E-=fF
—A— A& 12,488.0 1,792.4 14,280.4
Comprehensive income ZEKBA
Profit for the year AEERF 103.3 9.3 112.6
Other comprehensive income HitZEBA
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AftHESHEE
financial assets N ENE 34 1.8 - 1.8
Currency translation differences e = 34 95.3 15.8 111.1
Total comprehensive income AEERXERALRE
for the year 200.4 25.1 225.5
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS
Issue of scrip dividend shares EITARKER R 33,34 124.6 - 124.6
Employee share option benefits E B IRREEN 34 2.1 (0.1) 2.0
Release of reserves upon disposal RSB A AR #R
of subsidiaries & (23.7) (71.7) (95.4)
2011 second special dividend paid —E——FEf
FTRERIRE (108.3) - (108.3)
2012 first special dividend paid —T——FEH
BRI E (220.1) - (220.1)
Contribution from a non-controlling RE—EHRBARZ
shareholder in a subsidiary — R REE - 491.8 491.8
Decrease in amount due from a e — & IR AR R KR
non-controlling shareholder B - 121 121
Total transactions with owners HBREEAZRZHEE (225.4) 432.1 206.7
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=-B——F
TZA=t+—R#&H 12,463.0 2,249.6 14,712.6
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RERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2012 2011
—E——fF —F——%F
Note HKS$ Million HK$ Million
Bt aE BEER BEBT
Cash flows used in operating activities KEX(KHELHKE
Cash used in operations CEMARS® 42(a) (231.5) (122.8)
Income tax paid, net B ETSHF R (46.0) (83.5)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBFT AR ST (277.5) (206.3)
Cash flows from investing activities REFBHZRERE
Interest received B H S 54.1 29.0
Dividend received BUkA% 8 149.7 26.1
Construction costs paid for investment BNREREEYEY
properties under development FRERRC A (224.9) (47.1)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  #SkEE
equipment (59.5) (67.6)
Purchase of intangible assets BE ﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ (0.4) (1.4)
Proceeds from the disposal of & TS 5UR
— Property, plant and equipment N ER TS 14.9 7.1
— Available for sale financial assets —EHESREE 1.4 1.4
— Subsidiaries —B A 42(c) 183.8 950.5
— Associated companies NG - 5771
Increase in net advances to jointly MG & A a2 FEEE N
controlled entities - (91.7)
Increase in net advances to associated  [AlH & A B2 ST SR AL AN
companies - (0.5)
Net cash generated from investing KE RSB EHREIFRE
activities 119.1 1,382.9
Cash flows from financing activities REEH2RERE
Proceeds from exercise of share warrants 1T{& 2 J&4E & 2 FT15 508 - 210.9
Repayment of bank borrowings and (EBETERI RS
other loans (1,007.0) (587.6)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZREIEEL(EM), SR (40.6) 47 1
Increase in bank borrowings and other  #R71T{E R K H b & Z 42 4N
loans 303.0 512.2
Contribution from a non-controlling KE—RHBARZ—%
shareholder in a subsidiary VAR AR R E & 491.8 196.9
Dividends paid to Company’s BENARRRERE
shareholders (203.9) (108.3)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IR R R AR S
shareholders - (88.9)
Interest paid ERFE (207.4) (212.8)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTAIR S TR (664.1) (30.5)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%?’%
cash equivalents B, inEEE (822.5) 1,146.1
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HBZE& K
Iﬁﬁ%{%% 3,115.0 1,903.3
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXR& ) 2 /& 25.4 65.6
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=+—HZzRS
31 December RIREEEY 2,317.9 3,115.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRME

General information
HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC") is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of property
development and investment, alternative energy investment
and operation and infrastructure. The investments of the
Group are mainly located in the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ Million), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings)
Limited have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instrument) at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

—RER
BEREZIER)BRAB(ARAR K [FH
BEEZDANBREFMKIZERE
£ R A] o 3% = & 4k A& Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

ARRIREMBAR(ARE [AEEDEE
NEMEEREARE - BRERREREZ
EAREERR AKBZREIBZMR
B A

ARABRBOREBBMAEXZAARA A
(TB P ) EMR LT ©

BREBEVBEIN  RirEHBREAEBS
T((EEBT])BEMIR EFSER
—E ===+ —AMERELREE
ISR o

FESTHRHE
RBUAGEBBRRRM 2 EB G BR
HIMT - RAFHAIN - ZEBRER
B 2 MEENEWMAER -

21 REBUEBE
EBER(ER)ERAAIZEHE
IS RR TIARE & 7S B S RS 2 A
(BT BHREERDHER - %
ERAMBHRRIEELKANEOR
2 HERKEWE  AIHLES
BEE BRATEEBERIIEZ
TRIEEAERBGE(BENETL
B) 2 EMELEETL AR FET]
Eﬁo

BAUNTABTEUBRELER 2B
BRE - ARBETEAGAR
it BEEENTAERAASE S
BERBEPIELHE - P REZ
HIE RGN - HBRR NG
AHEAMBBRRBEERTENR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESTEEME @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B BRREEZEH

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) AEBERP < Fa] RACIEETE

84

Group Al
HKAS 12 Deferred tax: recovery of EREENE125  BEHE : kD
(Amendment) underlying assets CHEN) RRAE

HKAS 12 has been amended to introduce an
exception to the principle for the measurement
of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on an
investment property measured at fair value. HKAS
12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax
relating to an asset depending on whether the
entity expects to recover the carrying amount of
the asset through use or sale. The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that an
investment property measured at fair value is
recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is
applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

The Group has adopted this amendment
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31
December 2012 and the effects of adoption are
disclosed as follows.

The Group’s investment properties are held by
certain subsidiaries with a business model to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. For these investment
properties, the presumption is rebutted and related
deferred tax is not remeasured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESTEEME @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) B BRRBEEZSE(F
(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations (b) R=ZF——F—H—-HARHBZ

(c)

mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 but not currently
relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

HKFRS 1 Severe hyperinflation and
(Amendment) removal of fixed dates for
first-time adopters
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — transfers of
(Amendment) financial assets

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have
not been early adopted

The following standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later
periods, but the Group has not early adopted them:

(c)

BB FZ B R e 2 AT
RAENEFTER i BE - 1EH AT
HARE B (R EH K
KX GREMHZ i EKE
&)

BEMBAEER BERBRMIG
FIR(ETX) BRRAEZER
BH

EEMBREEN BE-SRcREE
EAGACHES)

RZFE——F—A—HRHKEZ
B B B AR A A R £ 3L A
KEBF IR E RN < 3T
Al (EET AR 2 FE
LNTAEBMANEE_Z
—=F— A — B ERBZ
AN E e st B s 5 14 HARE 58
FIFEA NS B R B
Mz R R ZBET Rk
R -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or
after

RTI Bz &SR
ChEIES:

HKFRS 9

BB TS R 2RI B 5%
HKFRS 10

BB RS ERF 105
HKFRS 11
BB RS
HKFRS 12
BB B RS RIS 1255
HKFRS 13

BBM SRS R FE 135

%

HERIE1157

Financial instruments

EHIA

Consolidated financial statements
fre Ik

Joint arrangements

Bra 2k

Disclosure of interests in other entities
BERENEME LR 2w

Fair value measurement

AT E

1 January 2015

—E-h¥—H—H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—2—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—ZT—=%—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFEEME®)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) B BRRBEEZSE(F
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations (c) R=ZF——-—F—H—-HRHKBZ

BB R B AR (8 5 K £ R A
7K 25 B J5 1 F IR AN 2 AT E
Bl - (EET AR K2 FE (4B

have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or
after

RTFBHRz &R

B BEX

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BB BRELNEIRUEFTAR)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BRAMGRELRE7HR(EFTA)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

BBM WS ERNE TR RES
B 75 AR BN 28 95 (1E 5T AR)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

ERMBWMELNE105 - BE
B %SRRI 115 BB
s E ERE 1258 (1BETA)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

EBGFTERE15 (BFTA)
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
BAGETERIZE 1957
(ZZ——F&IEBR])
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
BB S ERE 2755
(ZZ——F&IBFT)
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Government loans

BT &=

Financial instruments: disclosures —
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

SRITHE: KE-—HifiepmEER
TRLAE

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures

BB GRS ERE R 2
SRElEM AR S HE

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosures
of interest in other entities: transition
guidance

MEMBEHRE  BETHRBEENEMER
ZHEm - BEES

Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income
Hin 2 HWa=EE 25
Employee benefits

EE=A

Separate financial statements

BB IRR

1 January 2013
—T-=%—-A—-H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1 January 2015
—T—hHF—HA—H

1 January 2013

—T—=%—H—H
1 July 2012
—E2——%+tH—H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—T-=%—-A—-H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESTEEME @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) B BRRBEEZSE(F
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations (c) R=ZF——-—F—H—-HRHKBZ

have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

BB R B AR (8 5 K £ R A
7K 25 B J5 1 F IR AN 2 AT E
Bl - (EET AR K2 FE (4B

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or
after

RTI Bz RMEZ
ChR IS

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

ventures
BB e ERIE 285 REtERAIREER

(ZZ——F&1EFT)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

Investments in associates and joint

Financial instruments: presentation —

1 January 2013
—T-—=%—-A—-H

1 January 2014

offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

BEEFERE325 (BFTA) TRIA: 2 -HHeREERSRAE —T—NE—-H—H

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of 1 January 2013
a surface mine

R (ERMBHREREEEE) BRABESEERRZABRKA —ZT—=%—H—H

—REE20%

Annual improvements project Annual improvements to 2009 - 2011 1 January 2013
cycle

FEHHEIEE —EENFE_T——FFBCFERE —T—=%F—H—H

The Group has not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation, which have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012. The Group has commenced an assessment
of the related impact, except for HKFRS 10
which the Group assessed having no impact
to subsidiaries classification upon adoption,
but is not yet in a position to state whether any
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial
information will be resulted.

AEEWERTERNE BMHE
RZZE——F—A—BHRKBZ
BB AR T 1 R A AR T 2E R
HERZ BT RBRE - AEH
EEFHHBEATE  BRAE
BB HIRNE B 3RS 2R
FA10SE AT R BERMHT
eHHBARI P EAEATE
N R M REEELE R
HAEBEAREETBHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2

88

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwiill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2

90

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associated company, jointly
controlled entity or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associated company, jointly controlled
entity or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

(c)

(continued)

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Under
the equity method of accounting, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associated companies includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associated company
equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2

92

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associated companies (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associated companies are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in associated companies are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
associated companies are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to
joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the results of jointly controlled
entities for the year, and the consolidated balance
sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets
of the jointly controlled entities and goodwill (net of
any accumulated impairment loss) on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Group’s most senior executive
management that makes strategic decisions.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
Renminbi and the Group’s presentation currency
is Hong Kong dollars to facilitate analysis of the
financial information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available for
sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESTEEME @)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 INEBRE ()
(c) Group companies (c) &KEAF

94

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associated company that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies or
jointly controlled entities that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Properties are interests in land and buildings other
than investment properties. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease, buildings, water utility plant and
equipment, electric utility plant and equipment, other
plant and equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.
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96

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Buildings 50 years

Water utility plant and equipment 15 years

Electric utility plant and equipment 20 years

Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

shorter of remaining
lease term or useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment, including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified as
construction in progress. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until such times as the relevant
assets are completed and available for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other income or other and general
expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
and is not occupied by the Group. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were
finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed as
investment property is carried at fair value. Where fair
value is not determinable, such investment property
under construction is measured at cost until either its fair
value becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition at
cost, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of
land classified as investment property, others, including
contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequently expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments
on investment properties in consolidated income
statement.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments
for leasehold land held under operating leases, which
are stated at cost and subsequently are amortised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Upon obtaining the land use right
certificates, the costs paid for land use rights are
transferred to prepaid land lease payments. During the
course of the properties development, the amortisation
is included as part of the costs of the properties under
development.

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured at
the carrying amount of the property at the date of
reclassification from properties under development.
Properties remaining unsold at the end of the year are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the
unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less costs to be incurred in selling the

property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Completed properties held for sale (continued)
The Company transfers a property from investment
property to inventories/properties held for sale when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to sale. The
deemed cost of the properties held for sale transferred
from investment property is the fair value of the property
at the date of change in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development including the properties
developed for self use or resale comprises development
cost of properties and the costs paid to acquire land
use rights which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Development cost of properties comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs and professional fees incurred
during the development period. On completion, the
properties under development are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

2.10 Construction in progress

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified
as construction in progress. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
in net fair value of net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested for impairment at every reporting
period end and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwiill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction or upgrade
work or the acquisition of the toll road under the
service concession arrangements of the Group
with relevant local governments are accounted for
an intangible asset if the Group receives a right to
charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an units-of-
usage basis, making reference to the proportion
of actual traffic volume achieved for a particular
period over the total projected traffic volume
throughout the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll road. The total
projected volume of the respective concession
right is reviewed regularly with reference to both
internal and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should there be
a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction with
the service concession arrangement which the
Group has no discretion or latitude to deploy for
other services other than the use in the service
concession are treated as intangible assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Other intangible assets have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment and amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of five
years.

2.12Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associated companies, jointly controlled
entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets which
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the balance sheet date. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to the extent
that may have been agreed with the customer and are
capable of being reliably measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion method”
to determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a
given period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to contract costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of completion.
They are presented as inventories, prepayments or other
assets, depending on their nature.

The Group presents the net contract position for each
contract as an asset when the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses) exceed progress billings. Progress
billings not yet paid by customers and retentions are
included within trade and other receivables.

The Group presents the net contract position for each
contract as a liability when the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivable and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables”, “cash and cash
equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the balance
sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment
within twelve months of the balance sheet date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within other income or other and general
expenses, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in the consolidated income
statement; translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognised in equity. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as other income or other and general
expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.14 Financial assets (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income which the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

For the purposes of assessing the fair value of unlisted
securities, the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm'’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case
of equity securities classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each
balance sheet date. The change in the fair value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.16 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, including deposit paid
for a property development project, are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
other expenses in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to other income in the consolidated income
statement.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

FTESHBERBME®)
215 fTE ST A

TETRMERATLITETAESY
ZBERATEER  EEANSHEE
BRATEEHE ATEED

REFR B RTER

rE
FEERAETERFELREE
SRR - RAASRESRLEZEE - 7]
HHFEAERREBBERZM
FHEEERERZEHHERM -

2.17 YRR K & b R UK

JE Y PR R Ko Eo At FE WK - BRI
FRIBAZEMNERE  HEAF
BRER @ ERIAERNZEZE K
A BORER AE DR (B B AT & - [
Ust B K e L At B MR R 2 R M B A Y
HRFEIFBER\AEEELILE
Wk 2 R B R Bl P A & #R A T
R MEBALRENPHREE -
MABAERERETHBER B
BHSERER - AR R EWR R
MEDR - BEZ2BREERE
EREFAKASREZREGRR
BERMEYERFE)2ZH - BT
BERGABRERTHER - ERKE
KTEREE - BEFABERNA
HMFAXH#ME - THEME S
BHEERBOBS D AGZAGRER
R EARA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFHEME @)
2.18 Borrowings 2.18 &

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

ERNFEIFENGREELER S
A RIER - fERERIZBHKA
SRR - TSI (IR R SRR ) B
BREEZ EMERIR 1amﬁﬁﬁﬂ
BB EERN 76 B RN RER

fisd A BE TR EX AR {0 B 2 RE B
ﬁi‘é‘ﬁmﬁé‘ﬁﬁiﬁgﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%;
ERRGHRA - EUBERT © B
EARSEEAREERBRER - 1|”1’
B PN RBUR AT R R VAR 1D R 2 B
HRE E'J“ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ&éﬁ%z%m
BESRBANK  XNAEER
FREAR A o

%3E$’ilﬁﬂéﬂﬂﬂ¢ﬂ#ﬁ1 Z A
HELZHEEAPERED T+ @
B BREROERRBEE -

/YN
NEEGBERTERREHEMNER
FEEEEEAFEARHEREZ
LEREERE BRINEEMN—
MEBEEEBREAAE stAZEEE
2R BEEEZHBFEAFEAN
HEREAIE ©

EREERBIEAEREEHA
ZERREMMMZKERA - A
BAEMEMML Z EREAFRHR

MEREANAEREEELENER
A REEBATKBZIERER
EHEEARL - B EKKAT A
STHH

§5§E%ﬁ(}”‘ﬂﬁ)ﬁﬁﬂ"ﬁ 107
T FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2

108

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

2.21 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the company’s equity holders.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is
financial liability held for trading. A financial liability is
classified in this category as designated by the Group
upon initial recognition.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial liability at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies and
jointly controlled entities operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entities, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.25 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

(b) Defined contribution plans
The Group uses a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF”) and employee pension schemes
established by municipal government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for the
eligible employees in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further payments
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The Group’s contributions to the MPF are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave MPF prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available. The assets of
MPF are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee pension
schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a
termination when the entity has a detailed formal
plan to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan in which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) and including the impact
of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.
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FTESHBERBME®)
2.26 &1E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.26 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and the
resurfacing and maintenance cost are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, properties
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of business tax and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vii)

(vii)

Revenues from infrastructure and alternative
energy are generated from water supply, electricity
supply and the toll road. They are recognised
based on the following:

(a) Revenue arising from water supply is
recognised based on water supplied as
recorded by meters read during the year.

Revenue arising from electricity supply is
recognised when electricity is supplied to the
provincial grid companies.

(c) Revenue arising from toll road is recognised
when services are rendered.

Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Revenue from individual construction contracts is
recognised under the percentage of completion
method.

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the
income statement at the point of sale to customer.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are passed to the purchasers. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included under
current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Property management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.28 Leases

(a)

(b)

Finance leases (leasee)

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the
income statement over the lease periods so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor or are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.29 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.
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Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
derivative financial instrument, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial
assets, trade and other payables and bank loans.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes. The derivatives
held are not for speculative purpose and cannot be
traded in the market. They are part of an embedded
investment rights to investment assets and are not
exposed to market risk (including commodity price risk)
since the gains and losses on the derivatives are offset
by the losses and gains on the underlying assets.

The Group’s Board of Directors focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in the Mainland
China. Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging activities. However,
the management of the Group monitors the
foreign exchange exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

3

MBEREE
3.1 HBEREE

AEBEEBYREZBWBERR : T
SRR (BEIERR - ERER
BmERRRRANERR) EER
BERBDELRAR  AEBZEXE
TR TASHERERREMEK
R ReRBITES  TTESRT
A BAPERBRRIKZER
BE "HHUESREE BN
R E M ENFIARIBITER © %
FEMTAZFHENSMERE -

AEEZBRBTERBEAEE
TETARS - JBENITETAR
WIEERH T ERE - I EEET
HBEEE - ZFTANREEER
BZRERERN - WA AF RS R
R(BEBmEBRER)  RERZDT
ETACZBEWAREE ZRERM
HiH -

ARBEFEHINKERAZ S
AT 77 SRR AR 3 A 5% 8 B 7
RRACZBEREYE - EFENE
BRBERER S REEBR - W%
AR o

(a) WHEER
(i)  SMERE
REE T ERSEARE
e AEBRNEER
AZRERRAERS
RAZE BT & A
INEWINR 2B EE
KB EFTELEINERE o

7R 5 B3R By 3 £ A AR O
EHHIEE - A A
SEEEEZYESI
R - WRFEEEE
BEIHEARSNERE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

If Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by
5% against the Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars as at 31 December 2012 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit
before income tax would have been HK$23.9
million (2011: HK$45.9 million) lower/higher.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk due to fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially dependent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposures
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2012, if the interest rate
had increased/decreased 100 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax would have
decreased/increased by HK$21.6 million
(2011: decreased by HK$28.0 million or
increased by HK$27.9 million).

Price risk
The Group has minimal exposure to price risk
in 2011 and 2012.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1
(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables,
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents,
most of the deposits are mainly placed with certain
state-owned banks in the PRC which are high-
credit quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with trade
and other receivables and deposits paid for a
property development project, the Group adopts
risk control to assess the credit quality of the
customers and debtors, taking into account their
financial positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to ensure overdue debts.

For alternative energy business, the Group is
exposed to significant concentration of credit
risk in terms of electricity sales as the Group’s
sales of electricity were made to state-owned
provincial power grid companies. The Group
normally does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of 30 days
to these power grid companies. However, part
of the trade receivables due from the power grid
companies relate to government subsidy which
are subject to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based on past
experience and industry practice, these tariff
premiums are generally paid in 6 to 12 months from
the date of the sales recognition. Ageing analysis
of the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 29. Management makes periodic collective
assessment as well as individual assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength of the
debtors and whether there are any disputes with
the relevant debtors.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables from third party customers as the
customer bases are widely dispersed in different
sectors and industries.

In addition, the Group and the Company monitor
the exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial assistance provided to subsidiaries,
associated companies and jointly controlled
entities through exercising control and significant
influence over their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial positions on
a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its current obligations when they fall due. The
Group measures and monitors its liquidity through
the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding the
liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities,
loans and commitments of the Group. The Group
also maintains a conservative level of liquid
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material cash
requirements in the course of ordinary business.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s contractual maturity for their financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table have
been drawn up with reference to the undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMBEBREREM)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 Bi¥%EEZE#)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) #"BESEARE)
Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
R -ZWE CERE EENL am
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HBE#ET BEAT REET BEAT
Group by -]

At 31 December 2012 R=B-=—f+=-A=t-8
Borrowings &3 1,071.3 327.7 1,052.9 1,337.7 3,789.6
Trade and other payables FER BRI R A A T 1,582.3 - - - 15823
Other non-current payables Hin3EmE TR 0.9 0.9 16.0 0.5 18.3
Financial guarantee (Note 41(d)) B #{R (Mizz41(d)) 727.2 - - - 727.2

At 31 December 2011 R=B--f+=h=t-8
Borrowings EE 926.8 6906 10753 16007 42934
Trade and other payables FER R R A M e 1,130.6 - = - 11306
Other non-current payables Hitn3EmE TR 1.0 1.0 15.7 6.3 24.0
Financial quarantee (Note 41(d)) B1##{R (Mizz41(d)) 1,284.3 - = - 12843

Company NG|

At 31 December 2012 R=B--—f+-A=t-8H
Other payables Hi MR 10.9 - - - 10.9
Financial guarantee (Note 41(d)) BIFSHER (FiE41(d)) 250.5 - - - 250.5

At 31 December 2011 R-ZB-——-%+-A=t-H
Other payables HHE R 14.1 - - = 14.1
Financial guarantee (Note 41(d)) BIFHER (FizE41(d)) 496.9 - = = 496.9

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBER

120

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, raise new debt financing, issue new
shares, share options and warrants or conduct share
buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its
gearing ratio and cash flows requirements, taking into
account its future financial obligations and commitments
for this purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
financial statements and total equity is as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EXEBEE(H)

3.3

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were
as follows:

RIE-——FR-_ZF——F+=H
=t+t—HZEBEEALEMT :

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BESBR AEBTT
Current borrowings BN K 899.7 740.0
Non-current borrowings MENEK 2,092.1 2,990.9
Total borrowings B AR 2,991.8 3,730.9
Total equity i 14,712.6 14,280.4

Gearing ratio BEENRLLX

(total debt/total equity) (BERRE L) 20.3% 26.1%

Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMGE (&)

FREJARER-F——£+=
A=t-RRAFEIBZEER

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012.

BiE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
15 Fof ERF bl
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEAT BEET BEBT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HES G EE - 9.8 17.7 27.5
Financial assets at fair value BLAFEEBRERIIE
through profit or loss ZEREE 0.2 - 13.9 14.1
Total assets EEHE 0.2 9.8 31.6 41.6
Liabilities fafE
Derivative liability TEIREE - 2.2 - 2.2
Other non-current payables HinIEREENH - - 13.2 13.2
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEEBRERIIE
through profit or loss ZEREE - - 260.5 260.5
Total liabilities A - 2.2 273.7 275.9

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities

that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2011.

TREJINAEER -_ZT——F+=
A=+—BRAFEFEZEER

afE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F2M F3% et
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HHESREE = 9.8 22.0 31.8
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERIIE
through profit or loss LEREE 0.2 = 13.8 14.0
Total assets BEHARE 0.2 9.8 35.8 45.8
Liabilities =
Derivative liability PTETAARE - 9.4 = 9.4
Other non-current payables Hio IR - = 13.2 13.2
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEERRRIE
through profit or loss ZERBE - - 261.6 261.6
Total liabilities BEEE - 9.4 274.8 284.2

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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fRE B IR R A ()
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMBEBREREM)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMGE (&)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities under financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

c Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

° The fair value of derivative liabilities is determined
using Binominal model.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy
classifications.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMGE (&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TERHEFINHBHE_ZE——_FR_-F
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. —F+ZA=1+—HIEFEZ%E3
RTEES -
Financial Financial
assets liabilities
Available- at fair value at fair value
for-sale through through
financial profit profit
assets or loss or loss Total
RAFE RAFE
AfLE ERERGIR EERFIE
SHEE ZEREE ZEREE 3
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEETR BEET BEBT
At 1 January 2011 RZF—%-H-H 235 13.3 (264.9) (228.1)
Addition HE - - (13.2) (13.2)
Disposal e (1.4) - - (14)
Net gain/(loss) recognised in equity ~ WNERF BRI/ (BE)FE (0.1) 05 33 37
At 31 December 2011 RZB—E+ZA=1—H 22.0 138 (274.8) (239.0)
At 1 January 2012 W-E-—%-H—-H 22.0 13.8 (274.8) (239.0)
Disposal e (6.4) - - (6.4)
Net gain recognised in equity RERPER WG58 24 0.1 11 3.3
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+ZA=1—H 17.7 13.9 (273.7) (242.1)
4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 B REH{EE R A E
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are AREBBENALR R EMEZ(BEY X
based on historical experience and other factors, including REHFEEETRBATHEHEBRE Y
expectations of future events that are believed to be YEHR) © NETSH{EET R BB E AR o
reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the NEBYH RKKIEL G REER - BELZE
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, - Sz e:tHEELEERENER
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and HERIER - BT —EAHBRFEEERE
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material EEMELREAAREE 2 Ht REH

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 1E N X amit o
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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A M RR M ()

The fair value of each investment property, and the
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease payments
for which there are impairment indicators, are
individually determined at each balance sheet date
by an independent valuer based on a market value
assessment. Knight Frank was engaged to carry out
the independent valuation of the Group’s investment
property and prepaid land lease payments portfolio
as at 31 December 2011. In 2012, Knight Frank has
engaged to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group’s investment property and prepaid land lease
payments portfolio excluding the property development
projects achieved pre-sales stage as at 31 December
2012. This valuation was carried out in accordance with
the Valuation Standards on Properties of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors which defines market value as “the
estimated amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and
a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after
proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the Group’s
property portfolio by capitalising the rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for
reversionary income potential and where appropriate,
by reference to market comparable transactions. The
assumptions are based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date.

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding the
property development projects achieved pre-sales
stage, management determined the recoverable amount
based on the valuation report prepared by Knight Frank.
Knight Frank has valued the investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments on the basis that the properties will be
developed in accordance with the information provided
from management. It is assumed that approvals for
the development scheme will be obtained without any
onerous condition which would affect the value of
investment properties under development/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments. In arriving the
opinion of value, Knight Frank has made reference to
comparable transactions in the locality and has also
taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development and the quality
of the completed development in the development
scheme.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 4  E X5 & & ¥ 6 @)
(a) Valuation of investment properties/recoverable (a) ?xﬁ#@%/ﬁﬁiiﬂﬁﬁia NG
amount of prepaid land lease payments B2 E
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Valuation of investment properties/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments (continued)
Management has reviewed the Knight Frank valuation
and compared it with its own assumptions, with
reference to comparable sales transaction data where
such information is available, and has concluded that
the Knight Frank valuation of the Group’s investment
portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties had been
10% higher or lower than the value stated on the
valuation report, the fair value adjustment for the year
arising from the Group’s investment properties would
have been increased or decreased by HK$618.2 million
(2011: HK$596.6 million).

Provision for properties held for sales, properties
under development and prepaid land lease
payments

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
held for sales, properties under development and
prepaid land lease payments according to their
estimated net realisable value based on the realisability
of these properties, taking into account costs to
completion based on past experience and net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. Provision
is made when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be realised.
The assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

Estimated impairment of concession right — toll
road

The Group tests annually whether intangible assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy. The calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are determined
by management making reference to the agreements
approved by the government authorities. The average
growth rate used are consistent with the forecasts
expected in the industry. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of concession right — toll
road (continued)

If the discount rate used in the value-in-use calculation
had been 10% higher or lower than management’s
estimates at 31 December 2012, the profit for the
year arising from the Group’s concession right (toll
road) would remain unchanged (2011: decreased by
HK$101.1 million or increased by HK$224.8 million).

The Group has performed impairment assessment
by using the discounted cash flow model with the
assumptions that traffic flow would increase by 10.3%
every year on average, the tariff rate would increase
by 7.5% every five years and the discount rate is
9.9%. According to the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amount of Guilin Tollroad is RMB1,291.0
million, which is higher than the carrying value as at 31
December 2012.

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are reviewed by management
for impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use of the
plant and equipment. Management makes judgements
on whether such events or changes in circumstances
have occurred, and makes estimates in determining the
recoverable amount. In the situation where the value in
use of plant and equipment cannot be assessed due to
the uncertainties of the operation model in the future,
management has assessed the respective recoverable
amount solely based on the fair value less costs to
sell. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recovered.

4
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(d) Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of the plant and equipment
had been 10% higher or lower than management’s
estimates, the profit for the year arising from the Group’s
plant and equipment would have been increased by
HK$48.4 million (2011: HK$54.7 million) or decreased by
HK$75.6 million (2011: remained unchanged).

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance
with the accounting policy in Note 2.12. The Group
reviews certain indicators of potential impairment such
as actual electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity,
market unit price of Certified Emission Reduction
(“CER”) and other general market conditions.

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets, to the
higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell, and (ii) the
value-in-use on a project-by-project basis. The fair value
is either determined by referring to recent transactions
or by independent valuers whenever appropriate. The
value-in-use of the assets represents estimated future
cash flows from the continuous use of the assets, and
requires complex assumptions and estimates such as
future electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity and CER
and discount rates. The discount rates used to discount
the estimated future cash flows are based on the
relevant industry sector risk premium and the gearing
ratio.

Due to continuous and significant decline of market
unit price for CER, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Alternative Energy
Projects. The value-in-use calculation was based on
the key assumptions, including i) tariff increment at
approximately 3% per annum based on management’s
expectation on market development and general
inflation, ii) improvement in volume of electricity
dispatched based on the operational feasibility
reports and historical performances, and iii) assuming
the contributions from CER is of negligible amount.
The post-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are between 9.5% to 10.1% per annum.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
(continued)

Based on the assessment, an impairment charge of
HK$19.0 million relating to the subsidiary operating
wind farm in Mudanjiang has been recognised, of which
HK$18.3 million was provided for plant and equipment.

With all other variables held constant, if there is 2% tariff
increment throughout the operating period, the provision
for impairment would increase, resulting in a decrease
in profit before taxation by HK$41.3 million. Similarly,
with all other variables held constant, if the volume of
electricity dispatched is 10% less than management
expectation, the provision for impairment would
increase, resulting a decrease in profit before taxation
by HK$93.6 million.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determined is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the income tax
and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Fair value of derivatives, financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. The Group uses discounted cash
flow analysis for various available-for-sale financial
assets that were not traded in active markets.

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method
in accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver
construction services. The use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the
services performed to date as a proportion of the total
services to be performed.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(h) Determination of fair value of share-based
compensation
The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine the
fair value of share options issued during the year. Under
this model, the value of the share options is subject to
a number of assumptions such as the risk-free interest
rate, the expected life of the options and historical
volatility based on annualised volatility of the closing
price of the share. Therefore the value may be subjective
and would change should any of the assumptions
change.

(i) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual report has
been prepared in a manner consistent with the information
used by the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. In this regard,
the Group is organised into the following segments:
Properties development (for sale or lease upon completion
of construction work), Property investment and leasing,
Infrastructure, Alternative energy, Construction, Catering
services and Other operations. The Group’s hotel business
was disposed of in September 2011, while its construction
and engineering business has been discontinued since the
end of 2011.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on operating
profit/(loss) after interest income and expenses, taxation
and share of profits/(losses) of associated companies and
jointly controlled entities. Corporate expenses mainly include
the employee expenses of the head office, interest income
and expenses arising from the holding companies and other
administrative expenses of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets
which are managed on a central basis. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets. Corporate
assets mainly include the cash at bank, property, plant and
equipment and other receivables held by the head office.
The assets of each reportable segment comprise the inter-
segment receivables.
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 oE&ERM@
Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent DEREEERER TR S HEMA 2R G
to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue HET MEEBRERBIARTL 2K
from external parties reported to management is measured m R EREERRMAE — Sz
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income 2 o DENERRBEIIRRAEE 2 £ -

statement. Total segment revenue also represents the
Group’s turnover.

The segment information for the reportable segments for the HE—_Z——Fk=-_F——F+=A
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as follows: =+t BIEFEAE2RD 25 EBER
T
Properties development
NESR
Property

Shanghai investment Total

and Other and Alternative Catering Other  reportable

Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin areas leasing Infrastructure energy Construction  services  operations  segments

L8R nERE CES

i B RE  HHHE REK Eg  HRER BE HRRE  HBEE 2948
HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS$ Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS$ Million
BEER BEET BEET BEET BEET BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER

Year ended BE-%-of

31 December 2012 tzA=t-A

LEE

Revenue from external RENRER M5

customers 135 - 122 - 9.7 65.7 99.5 - 35.1 41 328.8
Inter-segment revenue ks - - - - - - - - - 635 635
Total revenue WEEE 135 - 122 - 9.7 65.7 99.5 - 35.1 67.6 392.3
Operating profit/(loss) BeRw/ (58) (10.6) (23.0) (44.0) (17.0) 150.1 2.3 (0.2) - (20.8) (47.4) 134
Finance income BMA 55 1.5 1.7 0.3 48 0.6 0.8 - 04 1.2 165
Finance costs RERK (6.0) - - (1) (109) (837) (486) - (7.4) - (156.7)
Share of profits less losses of ~ FE(RBE AR

associated companies gt - - - - 513 - 96.7 - - - 148.0
Share of profits less losses of ~ f& {E é“EE

jointly controlled entities aflREE (2.3) - - - - - - - - - (2.3)
Profit/(loss) before income tax  Fr@BLA1E /(5 (13.4) (215) (423) (168) 1953 (56.8) 187 - (28.1) (462) 189
Income tax (expense)/credit FifSH (i) /& % @37 - 48 - (5.2) (1.0) (14.3) - - (17.9) (37.3)
Profit/(loss) for REERA/ (F8)

the year (17.) (215) (375) (16.8) 190.1 (57.8) 344 - (28.1) (64.1) (18.4)
Depreciation & (09) (1.9) (82) 49) (02) (95) (57.0) - (72) 28) (926)
Amortisation B (0.4) - (20.7) - (0.3) (8.3) (0.6) - - (0.1) (30.4)
Fair value adjustments on REMENTERE

investment properties 124 - - - 58.6 - - - - - 7.0
Provision for impairment losses ~ EFERE - - - - (0.4) - (19.0) - - (1.2) (20.6)
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 oBERE)
Properties development
NEER
Property
Shanghai investment Hotel and Total
and Other and Alternative catering Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin area leasing  Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations  segments
LBR NERE BER CES
ipis &5 RE  EfHE K& g HRER 2% HRkE EbxB 2FeE

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Millon ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million  HKS Million
BEEL BEAT BEAT REAT REAT BEATL BEAT BEBT BEBT BEET BEAL

Year ended 31 December 2011 BZ=-F--%

+=pzt-8
LEE

Revenue from external RENRER 2WE

customers 258.3 - - - 201.9 85.9 89.9 17.0 4.7 0.8 695.5
Inter-segment revenue AHEkE - - - - 0.3 - - 1 - - 75.0
Total revenue WEEE 258.3 - - - 202.2 85.9 89.9 917 "7 08 7705
Operating profit/(loss) BEEH/ (58) (145.9) 236 (389) (10.0) 182.7 15.8 (5.4) (16.0) (2.2) %9 302
Finance income I UN 26 19 28 - 09 1.1 02 - 0.1 23 1.9
Finance costs RERA (10.9) - - - (39.4) (75.4) (47.4) - (18.1) - (191.2)
Share of profits less losses of ~ EfEREAT

associated companies aflREE - - - - 2.7 - 835 - - - 1112
Share of profits less losses of (A E AR

jointly controlled entities begihet (176) - - - - - - - - - (17.6)
Profiti(loss) before income tax  SEHARH/(58)  (1712) 255 (36.1) (10.0) 1719 (58.5) 309 (16.0) (20.2) 2.2 (55.5)
Income tax (expense)/credit PR (i) /&4 10.0 (129) 51 - (17.2) (38) (5.1) - - (2.9) (26.8)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERREH/ (K8) (161.2) 126 (31.0) (10.0) 154.7 (62.3) 258 (16.0) (20.2) %3 (82.3)
Depreciation HE (12) (0.9) (0.2) (0.1) (0.6) (219) (55.8) (0.7) (8.7) (3.0) (93.1)
Amortisation -4l (0.4) (14.9) (20.3) - (0.3) (9.3) (0.5) - - (0.2) (45.9)
Fair value adjustments on RENEATERE

investment properties (218.5) 518 - - 4.7 - - - - - (142.0)
(Provision for)/reversal of HEEE

impairment losses (Bfe)/m% - - - - 04 (14.7) - (1.7) - (10.0) (26.0)
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5 Segment information (continued)

5 aHER@E)

Properties development
NERR
Shanghai Property Total
and Other  investment Alternative Catering Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin areas and leasing Infrastructure energy Construction  services  operations  segments
LR NERE CE
i & XE  EHHE RiESE B HAHR BE  HRERR  EBEB  598%
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million ~HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million
BERT BEER BEER BEER BEER BERET BERT BERT BERT BERT BERT
As at 31 December 2012 R-g-2F
t2Azt-8
Total assets AELR 7,042.1 1,190.8 4122.0 739.9 4,570.5 1,290.2 2,226.6 - 61.1 19.2 21,262.4
Total assets include: BELBRE:
Interests in associated REERAZER
companies - - - - 3574 - 8145 - - - 1,171.9
Interests in jointly controlled REEREZER
entities 2,082.9 - - - - - - - - - 2,082.9
As at 31 December 2011 RoB--F
t=A=t-A
Total assets BEES 6,754.4 905.0 3,518.6 2785 4,634.5 1,561.3 2,326.3 1,230.6 1241 31.9 21,365.2
Total assets include BESEAE:
Interests in associated REEREER
companies - - - - 316.3 - 802.3 - - - 1,118.6
Interests in jointly controlled REEREZER
entities 2,069.1 - - - - - - - - - 2,069.1

A reconciliation of loss for the year of reportable segments to

A] 2 o) 8B 2 F R B 18 B AN 5% B 6 1 A

profit for the year of the Group is provided as follows: IR
2012 2011
—B-C—fF —F——%F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEABR BEBTT
Loss for the year of reportable segments A 27 2 F N E1E (18.4) (82.3)
Unallocated amounts: RAOBEEHE
Corporate expenses PERST (6.6) (67.9)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, BREiE DS B AR 2 s
net of tax 137.5 201.1
Gain on disposal of an associated BB B8 S N Rz e
company, net of tax - 88.4
Intra group elimination 5 [ A BB 4 85 0.1 50.5
Profit for the year of the Group &R B F s T 112.6 189.8
ERRER(ER)ERLT 133
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Segment information (continued) 5
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as
follows:

D ERE R ()
A 2RO BEEHEELREHRWNT ¢

2012 2011

—E-C—F =%

HKS$ Million HK$ Million

BEABRL BEBT

Total segment assets DERE EERE 21,262.4 21,365.2

Head office assets B EREAE 975.0 1,672.9

Intra group elimination S EREBE I (1,756.3) (2,694.9)

Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRIEE 27.5 31.8

Financial assets at fair value through EATFELERKRSIR

profit or loss LERMEE 14.1 14.0
Total assets per consolidated FEBEARKRMIINEELRE

balance sheet 20,522.7 20,389.0

Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China.

ARHESHEENIINZIERDEEEE
7 PAHR B K e o

Analysis of revenue by category: BoRE Dz W=D
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEERX BEABT
Infrastructure i 65.7 85.9
Alternative energy BReER 99.5 89.9
Rental income A WA 98.7 94.1
Contract revenue & #lkzs _ 170

Sales proceeds from properties HEFEEEYEMBERIE

held for sale 25.7 366.1
Catering services KRR AR 35.1 41.7
Others HAt 4.1 0.8
328.8 695.5

Revenue from external customers in the Mainland China for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are HK$324.7 million
(2011: HK$677.7 million) and the total of revenue from
external customers from other areas is HK$4.1 million (2011:
HK$17.8 million).
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Segment information (continued) 5 oE&ERM@
For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue derived HE-_Z-——_F+-_A=+—BILF
from two external customers each exceeding 10% of total E REMEBIINATF K& D AL
revenue of approximately HK$51.7 million and HK$47.8 51,700,000 /% Jt K& 47,800,000 % 7T T3
million is attributable to alternative energy business and REBERERER  SBAKRGERZ
there was no revenue derived from a single external 10% - MABRBIHEMEEF 2B —
customer exceeding 10% of total revenue attributable to INREP 2 W amiBR N AT 210% °
sale of properties business. In 2011, revenue derived from a EZE——FR - BANEETE210%
single external customer exceeding 10% of total revenue of #7107,800,000/8 LR B & —SNRE P T)
approximately HK$107.8 million was attributable to sales of REHEMEEL - MABRE B
properties business and there was no revenue derived from RER 2 E—INREP 2 a8 iR W s
a single external customer exceeding 10% of total revenue HE210% °
attributable to alternative energy business.
Other income 6 HiKA
2012 2011
—E2-=F —F——F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERX AEBT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz B 141.8 280.1
Gain on disposal of an associated & — A R a2 s
company - 103.0
Recovery of receivables written off 1[5 LA 4R RS 2 R R
in prior years 49.1 =
Write back of costs provision EI 35 N 3 2.5 180.8
Property management fee income LERBEE=A PN 18.3 13.3
Net exchange gain [& 5 Uy 255 58 1.6 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE - #a KR EH 2 W
equipment 1.1 -
Fair value gain on financial assets BAFEEERRIIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss and CREERTETA
derivative liability — net BEAFENS —FE 71 69.1
Others Hith 11.7 20.3
243.2 666.6
EBEXR(ER)GRAE 135
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7 Provision for impairment losses on assets 7 EBEREBBERE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBER BEET
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment BEEE (BE) e
losses on
— trade receivables — FEURBR K (1.6) 0.4
— other receivables — H b JE IR - (26.5)
— property, plant and equipment — W% - MR REE (18.3) 0.1
- prepaid land lease payments — B EMBEER (0.7) =
(20.6) (26.0)
8 Operating profit 8 &ERA
Operating profit is arrived at after (charging)/crediting the REEFIE (BR) ERTHIAR -
following items:
2012 2011
—E-—fF —ET——%F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAT BEAT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) EERAMAZ (MFE11) (145.4) (157.0)
Employee share option benefits, net (Note 11) {2 8 B EREF] - JFRE(KizE11) (2.0) (4.7)
Amortisation |
— prepaid land lease payments (Note 17)  —Faff i E K (KMt3E17) (22.9) (38.0)
- intangible assets (Note 19) —\Em & E(KIFE19) (7.8) (8.1)
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - HEs R E (fi5E18)
equipment (Note 18) (96.0) (97.7)
Cost of inventories FERA (11.5) (13.9)
Cost of properties sold BEMENA (13.5) (220.5)
Direct operating expenses arising from  A[BRERFA S U A 2 18 E W
investment properties that generate EAZEELERX
rental income (6.3) (8.1)
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services  ZEH AT & — RIS (6.0) (6.5)
Operating lease payments KRR EFIB (16.4) (17.7)
Net exchange gain/(loss) BE H e (B518) %5 1.6 (20.2)
Research and development expense i kHEER - (12.2)
Write down of inventories GFEMR - (2.9)
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9 Finance income and costs 9 HBEVARMERZR
2012 2011
—B--F T —F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEABR AEBTT
Interest expenses: FERE :
Bank loans wholly repayable within 5 years IRITER - ERAFR
FEBEE (68.2) (90.2)
Bank loans not wholly repayable within 5 years ~ $R17E % - HARAER
FEMEE (131.4) (113.5)
Other loans wholly repayable within 5 years HMER  ERAFA
2EER (1.0) (3.1)
Other loans not wholly repayable within 5 years EMER - BERAER
FEBEE (6.8) (6.0)
(207.4) (212.8)
Less: capitalised in properties o BERBPYE
under development N5 46.9 20.4
Finance costs B & A A (160.5) (192.4)
Finance income BSUA 52.3 29.0
Net finance costs &R A F R (108.2) (163.4)
Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was between Wizt : BE—E——F+_A=1+T—HILFE -
6.69% — 7.21% (2011: 5.79% — 6.14%) per annum during the HAERZECRAZBAERNKRRTF
year ended 31 December 2012. 6.69% E7.21%( =T ——F : 579% %

6.14%) °

ERERER)ERAT 137
T FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSREEEMNS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M2
The remuneration of every director and chief executive BEERTREZRNEBEE_ZS—=
officer for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out F+ZA=+t—BLEFEONME N
below: I
Employer’s

contribution

Salary and Discretionary  to pension Share-based
Name %A Fees other benefits bonuses scheme Sub-total compensation Total
HER BIEE

fikA Hit g WA ZEIHX Pt R E kil
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TER TER TER TER TER TET
OEl Tjie Goan EHR - - - - - - -
OEl Kang, Eric =hl 175.0 8,106.8 1,157.5 27.5 9,466.8 - 9,466.8
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie* RUE* 175.0 9,432.8 5,250.0 27.5 14,885.3 1,970.9 16,856.2
CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick® EERG 100.0 5,334.3 1,115.8 13.7 6,563.8 543.9 7,107.7
YEN Teresa EEE 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun FHRI 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip pieke 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERE 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo EEg 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ~ #3l1A 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
1,530.0 22,873.9 7,523.3 68.7 31,995.9 2,514.8 34,510.7

*  Chief executive officer * ITERAEE
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSKAETEEMS @)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=M<@)
The remuneration of every director and chief executive EEERTBBHRNEEZE S ——
officer for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out F+_A=+t—HLFENBE®M
below: T :
Employer’s
contribution
Salary and  Discretionary to pension Share-based

Name #E Fees other benefits bonuses scheme Sub-total  compensation Total
Fek RREE

e Hin R HEiea ZEEHET Nt RipfEE ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THT TET TAL TAL TAL TR

OFI Tjie Goan EER = = = = = = =

LI Xueming FE2HN 414 - - - 414 - 4.4

XU Zheng® #ite 26.0 - - - 26.0 - 26.0

OEl Kang, Eric ] 175.0 7,931.0 1,723.5 24.0 9,853.5 124 9,865.9

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie* RUE 175.0 9,020.0 8,100.0 24.0 17,319.0 3,075.3 20,394.3

CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick®® BERO 55.8 2,847.5 1,487.5 7.0 4,397.8 371.2 4,769.0

YEN Teresa eSS 100.0 - - - 100.0 = 100.0

WAN Ming Sun FHRI 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0

LIU Guolin® Bl 41.4 - - - 414 - 414

FAN Yan Hok, Philip B 220.0 - - - 2200 248 2448

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Bz 220.0 - - - 220.0 248 2448

CHENG Yuk Wo =l 220.0 = = = 220.0 24.8 244.8

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ZslliA 220.0 - - - 220.0 24.8 244.8

1,594.6 19,798.5 11,311.0 55.0 32,7591 3,558.1 36,317.2

*  Chief executive officer * ITERAEE

Notes: 5T -

1. Mr. LI Xueming and Mr. LIU Guolin retired as non- 1. FERAEERIEMREERT
executive directors with effect from 1 June 2011. ——FRNA—BRREFHNTE

2. Mr. XU Zheng resigned an non-executive director with E
effect from 6 April 2011. 2. REEERZZ——FHANHEE

3. Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick was appointed as an BHEIEMITES o
executive director on 10 June 2011 and will retire with 8. BERTENR_ZT——F-ATH
effect from 1 July 2013. REZERMTES - EXEBR

—E—=FtA—HABEMF-

4. The balance represented the estimated value of share 4. HEARIERBAARIRENBARZ
options granted to the directors under the share option M AR AT &I M) = 4% R AR 2
schemes of the Company and a subsidiary. The value FTHEE - ZEBREZBEIRE
of these share options is measured according to the REEGRRNDARR G 2 G5t BR
Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment 8 MIREZEE - EREEA
transactions and, in accordance with that policy, includes 13 [0] 47 fisi P 5% (AR AR T B4 53 88 Al
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous B R B FE 2Rt miEL 2
years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited o
prior to vesting.

During 2012 and 2011, Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan voluntarily RZE—ZFR-_ZF——F &

waived annual director’s fee of HK$100,000. H IR 5‘& E BEREREFEEFHE S

100,000/ 7T ©

BRERER)EBRAF
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSREEEMS &)

(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEMEES AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRN AEEBREREaFATEE
highest in the Group for the year include three (2011: ZER(ZE——F:ZH)EF
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the BEZHMEER EXENZHMKR
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to B FRNENBTREA(ZZ——
the remaining two (2011: two) individuals during the year FMB)ENATZHMESHT
are as follows:
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BE&BRT BEABT
Salary and other benefits e RHAEF 4.2 4.9
Discretionary bonus EIBIEAL 0.7 0.8
Share-based compensation B 5 f e - 0.6
4.9 6.3
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MEERITHT :

No of individuals

A
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR RGBT
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/% 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T - 1
(c) Senior management’s remuneration by band (c) ESREBAEFHD R
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeSMRATOT :
No of
individuals
A
2012
—E——F
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) FMARR(BT)
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017& 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 2
In 2011, senior management consisted of only the RZTE—F  SREEEERE
directors and their emoluments were disclosed in Note a. B EMESERWTalkE -
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11 Employee benefit expenses 11 EERFFEX
2012 2011
—B-C—fF —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BE&BR BEBTT
Wages, salaries and other benefits T #HeMEMER (142.6) (154.6)
Employee share option benefits, net EEBRERT - FHE (2.0) (4.7)
Pension costs — defined contribution plan E{R& KA — FEREH 2
(Note a) (MizEa) (2.5) (2.5)
(Provision for)/write back of unused REAFRETIR (B E), =15
annual leave accrual (0.3) 0.1
Charged to income statement, net BB RIGR FEE (147.4) (161.7)

Notes:

(a) The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal governments.

(b)  Contributions totalling HK$0.1 million (2011: HK$0.1 million)
were payable under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2012.

e

AEEZREERFEAESH RO ZRE
RIU—HRETE - RREFERBEIZ
BZEEMR - @RS EZHBILEEAE
BEZEREFERSEE - RERESFE
EXREESHARRESBBARZE5% MG
BI(EL MR B8 A ZHBA S LA25,0008 T
RER - sEIEKENBRHFENES - AEE
[ EEERAREFEZHERTDENAEBT
BUFREZ B A HAEL

R-ZE——F+-A=+—BRERELHE
AT 3R A 100,000/ 70 ( = ——4 : 100,000
HIT) °

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR
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12

142

Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group
has sufficient tax losses brought forward to offset taxable
profit for the year (2011: Nil). Mainland China income tax
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China at rates ranging
from 12% to 25% (2011: 12% to 25%), and also withholding
tax has been provided at rates ranging from 5% to 10% (2011:
5% to 10%) on income sourced from Mainland China by the
Group’s non-tax resident enterprise, including profit on direct
or indirect equity transfer transactions, interest and dividend
income received.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sale of
properties less deductible expenditures (including costs of
land use rights and property development expenditures).

12 Fif5FixH

A ZN & B A T %05 Bl 1 18 B 48 LA K 8%
REFRRF D - WL ER B SIS
ER B (ZE——F + &) - AEAMAT
BRIZREFBEAAEWEB QR ZEET
FERFEF © BN T12% E25% 2 Fit &
—TE——F  12%E25%)EHBE
BB ERASEEERECEEREAM
FRBRARN F5%E10% (T ——4F :
5%ZE10%) 2 B RE L #E - BRENERE
A EREEERS 2 af - BIWRFE R
B BUA e

B I E R A E RN T
30%ZE60%[HE 2 RER REE - THHAE
B EMEMBREREAINRASX (B21F
T E R A R EERFASL) °

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBT
Current income tax BVEAFT 15 %52
Mainland China income tax R ATS R (33.2) (116.3)
Mainland China land appreciation tax AP B Y it £t 3 (E (2.5) (33.9)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, @s.7)  (150.2)
Deferred income tax (Note 37) EEFTIS A (F17E37)
(Charged)/credited to (k) HEEeRBHER
_theincome statement 69 29.8
(41.6) (120.4)

Note:

The share of income tax credit of associated companies amounting
to HK$13.3 million (2011: share of income tax expense of HK$22.7
million) and the share of income tax expense of jointly controlled
entities amounting to HK$0.8 million (2011: share of income tax credit
of HK$3.6 million) are included in the Group’s share of profits less
losses of associated companies and share of profits less losses of
jointly controlled entities respectively.
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FEfXH®)
AEB AR AR 2 BIE - S g
EHHRMBEARA R (EE)

12 Income tax expense (continued) 12
The tax of the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to profits/(losses) of the

consolidated entities as follows:

ZIEWwWBIR - ERAT

2012 2011
—B-—f —T——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEAT

Profit before income tax and share of Fir45 25t Bl i A1) DA B2

results of associated companies and i NI NG /NG

jointly controlled entities 8.5 216.6
Tax calculated at the domestic rates REBBERZ Caf) &8

applicable to (profits)/losses in the FriE A B N 5t B 2 Fi 18

respective countries (2.0) (50.7)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TR 2 ER

purposes (8.3) (48.9)
Income not subject to tax AR 41.2 85.6
Tax losses not recognised REERZBIEEE (55.6) (72.5)
Withholding tax on dividends from BB E A AKE

associated companies Z R B TEE (9.7) =
Mainland China land appreciation tax AR B At - i IR (E (2.5) (33.9)
Deferred tax on undistributed profits AOBRAE 2 ELETSH (4.7) -
Tax expense FHIEX (41.6) (120.4)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.5% (2011:

23.4%).

23.4%) o

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR

IREFIG BT E R23.6% (=T ——4F -
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14
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Loss attributable to equity holders of the 13
Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$82.5 million (2011: HK$551.6 million), including
provision for impairment losses on investment in subsidiaries

and amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to HK$38.5
million (2011: HK$314.1 million).

Earnings per share 14
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

RRARERBFEARLER

NN E =R A AL EE 82,500,000
BT (ZZF——4 : 551,600,000 % JT )
RARBMBRERERE  BEAKNER
Rl ZIE R EWKHK B QR KERES
18 # % 38,500,000 L (=T — — F :
314,100,000 7T ) °

BRER

(a) EXR
ERERBFIREBEARARAIERR
EAEGRNBREAEBITEBR
ZIEFHEGTE -

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
Profit attributable to equity holders of the ZARAQFEZEH A
Company (HK$ Million) Ehaf(EEET) 103.3 2413
Weighted average number of ordinary BT TR 2 I
shares in issue (Million) FHE(ES) 10,917.5 10,664.5
Basic earnings per share BARERZF]
(HK cents per share) (=FRAAL) 0.9 2.3
(b) Diluted (b) ¥

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares including the share options and bonus
warrants. A calculation is made in order to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market share price
of the Company’s shares during the year) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options and bonus warrants. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared
with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options and bonus
warrants.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

BEREERNTERHBRITES
B Z NEFIHE - ARER A #
BEELAR(BREBRERAINR
BEE) SO ELBmAE - B
St E THRIR M R TT 5 B8 B HE R AT R
RERERMREE A EEE
B AAETEREARTE(EER
FARRB KD 2 FHTSE) K
BZBRMOHEAE - EXFEZEOH
B 77 521 5% M AR Mo AL M) 7R B
EITEME BT RME B ELLE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

14 Earnings per share (continued)
(b) Diluted (continued)

14

BRER (&)

(b) #FH)

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
Profit attributable to equity holders of PAYNGIE: S Sy SN
the Company (HK$ Million) w=A(BEEAT) 103.3 241.3
Effect of assumed conversion of BREHBEA KB RAF]
convertible preference shares issued by 217 A[# AR 5k 2
a subsidiary (HK$ Million) FE(BBET) (1.4) (11.1)
Effect of assumed conversion of bonus  RFRHIEH —KHE A A
warrants issued by a subsidiary BATHL N R AERE 2
(HK$ Million) w2 (AEBTT) - (0.8)
101.9 229.4
Weighted average number of ordinary BT R I
shares in issue (Million) FHEH(ES) 10,917.5 10,664.5
Adjustment for bonus warrants (Million) — ALA|RAREBFHE(HE) - 47.7
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREERT LB
shares for diluted earnings per share fEinEFHE(EE)
(Million) 10,917.5 10,712.2
Diluted earnings per share BREERT (FREN)
(HK cents per share) 0.9 2.1

HE-_Z——Fr-_F——F+=
A=+T—BIEFEZERESTRT
WERZFANMAKTEZARRRE
RERE ETHE AR B -
AR ER R AR E LR R
HETE  AEBTEAREESY
2,

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 did not assume the exercise
of the share options of the Company and the share
options, convertible note and subscription rights for
convertible preference shares of its listed subsidiary
outstanding during the year since the exercise would
have an anti-dilutive effect.

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR
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15

146

Distribution

On 30 August 2011, the Board of Directors proposed to make
distributions out of contributed surplus of the Company in
cash by way of special dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary
share of the Company and in kind of 57 ordinary shares
of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE")
for every 1,000 shares of the Company to the qualifying
shareholders. On the basis of a total of 10,833,587,875 HKC
shares in issue as of 30 August 2011, the Company would be
distributing 617,514,508 CRE shares. By ordinary resolutions
passed on 13 October 2011, the special cash dividend and
the distribution of CRE shares were approved (see note (a)
and (b) below).

On 30 August 2011, the Board of Directors also proposed
to implement a share premium reduction to reduce the
amount standing to the credit of its share premium account
by approximately HK$1,134.0 million. The credit thus arising
was transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. The Company applied its contributed surplus as
enlarged to set-off and eliminate its entire accumulated losses
and to make the distributions contemplated under the special
dividend and the distribution. By a special resolution passed
on 13 October 2011, the share premium reduction became
unconditional and effective.

On 22 March 2012, the Board of Directors proposed a
special cash dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share
payable in cash, with an option to elect new and fully paid
ordinary shares of the Company in lieu of cash under the
scrip dividend scheme. The new shares would, on issue,
rank pari passu in all other respects with the existing shares.
Shareholders who did not elect for scrip shares would be
paid in cash. The special cash dividend was approved at the
annual general meeting held on 1 June 2012. In July 2012,
172,213,833 scrip shares were issued and cash dividend of
HK$52.7 million was paid.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012
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7K

WN_E——FNA=1H EEeE#
RABBABBRFEEERBRREAES S
KA BRI B .08 1L 2 BRI B &
LA%1,0000% 2 A B % 17 5 & 57 B B B
FRERIEEBR A ([RREBELR])E
BERKD - ER_ZE—F\A=1+HE
#%1710,833,587,875 R BB & XM AE
B RNRAAEDIK617,514,5080% A B F
ERERMBRGD - EBARBERN_-_Z——F
TAT=HEREB  FHRESKERFEH
BEERM 22k E B (R T XM
(a)&(b)) °

R-_ZE——FENA=1+H EFENES
ETIROEEENR - LAEROD &E ZRE
% FEHI R #91,134,000,00078 7T » A M &
E7SHEEEBEERRABARL - AR
A8 E B R 2 S B #4 B A K 8 R R
HE2ERFEE - WIREREIRE RS IR
EHERDIE - RM=ZTE——F+A+=HEH
ZHRRIRER - RO B EEDRK A E K
HERER -

RZTE——F=A=-+-H E=€BK
AR & S 9 IR T AR 1 .07 (1L 2 B RIER
ERE - BEBURKEFTEIBEREZNR
NEFT R EBRRERE N - #1T
IR PR Eo A 5 T A R AR 10 B3R B AR
DAERE o RERZBUBRNKE ZREAF AR
SN - R-BE——FEA—BETZK
REFAE LBARMFEIRE - WER
—E——F+ HE17172,213,833R AT f%
MR 38 € /% 852,700,000/ 7T °
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15 Distribution (continued)

On 23 August 2012, the Board of Directors proposed a
special cash dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
payable in cash, with an option to elect new and fully paid
ordinary shares of the Company in lieu of cash under the
scrip dividend scheme. The new shares would, on issue,
rank pari passu in all other respects with the existing shares.
Shareholders who did not elect for scrip shares would be
paid in cash. The dividend would be made out of contributed
surplus of the Company. The special cash dividend was
approved at the special general meeting held on 19 October
2012. In December 2012, 236,083,717 scrip shares were
issued and cash dividend of HK$151.2 million was paid.

On 23 August 2012, the Board of Directors also proposed to
implement a share premium reduction to reduce the amount
standing to the credit of its share premium account by
HK$800.0 million. The credit thus arising would be transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company. The
Company would apply its contributed surplus as enlarged
to set-off and eliminate its entire accumulated losses
outstanding as at 30 June 2012 and to make the distributions
contemplated under the special dividend. By a special
resolution passed on 19 October 2012, the share premium
reduction became unconditional and effective.

15

D)

R-BE——E\A=-+=H BZ2HE
AR & (N 89 T IR T AR 2. 078 (1L 2 K RIIER
SRS - BEBEARR BB AEREEZNR
AR RBRERARRER AN - &
T2 FIRTEFT A B fth 5 A s B3R A AR
DAERE o REBRIZBURNKE ZIREAZ AR
X o ZREMIERRRBMARERD
Bt e RZZFE——F+ATNBRITZKRE
FRAE ERBRMFAIRE  WERZ
T — —F+ = A%17236,083, 717 R4 i
MR & R% 2151,200,00078 7T °

R-ZTE——ENA=-1+=0 BEEEFE
ZRGBEEEIR  WERMEEZRAS
%8 A5 800,000,000 L AMELZ %
HEBRERNQNB 2 BARL - ARRDIE
AZBABBEREEEMBEER=ZF
——FANA=Z+THEZEBRFIBELDIK
BERIRRS - R—E——F+A+NBEB
ZERRE R - IR R B BRI AR B K
T A3 o

ERRRER)ERAT
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15 Distribution (continued) 15 7k (#)
(a) Special cash dividends (a) BREEKRE
2012 2011
—E-=-F —E——%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBRX BEBTT
First special cash dividend (with scrip EEARERIRE RS
option) paid, of HK2.0 cent per ordinary  (RILARRARE)
share (2011: First special cash dividend & E@A%2. 0781l
of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share paid) —T——F: BB
RERRERE - 8K
@10 L) 220.1 108.3
No second special cash dividend (with ~ TEZFIKSE —XERIEE
scrip option) proposed (2011: Second BRE(ZE——F: B
special cash dividend (with scrip option) {5 Z X RIIR SRS
of HK$1.0 cent per ordinary share paid) (AR E) » TR E
AAR1.07 L) - 108.3
220.1 216.6

148

First special cash dividend proposed in 2012 was Z—ZE—_F#R7 B XERIESKREDERE -
approved and the amounts were reflected as an MZEeBWEARIEHEEZE—_ZT——&+—-A
appropriation of the contributed surplus account for the =+—BItFEZHARBOE - Z&BER =

year ended 31 December 2012. The amounts were paid Z——F+ = Ik °
in December 2012.

There was no second special cash dividend proposed in = R-ZT——4F » TEHRE XFHESIKRE -

2012.

First special cash dividend proposed in 2011 was Z—ZE—— R B XERIESREDERE -
approved and the amounts were reflected as an MZELBEARIMEREZE - ——F+ = A
appropriation of the contributed surplus account for the =+—BItFEZHARBOE - Z&BER =

year ended 31 December 2011. The amounts were paid Z——4F+— Bk »
in November 2011.

Second special cash dividend proposed in 2011 —Z——&HERE - RERBREREEN-Z
was approved at the annual general meeting held on —Z—F/XA—HETZBRERBFRSELE - M
1 June 2012 and the amounts were reflected as an ZE&BEARIMEEE —_T——F+-_A=+—

appropriation of contributed surplus account for the year B IFEE 2 S A BBDE -
ended 31 December 2012. The amounts were paid in  F+ AR o
July 2012.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2012

ZEWENTE—Z
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A ERRME (&)
15 Distribution (continued) 15 2Kk (#&)
(b) Distribution in kind (b) EYIDIK

The distribution of CRE shares was approved by an DEPBEBEERRONR=-Z——

ordinary resolution on 13 October 2011, FTAT=BRBzERRAZRM
AE ©

On 3 November 2011, 1,385,170,068 CRE shares RZE-——F+—-—HA=RH " &

were issued upon full conversion of the 1,385,170,068 1,385,170,068 % ] #2 f% & 5t g &

convertible preferred shares and the Company & N 1% + 1,385,170,068 i 7

distributed 617,514,508 CRE shares to its shareholders, BHBEERRIRDERETT  MAQA

and the Company indirectly held 1,275,541,937 CRE M H R DK 617,514,508 f% 7

shares, representing approximately 54.13% of the BARRERG - BEARAHERE

issued ordinary share capital of CRE at the same date. 1,275,541,937 % # B & 4 88 )R A%
% HERE B BB 4ERRD
BT E B A454.13% °

There is no distribution of CRE shares in 2012. RZE—ZFUWES R EFERE
TRARAD o

(c) Final dividend (c) *#®s

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment EEgITEREREE T —FK

of final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2011 —E——F+_-_A=+—HLtHFE

and 2012. KA AR EARR B,

ERERER)EGRAT 149
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A ERRME (&)
16 Investment properties 16 REYX
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEER ABEBTT

At 1 January R—H—H 5,966.3 6,187.0

Currency translation differences e H R E =5 47.2 255.8

Additions NE 236.2 47 1

Finance lease payments capitalised BEMEEREANL 40.4 -

Disposals HE - (396.7)

Costs adjustments A - (6.7)

Transfer to prepaid land lease payments &1 £ &+ E - (9.9)

Transfer from/(to) property, plant and B BERREEAS

equipment (#H) 24.0 (4.2)

Transfer from properties under BERPYFEE A

development - 35.9

Transfer to properties held for sale (Note a) B E{EHHE Bk 2 W% (HiFa) (203.0) -

Fair value adjustments, net NEFE R 71.0 (142.0)

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 6,182.1 5,966.3

Notes: 5

(a) Management changed its intention to sell the investment (a) EEEXFEHER @ FEHEREWEMALA
properties and the change in use was evidenced by BN ERBFARERGER GREMFEEA
commencement of development. The deemed cost of the ERERE 2 EBRZEMFERAEREER
properties held for sale transferred from investment property is Z R TFERARERRA o
the fair value of the properties at the date of change in use.

(b)  The 2012 valuations were based on independent assessments (b)) =T —ZFEEDUARIAEB LT HAE
made by Knight Frank. The valuation techniques adopted % o TS E R TSR 4R & B RIS o
are described in the Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(c) At 31 December 2012, investment properties in Mainland China (¢) RZ-T—Z—&+-A=+—H  HFEAM
of HK$1,787.7 million (2011: HK$1,761.3 million) were pledged f& {8 1,787,700,000 & 7t ( = & — — F
as securities for the Group’s borrowings (Note 35). 1,761,300,0008 7T ) 2 REWZ » EERARSE

B g 22 AR (M E35) -

(d) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their carrying  (d) AEBERKREWE 2 Emiz LREEREH S
values and the lease terms are analysed as follows: T :

2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BAEBT BEAT

In Mainland China, held on: AR B A MRS
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50E 2 HAE 5,856.9 5,746.2
Leases less than 10 years PI10FZHE 325.2 220.1
6,182.1 5,966.3
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A M RR M ()

17 LB ER
AEENEE Lt K% 13 8 Y w5t
AL HASR  EEEFESTET

17 Prepaid land lease payments
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their net
carrying values is analysed as follows:

Group
REHE
2012 2012 2011 2011
—B--fF ZB--f ZT—% =T —F
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
ER- YA ER-Yg BEETT BEBT
At 1 January R—H—H 3,370.0 3,283.6
Currency translation b S e
differences 25.4 138.2
Additions = - 2.9
Transfer to properties held #EHE{EHERS
for sale el /JES (104.9) —
Transfer from investment BIREMEEA
properties - 9.9
Disposal of a subsidiary HE KB AR (10.1) =
Impairment loss BEEE (0.7) -
Amortisation B
— Capitalised in properties —BERERHYE
under development =¥\ (42.4) (26.6)
— Charged to income —BEREBEmKXAR
statement (Note 8) (PfTzE8) (22.9) (65.3) (38.0) (64.6)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 3,214.4 3,370.0
In Mainland China, held on: RHBEAMES :
Leases of over 50 years HEAS0F 2 HE 1,323.9 1,334.5
Leases of between NF10E50F 2
10 to 50 years HE 1,890.5 2,035.5
3,214.4 3,370.0

Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with carrying values of HK$1,009.3

million (2011: HK$1,133.4 million) (Note 35).

7K £ [ BR M {8 1,009,300,000%8 7t (= &
——4F : 1,133,400,000/ T ) Z FE 1 £+ b

HE RS WM AIIGE TRITE R

35) °

FEER(ER)ARAT 151

T FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
18 Property, plant and equipment 18 WIZE - MBRZHE
Group
iS4
Electric
utility ~ Water utility Other
Construction plant and plant and plant and Land and
in progress equipment equipment equipment buildings Total
BERR #kER — EERER THR
ERIR EL ] B4 B4 EF a5
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEBT BEBT BEET BEAT
At 1 January 2011 R=B--%-B-H
Cost A 496.3 691.1 2815 285.3 320.7 20749
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERGE - (182.3) (101.5) (248.4) (133.5) (665.7)
Net book amount REFE 496.3 508.8 180.0 36.9 187.2 1,409.2
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-E--f%
TZB=t+-HLEE

Opening net book amount ENEAFE 496.3 508.8 180.0 369 187.2 14092
Currency translation differences ERhEES 0.1 305 71 0.9 41 427
Additions RE 443 98 - 13.5 - 67.6
Transfer from investment properties BERANFEA - - o = 42 42
Reclassification EE i (492.8) 4928 - - - -
Disposals & - - - (7.4) (0.5) (7.9)
Depreciation Vil - (55.2) (203) (12.5) 9.7) (97.7)
Closing net book amount ELEmFE 479 986.7 166.8 314 185.3 1,418.1
At 31 December 2011 R=B--%+ZB=+-H
Cost KA 479 1,229.3 294.2 285.6 334.0 2,191.0
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERGE - (242.6) (127.4) (254.2) (148.7) (772.9)
Net book amount REFE 479 986.7 166.8 31.4 185.3 1,418.1
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A ERRME (&)
18 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 18 W2 - WBERRE @)
Group
rEE
Electric
utility ~ Water utility Other
Construction plant and plant and plant and Land and
in progress equipment equipment equipment buildings Total
BERR #kER  EERER 1R
ERIR B B4 B4 BT g
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z--f
TZAZt-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEmFE 479 986.7 166.8 314 185.3 1,418.1
Currency translation differences ERphEEE 0.5 74 1.7 - 0.5 6.4
Additions HRE 209 0.3 - 38.3 - 59.5
Transfer to investment properties EHERENE - - - - (24.0) (24.0)
Costs adjustment RARE - 0.4 - - - 0.4
Disposals ik - - - (1.8) (2.0) (3.8)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAR - - (156.4) (0.5) 1.9) (164.0)
Impairment loss REEE - (18.9) - - - (183)
Depreciation % - (55.4) 87) (24.4) (7.9 (96.4)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 69.3 920.8 - 43.0 144.8 1,177.9
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZF+ZA=1-A
Cost KA 69.3 1,239.6 - 315.6 281.3 1,905.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERAE - (318.9) - (272.6) (136.5) (721.9)
Net book amount 69.3 920.8 - 43.0 144.8 1,177.9
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 18
Depreciation expenses for property, plant and equipment of
HK$0.4 million (2011: Nil) had been capitalised in properties
under development and included as part of the additions.
Depreciation expenses of HK$96.0 million (2011: HK$97.7
million) have been charged in the income statement (Note 8).

154

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s properties, plant and equipment with carrying values
of HK$1,009.4 million (2011: HK$1,077.3 million) (Note 35).

The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their carrying
values and the lease terms are analysed as follows:

W - MERRE@®E)

)3 - MRS K 3R B 9T & R X 400,000 7%
T(ZZE——F : E)ERERTME
BAREXR (EABRABEZ—H o MITE
f X2 #1 96,000,000 T (=& — — F
97,700,000 ) EfE B m KT AR (W
5E8) ©

7N £ [ Bk M (B 1,009,400,000 8 T ( — =
——% : 1,077,300,000/8 L) 2 & T W
¥ BN RECEEURGE THRTE
R (FIzE35) °

AEBRIREEEN R Lt RIBF 2 #
AR

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBREHA :

Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E0F 2 HE 82.1 86.3

In Mainland China, held on: RARBEREE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 E 35.5 43.6
Leases less than 10 years DPI10FEZHE 27.2 55.4
144.8 185.3
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19

Intangible assets

19 BEE

Group
r5E
Concession Other
rights - intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
R ar i — Hith
L5 e N BYEE mE
HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEET BESAT BSAT
At 1 January 2011 R-B——%-A—H
Cost A 409.5 1,640.1 53.1 2,102.7
Accumulated amortisation and &t RRIE
impairment (409.5) (480.4) (49.2) (939.1)
Net book amount REFE - 1,159.7 39 1,163.6
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE=-Z——4
TZAZ+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FORESE - 1,159.7 3.9 1,163.6
Currency translation differences ERT@%C%%’E = 49.2 = 49.2
Additions NE - 1.2 0.2 1.4
Amortisation (Note 8) #iH (it aEs) = (7.7) (0.4) (8.1)
Closing net book amount FRRESHE - 1,202.4 37 1,206.1
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——%5+=-A=+-H
Cost A 409.5 1,711.2 54.1 2,174.8
Accumulated amortisation RETEERE
and impairment (409.5) (508.8) (50.4) (968.7)
Net book amount RE%E - 1,202.4 3.7 1,206.1
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE-ZF——%F
TZA=t-ALFE
Opening net book amount FHRMEHE 1,202.4 3.7 1,206.1
Currency translation differences &% #E =58 - 9.3 - 9.3
Additions NE - - 0.4 0.4
Disposal of a subsidiary & — R E A A - - (3.4) (3.4)
Amortisation (Note 8) B oH (FsEs) - (7.6) (0.2) (7.8)
Closing net book amount FIREREFE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
At 31 December 2012 R=B-=-5+=ZA=+-H
Cost A 409.5 1,724.5 0.8 2,134.8
Accumulated amortisation RETEERRE
and impairment (409.5) (520.4) (0.3) (930.2)
Net book amount RmEFE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
EBEX(ER)GRAE 155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20 Properties under development 20 BRBYE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
g et 2 —T——%F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERX BEABT
Properties under development comprise: 3R YEBIE
Construction costs and capitalised BENARERHS
expenditure 1,425.1 870.4
Amortisation of prepaid land lease &R
payments 83.9 46.7
1,509.0 917.1
The properties under development are all located in the BRPYED LT B AM -
Mainland China.
At 31 December 2012, no properties under development RZZE——F+-_RA=+—8 UEER
(2011: HK$490.0 million) was pledged as securities for the R (== ——4F :490,000,0007%7T) &,

Group’s borrowings (Note 35).
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21 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due 21 RHIBATZREREWHE A T

from subsidiaries MIE
2012 2011
—g2—=F —T——%F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
ELYT0 BEBT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE TR - R 226.4 224.6
Provision for impairment losses BB EEE (57.8) (57.7)
168.6 166.9
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E R 9,976.5 9,836.4
Provision for impairment losses TEEIERE (396.6) (357.7)
9,579.9 9,478.7
9,748.5 9,645.6
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, B AT Mt AEIKIE - 8 RNREEE
and repayable within the next twelve months. Their carrying +-—@EARES  HEmMEEENTEHE
amounts approximate their fair values. The balances are EoAMITBEARBIE - RESTE
mainly denominated in Renminbi. The same was noted in A TTEESN - iR T —— 48
2011 except for the balances are mainly denominated in Hong B
Kong dollars.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages TEMBAF Y HEESHNE1922198H -
192 to 198.

ERERER)ERAT 157
T FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
22 Interests in associated companies 22 REENTFZERS
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEABT
Group’s share of net assets AEBE(REEFE 1,032.6 1,028.4
Amount due from an associated FEU — Rl B & A Bl FRIRF R
company, net 139.3 90.2
1,171.9 1,118.6
Amount due from an associated company is unsecured, JEU —FRIE & A RIRIEL EEAR - 28R
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve months. BARKRTZEARNEE  BHEREEE
The carrying amount approximates its fair value. The balance HHNERE - AREUBTEE -
is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
The following financial information, after making adjustments THSBEM D EAEUAFEAEEEE
to conform to the Group’s significant accounting policies, BETEGR - REAKE S HEEHE QA
represents the Group’s aggregate share of assets, liabilities, ZEE - BfE - W=HEFEEHMRAT
revenue and results of associated companies, all of which are
unlisted, and is summarised as below:
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEER BEABT
Assets BE 2,684.6 3,153.0
Liabilities afE (1,652.0) (2,124.6)
Net assets BEFE 1,032.6 1,028.4
Revenue & 296.3 320.5
Profit before income tax P45 75 A& A 134.7 133.9
Income tax credit/(expense) (Note 12) FTSRiEE, /(i) (FF3E12) 13.3 (22.7)
Profit for the year INE Z i A 148.0 111.2
Details of principal associated companies are set out on FEBMENA ZFBERNE199E o

page 199.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
22 Interests in associated companies (continued) 22 REENT zRER @)
In September 2011, the Group entered into a sale and RZZE——FNA AEEFTZEEW
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire 45% equity o MEERBE R E 2 2 E045%RANE
interest in and, also the loan owing by such associated mRAEENRERANEE 2B o B
company to the Group. The associated company'’s principal RAIZFEBEERANRPBRAAFZ276.6%
asset was its 76.6% interest in a PRC company which owed B MZTREARRIERES —XE
a hotel in Beijing. The total amount of consideration was JE o #AR{E /578,000,000 T °
HK$578.0 million.
23 Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 NEERRIZER
2012 2011
—g-=f -—T——4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER AEBT
Group’s share of net assets REERGEEFE 1,928.9 1,916.3
Amount due from a jointly controlled FE—E & R RIFKIE
entity 154.0 152.8
2,082.9 2,069.1

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve months.
The carrying amount approximates its fair value. The balance
is denominated in Renminbi.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities and no
contingent liabilities within the respective entities.

Bl —HAZERARFALEER 28R
BEARAR+—EAREE  BHEEE
HEERNFERE - HRENARBEH -

VTEREBAKREMERERARERZIEAXN
SARBE MBEMEERRSERINES

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

23

160

Interests in jointly controlled entities (continued) 23
The following financial information, after making adjustments

to conform to the Group’s significant accounting policies,
represents the Group’s aggregate share of assets, liabilities

and results of the jointly controlled entities and is summarised

as below:

EHEE -

REERTZER®)
THMBEER NERABUAGA R EMEE
RELAEBA LEES LR
CEE - BEREELMT

2012 2011
—E-C—F T ——%F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEBIT

Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,769.4 2,598.9
Current assets MENEE 4.5 4.0
2,773.9 2,602.9

Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (628.6) (480.1)
Current liabilities mENEE (216.4) (206.5)
(845.0) (686.6)
Net assets BEFE 1,928.9 1,916.3
Loss before income tax Fr5 % Al & 18 (1.5) (21.2)
Income tax (expense)/credit (Note 12) FTs®i (2 ), e (MizE12) (0.8) 3.6
Loss for the year NFEEIE (2.3) (17.6)

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities are set out on
page 200.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

24 Available-for-sale financial assets

24 THHESHMEE

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——5F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBART BEAT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 31.8 31.3
Currency translation differences b R e =5 0.3 0.9
Disposal s (6.4) (1.4)
Net gains recognised in equity (Note 34) Rz 2 W F 58 (M17E34) 1.8 1.0
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 27.5 31.8
Available-for-sale financial assets include AI#tHE SR EE
the following: BIET&IA
Unlisted securities ELEMESH
Equity securities — PRC AR A FE S — B 17.7 22.0
Club debentures SHEH 9.8 9.8
27.5 31.8

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

THEES

BMEENTIERHE

2012 2011
—E--F —T——%
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 9.3 9.3
Renminbi AR 18.2 225
27.5 31.8
EREXR(ER)EBRAE 161
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25 Financial instruments by category

162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25 ZERESZEMTA

Group
by
Assets at
fair value
through
Loans and profit or Available-
receivables loss for-sale Total
BAYEE
BRFIER
ERREUR LEE e 8E
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Assets as per consolidated GREESERVEE
balance sheet
At 31 December 2011 W-ZF——%+-f=t-H
Available-for-sale financial assets MEHESBAE (f24)
(Note 24) - - 31.8 31.8
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBRRRIIEL
through profit or loss (Note 28) tBEE(ME2s) - 14.0 - 14.0
Amount due from an associated JEY— B & A )
company, net (Note 22) FEFE (f1:22) 90.2 - - 90.2
Amount due from a jointly JE%Z BN
controlled entity (Note 23) FE(MF23) 152.8 - - 152.8
Non-current receivable (Note 29) SRR (ME29) 295.6 - = 295.6
Trade and other receivables (Note 29) FLISZEE R Bt R (B 29) 4258 - - 4258
Restricted cash (Note 31) SRR 2735 - = 2735
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 32)  B&RELSBM(H32) 3,115.0 - - 3,115.0
Total k] 4,352.9 14.0 31.8 4.398.7
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—f+=-A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets LS RAE (fE24)
(Note 24) - - 275 275
Financial assets at fair value BATEEERRIEL
through profit or loss (Note 28) SREE(MH28) - 141 - 141
Amount due from an associated e — RS A
company, net (Note 22) FEFE(ME22) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a jointly FLIQ kYN
controlled entity (Note 23) o (f1:E23) 154.0 - - 154.0
Trade and other receivables (Note 29)  FEURER 7l 2t e ek (i 29) 586.2 - - 586.2
Restricted cash (Note 31) ZR#R S (13E31) 314.1 - - 314.1
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 32) B4 RS SEM([f:32) 2,317.9 - - 2,317.9
Total b 3,511.5 14.1 27.5 3,553.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

25 ZREpEszEMIE @)

Group
AEE
Liabilities at Other
fair value financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss amortised cost Total
BRAVEE R
B R5ER RAETEZ
zBfE Httemas B
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
EESeve HEBT HEBT
Liabilities as per consolidated #HRAEEEEBERCZEE
balance sheet
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F
+—A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 35) Bk (H=E35) = 3,730.9 3,730.9
Derivative liability (Note 38) PTETAEEEKEESS) 9.4 = 9.4
Trade and other payables JFEE 1 B 35K B EL L FE S 3K
(Note 36) (Pff5E36) 261.6 869.0 1,130.6
Other non-current payables H A FE Eh e 3R - 19.5 19.5
Total pEkE) 271.0 4,619.4 4,890.4
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT—Z
+=—A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 35) B (F5E35) - 2,991.8 2,991.8
Derivative liability (Note 38) TET R EKFESS) 2.2 - 2.2
Trade and other payables JFEE AT B 35K R L Al FE S 3K
(Note 36) (FfF3E36) 260.5 1,321.8 1,582.3
Other non-current payables B I ED FE T 3K - 13.7 13.7
Total Rk 262.7 4,327.3 4,590.0
ERERR(EZER)ERAA 163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBHRRME(E)
25 Financial instruments by category (continued) 25 RERESZEMIAm)
Company
RN F]
Loans and
receivables
ERRERK
HK$ Million
ABEBIT
Assets as per balance sheet EEABRZEE
At 31 December 2011 R—E—F+=_A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, BB EHEERNE A
net of provision (Note 21) Z FIE(fFEE21) 9,478.7
Other receivables (Note 29) e Wk (B EE29) 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 32) ReERRSEFEEBY(H5E32) 409.6
Total K] 9,889.4
At 31 December 2012 N=F—=—F+=F=+—8H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, B IR 1% FE U B A 7]
net of provision (Note 21) Z B (K1FE21) 9,579.9
Other receivables (Note 29) Hpth fE YR (M9 5E29) 1.7
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 32) RERRESEEBEY(H:E32) 93.5
Total G 9,675.1
Company
RN F]
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
RAGTEZ
HittemEE
HK$ Million
BEET
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEAGERZARE
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F+-H=+—H
Other payables (Note 36) HAth fE A 3R (M9 5E36) 14.1
At 31 December 2012 RZE——_F+-_A=+—H
Other payables (Note 36) H i FEST R (M 5E36) 10.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

26 Inventories
Inventories represent consumables that are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories amounting
to HK$2.9 million were written down for the year ended 31
December 2011.

27 Properties held for sale
At 31 December 2012, properties held for sale that are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted to
HK$711.1 million (2011: HK$157.6 million).

At 31 December 2012, certain properties held for sale with
carrying value of HK$111.9 million (2011: Nil) was pledged as
securities for the Group’s borrowings (Note 35).

28 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

26 ®FE
FEERRA RS FEY BIEEE
MRS BE-_T——F+-A=+—
BHIEFE - A#2,900,000/8 T2 FEHK
WO, -

27 ESHERBRZYE
R-_ZT——&+-_A=+—H  FHEHR
B WEIRRAR R A IR R E 2 BIEET
Bk HE&%A711,100,0008 T(—F——
4 : 157,600,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 KAES
111,900,000 T2 & THEHEERE 2
¥(ZZ——F B EALSEMERBK
Z AR (HIEES5) o

28 RAVEHEREXRIGZTHMEE

Group

AEH
2012 2011
—E-——F == ——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABR BEBTT

Equity securities: RAFES

— Listed in Hong Kong at market value —H®HBLEm  EWmE 0.2 0.2
- Unlisted — kLT 13.9 13.8
141 14.0

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated
income statement (Note 6).

The fair value of equity securities is based on the current bid
price quoted in the market at the balance sheet date.

BATEEBRRIEZCHEEATE
BE G AGREBIRAEMIA (K
6) °

BRATE S A FETIRBR&EE B HSHM
BREREAEFE -

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR
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29 Trade and other receivables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29 PR RN EL At WK

Group Company
A%E ADT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—F-=F T -F =F-=F T F
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
HEET BEBT HEBRT BEBT

Trade receivables JRE Wi BR 5K 139.2 142.4 - =
Less: provision for impairment 3 : FERFORIE R &
of receivables (12.4) (11.6) - -
Trade receivables — net JRE Uk AR R 5 126.8 130.8 - -
Bills receivable L e 3.1 17.2 - -
Retention receivables JE IR B 5K 3R 20.1 30.3 - =
Other receivables and deposits, A fEWT kigs
net of provisions (BHBREAE) 430.6 231.9 1.7 1.1
Gross amounts due from EREF&HTIE
customers for contract works ~ FIE#8%8 (K5£30)
(Note 30) 5.4 9.0 - -
Amounts due from related & Wt BB A B 3R0A
companies (Note b) (F¥zED) 0.2 6.6 - =
586.2 425.8 1.7 1.1
Notes: P &E
(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables at year end, net of (a) MRFLHER  BHBRBEREZRERRERZ
provision for impairment, was as follows: BREC DTN T :
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—g-—% —E——f
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT
0 to less than 2 months ZZEPR2(EA 83.6 70.9
2 to less than 6 months 2= Li6fA A 1.3 17.1
6 to less than 12 months 6EPM12A 2.1 31.3
12 months and more 1288 RIAE 39.8 11.5
126.8 130.8
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A M RR M ()

29 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

The Group’s credit terms for the contracting business are
negotiated with and entered into under normal commercial
terms with its trade customers. Various group companies have
different credit policies depending on the requirements of their
markets and the businesses which they operate. Retention
money receivables in respect of contracting services are
settled in accordance with the terms of respective contracts.

For alternative energy business, the Group allows a credit
period of 30 days to its trade customers. Trade receivables
that are less than 30 days past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
HK$21.7 million (2011: HK$18.4 million) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to the government subsidies on the
electricity tariff which have not been allocated and distributed.
Based on past experience and industry practice, these tariff
premiums are generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date
of the sales recognition. As at 31 December 2012, there were
HK$19.8 million (2011: HK$3.7 million) trade receivables on
alternative energy business being past due over 12 months.
No impairment has been provided for these receivables as the
balances are not in dispute and there is no indication that the
amount will not be collectible.

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as
the Group has a large number of customers.

Amounts due from related companies are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The balances are
mainly denominated in Renminbi.

Depending on the line of business, trade receivables that are
less than 12 months past due are not considered impaired. As
at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$39.8 million
(2011: HK$11.5 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. No other receivables were past due
or impaired.

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$12.4 million
(2011: HK$11.6 million) were impaired. A total provision of
HK$12.4 million (2011: HK$11.6 million) was made against the
receivables at the year and date.

29

FEW AR E b FE W R (%)
MisE : ()

(a)

(&)

REBERBESNEB 2 EREGRTRR—
REXGREEZITFPBENER - &
SERARZEERREEBREMSHERR
P EXIEME - BRRERNREZIE
WRE REIIRIBER M BN ZIRREE -

REREREEME  A5EREE
SRR BB ZEEL - B
D30 B 2 FE U BR SR AR 1E R E o
R-_E——F+_-_A=+—H8 " EK
B 5% 21,700,000 T (=T — — £F :
18,400,000/ 7T ) E @ BAE R R(E It
FRIE T5BE R K 7 BE Rk 35 /O BRI 2B B 4
Bh o ERNBELHRRITEEN - HEEE
HE— MR EERR B T6=12(8A
St e R=FE—=F+=A=+—H ' &
EEAHBBI12HEA 2 ERERELE
W BR 3% 419,800,000/ 7T (=B ——4F :
3,700,000 7T ) ° AR &R H R AEfA]
F TEDSBEREESETSRK
[B] - ARSIl A T Uk S R KRR IE 1 R (A
1o

BEARIRES  AAKERP RET
D MEERRYEEEER AR

FEURBERSE R B 2 SRR BRI - BRI
EEEERD - HELTEUARKEE -

RIEBBEMmME  M12@EAREIHZ
JEWRBRFBERE R=2T—=—F+=
B=+—HBH EAfiEEREZERK
AR 7X 439,800,000/ 0 (=& — — 4
11,500,00078 7T ) ° It 5 BR R B 8 7 37 4%
TR 2B RFEAR - HibEk
SR AR B sk B RE o

R-E——F+_-_A=+—H " A&
12,400,000/ 75 (=& ——4 : 11,600,000
PEIT) 2 EWER U BRRE c REEAR -
& U R E 1E B 5 & ££12,400,0007%8 7T
(=ZZ——% : 11,600,000/ 7T ) °

ERRRER)ERAT
T FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE R M (&)
29 Trade and other receivables (continued) 29 JEURBRFN N H 1 FE WK (4)
Notes: (continued) Mizx : (&)
(d) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other (d) ZAEEZEKERRREMEY R REE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: A THIEEEEHE -
2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 9.9 43.6
Renminbi AR 576.2 382.2
US dollars E 0.1 -
586.2 425.8
(e) There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the Group’s (e) ANEMEBEMET70,700,000/8T(—F——
trade receivables with carrying values of HK$70.7 million (2011: 4 : 44,100,000 7T) 2 & F R E
HK$44.1 million) (Note 35). HIR ARG —HIRFT R (FTFE35) -
() Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables () FEUBES R EREES T ¢
are as follows:
2012 2011
—E-——F —ZT——%F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT
At 1 January R—HA—8 11.6 19.0
Currency translation differences ERREEE 0.1 0.4
Reclassification from provision for EEMERTEREETH A
other receivables - 0.4
Provision for/(write back of provision for) JHfEEEE#E /(BEEE)
impairment losses 1.6 (0.4)
Trade receivables written off during F NS AT IR E 2 e R K
the year as uncollectible (0.9) (7.8)
At 31 December R+=RA=+—H 12.4 11.6
(g) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the (9) REESEHzZEaEERRA LASEE
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. Wk 2z BRTEME o ZN6R (B 07 S 45 5 (] 3 47
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. MEER ©
(h) At 31 December 2011, non-current receivable was secured, (hy MRZZE——F+_A=+—H " ¥rind
receivable within 14 months, with the rate of interest ranging U AR E - N 1418 A AYWE B 5
from 6% — 20% per annum. The balance was received in 2012. FMEENF6%E20% 1 - HHREN=Z
— IR -
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A M RR M ()

30 Construction contracts in progress 30 EEIREN
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B-—fF —T——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BEBTT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable & £IR N2 #E R FE (R 3% A
profits recognised less provision for A R EE R
foreseeable losses 1,568.9 1,568.1
Progress payments received and B R M E TR
receivable (1,563.5) (1,559.1)
5.4 9.0
Representing: Rk :
Gross amounts due from customers for st ARUERT R EMEKT 2
contract works included in trade and WP &N IIRFIBEE
other receivables (Note 29) (Mi5E29) 5.4 9.0
31 Restricted cash 31 ZFRFERE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBR BEBT
Restricted cash represents: XRHREHE
Deposits placed with banks IR Z RIRIT 217
- for securing banking facilities granted to —HAEEETHHEER
certain buyers of properties of the Group BRRITRE 5.2 5.1
— for securing performance bonds — AU B ARE 1.1 1.1
— for securing certain bank loans — G E TRITER - 165.1
Escrow account relating to an AERPPR—BERER
alternative energy project EH 1.0 1.0
Escrow account relating to pre-sale AERP IR —IBEYFEERE
deposits held for a property resettlement SR EER
scheme 56.1 69.0
Escrow accounts relating to deposits held for  FEERE ¥ M Z B EERE
property development projects tElZET 250.7 422
314.1 273.5
ERRER(ER)BRLE 169
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32 Cash and cash equivalents 32 BHERBESZEEY
Group Company
r&E NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-CF —E——F ZB-ZF —Z——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT BEHBT BEATT
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEN
comprises the following: BENTEE
Cash at bank and on hand RIRFHERE 1,144.6 2,339.2 2.1 6.6
Short-term bank deposits RHSRAER 1,487.4 1,049.3 91.4 403.0
2,632.0 3,388.5 93.5 409.6
Less: Restricted cash (Note 31) o XREHE S (HEE31) (314.1) (273.5) - =
2,317.9 3,115.0 93.5 409.6
Group Company
iS4 NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —F—F —B-=F —F—F
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEER BEABTT BEER BEAT
Cash and cash equivalents and RekReEEIR
restricted cash XRHHES
(a) Placedin banks inthe PRC:  (a) RHEEHRITEE :
- denominated in Renminbi —DAREEE 1,393.1 1,468.3 - =
- denominated in —-UEBTHEE
Hong Kong dollars 279.2 832.5 - -
- denominated in US dollars —UETRE 558.3 320.6 - =
(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) REBRBEITHEE
- denominated in Renminbi —DAREEE 301.1 438.2 91.4 376.9
- denominated in ~UWEBTHEE
Hong Kong dollars 98.5 326.4 1.6 32.1
- denominated in US dollars —UETRE 1.8 2.5 0.5 0.6
2,632.0 3,388.5 93.5 409.6
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RE R M (&)
32 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 32 RekReEEBYW@)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REERZERFERMT
follows:
2012 2011
—E--f —Z2——F
HK$ uss RMB HK$ US$ RMB
B EYH AR® BT ETT ARE
0.01%- 0.71%- 0.35%- 0.01%- 0.50%-
Short-term bank deposits & H3R1T77 5% 2.15% 0.81% 3.15% 2.68% - 3.10%
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RBERHEYS s Eas e/ A XA
is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances stated IR RIB{TASEERE ©
above
The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company AREBRARAREARITERZREIEH
have original maturities of three months or less. ABZEAHIAT -
33 Share capital 33 B
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
BRin & E Rl
Note (Million) HK$ Million
B =t (B8) BEBT
Authorised EE
At 1 January and RZE——F—H—-BK
31 December 2011, +T-RA=1+—HBURK
1 January and “E-——F—f—-H~K
31 December 2012 +=-B=+—H 30,000.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid ERITRAE
At 1 January 2011 n—E——F—HF—H 10,379.7 103.8
Exercise of bonus warrants “407” TTRAL MR AR R [407 ] (a) 353.5 35
Exercise of bonus warrants “492” TTRAL MR AR R [492] (b) 100.4 1.0
At 31 December 2011 —Z——%+ZH=+—H 10,833.6 108.3
At 1 January 2012 Rn-Z——%—HF—H 10,833.6 108.3
Issue of scrip dividend shares BT E R D (c) 408.3 4.1
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_fF=+—H 11,241.9 112.4
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A M RR M ()

33 Share capital (continued)
Notes:

172

(a)

(b)

On 22 May 2009, the Company issued 825,481,451 warrants
(Warrant Code: 407) on the basis of 1 warrant for every 10
existing shares of the Company held by the shareholders
(“bonus warrants “407””). The holders of bonus warrants “407”
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 22 May 2009 to
21 May 2011 for fully paid shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.40 per share (subject to adjustment).

On 30 October 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants
“407" was adjusted to HK$0.36 per share as a result of the
issue of bonus shares.

On 30 April 2010, the subscription price of bonus warrants
“407" was further adjusted to HK$0.313 per share as a result of
the issue of bonus shares.

353,512,034 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
upon the exercise of 353,512,034 units of bonus warrants “407”
for the period from 1 January 2011 to 21 May 2011 and the
outstanding bonus warrants “407” expired on 21 May 2011.

On 9 June 2010, the Company issued 942,466,221 warrants
(Warrant Code: 492) on the basis of 1 warrant for every 10
existing shares of the Company held by the shareholders
(“bonus warrants “492”"). The holders of bonus warrants “492”
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 9 June 2010 to
8 June 2011 for fully paid shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.50 per share (subject to adjustment).

100,390,086 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
upon the exercise of 100,390,086 units of bonus warrants “492”
for the period from 1 January 2011 to 8 June 2011 and the
outstanding bonus warrants “492” expired on 8 June 2011.
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&N Y

BYEE

(a)

RIZZNFERA-+=ZB * XAFEK
RERFBF1I0BRARBIRERMHATEE1H

R 2 EE - 3817825,481,45115 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

33 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

The Company offered to its shareholders a scrip dividend
alternative under which the shareholders could elect to receive
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in lieu of cash dividend during
the following special cash dividend declaration and ordinary
shares were issued in accordance with the scrip dividend
scheme.

All ordinary shares issued during the year ranked pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares.

33 A @)
BeE - (4%)
(c) AEEMEBREBHUBKENERE &
I - BRERTA T3 B3R & A B B KR Al &
BUEEKR00BE TN EBERERERK
B ERRRBARK ST -

FBEFARITEBREMA T EERER
D Z B RFHAL

Number of
new ordinary Issue price
shares issued per share Date of Issue
B#fT
EERYE BRETE BTRH
HK$
BT
19 July 2012
Second special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 —T—CF
HE-Z——$1T-A=T-RLEEEE-RFHAIRE 172,213,833 0.323 +H+IE
24 December 2012
First special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 —T——F&
HEZZ S+ A=T—-HIEFEE-REIRE 236,083,717 0.292 +=ZA=1+mAH
Total scrip dividend shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2012
HECZ-——H+t-A=t-RIFEE#TURRERHBE 408,297,550

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or
officers, managers, directors or consultants of any members of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(iii) ~ the nominal value of a share.

(d) ARARRAEEEMEMKERAFHEKE
BRZER SMTRABKEIZAER -
132 - ERYERR LB

TREERZLRATERSE

()  BHRIRE B ETER AT E B ®RE
RATSIMTHE

(i) BHEERLASHAEASXEE

Bt 32 BT & B BB R A5 F T
B K

(i)  MRfHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)

33 Share capital (continued) 33 BA&(#)
Notes: (continued) Mizx : (&)
(d)  (continued) (d) (#&)

174

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option
shall remain open for acceptance for a period of ten business
days from the date of offer and a consideration of HK$1 must be 1ETTHRE -
paid upon acceptance.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

BREANKH B PR tFRESEA
BERN IR M IR 2 BUE MR ATTE - 12
ERHZERET BRRE AR HEE
FAMRMAEBERFRER - BRRASN

WARTTE Z RSN B & B hNE 71977

their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EEZFFHMNT :
Average
exercise price
in HK dollar Number of
per share options
R
BITITEE BREHE
At 1 January 2011 R=ZF—F—H—H 1.145 257,084,000
Granted Es dau 0.360 10,000,000
Lapsed LR 0.997 (82,005,000)
At 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=-—A=+—H 1.168 185,079,000
At 1 January 2012 R-EBE——F—H—H 1.168 185,079,000
Adjustment for issue of scrip BATUARRMR BRR D 2 A
dividend shares - 17,777,601
Lapsed KK 1.255 (12,574,255)
At 31 December 2012 R=ZF——F+=-A=+—H 1.053 190,282,346

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted

average remaining contractual life of approximately 4.17 years.
41474 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)

33 Share capital (continued) 33 BA&(#)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (48)
(d)  (continued) (d) (#&)

R-F——FR-_F——F+_A=1—

Number of outstanding share options at 31 December 2012 and

2011 are as follows: HisARITEZ BRENAT
Exercise price At At
per share 31 December 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) 2012 2011
BRTKE R-F-ZF R-F——%F
Riti A T (K®¥) +=HA=t-H +=A=t-H
(HKS)
()
15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016 1.066 7,630,858 7,774,250
“EERET-ATAA “IT G+ RTRABEZT—~FTZA+THEA
15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016 1.066 12,962,473 13,582,250
ZEERETZRATER “EZN\FTA+REREZZR—~ETZATHEA
15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016 1.066 12,995,804 14,822,500
“EERFtZA+EA “EENETZRTRABEZZ—"FTZATHA
3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017 1.726 6,664,518 6,050,000
“ZZHEL A=A “ERET_ATRBEE—t+F+AZR
3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017 1.726 3,332,259 3,025,000
“ZZ+F+A=A “TEN\F+-RATRAZ-F—t&tAZA
3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017 1.726 3,332,259 3,025,000
“Z2+45t+A=H “EENETZRTREE-Z—tFtAZH
1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018 1.242 19,860,238 19,360,000
“ZE\$_RA—-H “ETNF_R-HE-E-/\$-A=t—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018 1.242 29,790,371 29,040,000
“ZZ)\f-A—-H “E-ZF-_f-HE-_F-/\F—A=1—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018 1.242 49,650,633 48,400,000
“ZZ/\F-A—-H “Z——5-f-HAE-2-)\f-A=t—H
1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013 0.443 6,609,440 6,000,000
—Z-TENA-H —E——FNR-BEZZ-=F/\R=1+—H
1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2014 0.443 9,914,160 9,000,000
“Z-TFNA-H “ENA-BEZZ-MENA=T-H
1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2015 0.443 16,523,601 15,000,000
“Z-ZFNA-H “Z-=5NR-REZZ-RAFN\A=T—-H
10 June 2011 10 June 2012 to 9 June 2014 0.327 2,203,146 2,000,000
“T—4%5~ATH ZE-—FXATHE-Z-WFE~ANA
10 June 2011 10 June 2013 to 9 June 2015 0.327 3,304,720 3,000,000
—T——%xAt+H — =& ATHEE-A%F, ANA
10 June 2011 10 June 2014 to 9 June 2016 0.327 5,507,866 5,000,000
_E/;\)EH'E EE/\ﬁ‘l‘Ei_? /\i/\ﬂj’LE
Total # 190,282,346 185,079,000
Number of options exercisable AI7T{E M EH R 164,946,159 151,079,000

Other details of the share option schemes are set out in the
Report of the Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
34 Reserves 34 f#E
Group rE
Capia Capltal Employes Available- Retained
Share reduction ~ redemption Contributed Other ~ share-based for-sale eamings/
premium eserve eserve Capltal surplus Teserve  compensation Exchange  nvestments  (Accumulated
(Note a) (Notec) (Note b) Tesenve (Note d) (Notee) Teserve reserve reserve [osses) Total
RORE  RAdERE A1EDRE SRS EhiE ARG aitE  REEH/
(Kizka) (Hiske) (o) Enik (Kiskd) (Wite)  EEMoHE EifE RERE  (ZnER) £
HKSMilion ~ HKSMilon  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilon  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKS Millon
EERTL BERTL BERT BERT AEET AERT AERT AERT AERT BERT EEET
Balance at 1 January 2011 RT——5-A-ALkk 9,635.9 594.1 146 66.4 4162 8.1 142 15424 (01) (1533) 12,3985
Fair valug gain on avallable-for-sale i HESRER,
financial assets AFENE - - - - - - - - 10 - 10
Curency ranlation difierences  EX£EE - - - - - - = 4897 (02) = 4395
Employee share option benefls B ERERT - - - - - - 31 - - - 3
Transfer between reserves HREER (1,1340) = = = 11340 = = = = = =
Evercise of bonus warants RAIARES 1563 - - - - - - - - - 1563
Release ofreserves BRER
- upon disposal of subsidiaries -~ HERBATE - - - - - - - (202.7) - - (2027)
- upon disposal of an assoclated  —HE-TEAATE
company - - - (133) - - - (116.2) - - (1295)
- upon laps of share options.~ ~RERERIE: - - - - - - (139) = = 139 =
Changes in ownershipinterests in -~ RSB REHHERT 2
subsidiaries that do notresultin -~ EAEXZBERER
aloss of contol arising fom e~ %511
following factors
- exercise of alisted subsidian's  ~EASEAE-RLT
bonus warrants, distibuted by~ HBATZIHRES
the Group - - - - (31.0) - - - - - (31.0)
- conversion of preference shares - SRKEEHRA-HHE
and disribution of certain A TERBARRAR
shares of a subsidiary held EThf
by the Group - - - - (3826) - - - - - (3826)
2011 frstspecial cash cvidend ~ ~B——FERERRRS - - - - (1083) - - - - - (1083)
Distibuton of proceeds fomte ~~ F~2#ERBRARRLE
scle of equity inerest of asubsiciary  —EHBAARTELRFE
toanon-controling sharcholder 38 - - - (59) - - - - - - (59)
Profitfor the year KEERT) - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Balance at 31 December 2011 RIE——F{-f=t-BEs 88582 594.1 146 472 10283 8.1 63.4 1,663.2 07 1019 123797
Retaingd by: TR :
Company and subsidiaries FRRRKELR 8,858.2 594.1 146 472 10283 8.1 63.4 13125 07 (112) 11,2159
Associated companies BEQ - - - - - - - 781 - 7] 204
Jointly controlled entities AE07 - - - - - - - 2126 - 660.8 9334
8,858.2 5041 146 472 10283 8.1 634 1,663.2 07 1019 123719.7
Representing; fi%:
Reserves at 31 December 2011 I-E—E+-A=+-Hzkk 122714
2011 proposed speciel cash diidend ~S——EREAIREHRE 1083
12,3197
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34 Reserves (continued)

Group (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

34 fEEE)
ZF% (%)

Capital Capital Employee Available-
Share reduction  redemption Contributed Other  share-based for-sale
premium reserve reserve Capital surplus feserve  compensation Exchange  investments Retained
(Note a) (Note c) (Note b) reserve (Note d) (Note ) reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
ROGE  BRHARE BAREGE #Az% HEE  UBAH e
(Ka) (Kie) (Kb) FUs (Hd) (Wde)  EBHEHRE EfiR RERR REEA 2]
HKS Million ~~ HKSMillion ~ HK$ Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million
AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER AEER BEERL BEEL (15 BERL
Balance at 1 Janvary 2012 RN-E-2§-A-AEk 8,858.2 5944 146 42 1,083 8.1 634 1,663.2 07 1019 123797
Falr value gain on avalableforsele. AEtHESREEL
financil assefs DTENE - - - - - - - - 18 - 18
Curency ranlation difierences B AEEE - - - - - - - 93 - - 9.3
Issue of scrip dividend shares ~ ZfTHREERA 1205 - - - - - - - - - 1205
Employee share opton benefits  E 2R IEER - - - - - - 2 - - - 21
Transfer befween reserves GEEER (800.0) - - - (989) - - - - 4989 -
Release ofreserves BRER
- upon disposal of subsidiaries -~ ENBATE - - - - - - - (287) - - (287)
- upon apse of share options -~ PR IE - - - - - - (86) - - 86 -
2011 second special cash dvidend  ~F——EE-REIESRE - - - - (1083) - - - - - (1083)
2012 fist special cash dvidend  ~F-—FERERELRE - - - - (2204) - - - - - (2204)
Profitfor the year KEFRR - - - - - - - - - 1033 1033
Balance at 31 December 012 W=F-—F+=f=1-ALH 8,178.7 594.1 146 412 601.0 8.1 56.9 1,7348 25 1127 12,350.6
Retained by: FHRE:
Company and subsidiaries KATRHELA 8,178.7 594.1 146 472 601.0 8.1 56.9 1,362.1 25 3034 11,168.6
Associated companies BELT - - - - - - - 840 - 1508 848
Joiniy contrlled enties AENE - - - - - - - 887 - 6585 w12
8,178.7 594.1 146 472 601.0 8.1 56.9 1,7348 25 1127 12,350.6
Representing; fi&:
Reserves at 31 December 2012 WoB——E+-A=1-RA7EE 12,3506
BERERR(ER)BRAR 177

T FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
34 Reserves (continued) 34 f#iEE)
Company ZNA
Employee
Share  Contributed  share-based
premium surplus  compensation Exchange  Accumulated
(Note a) (Note d) reserve reserve losses Total
ke gABE  LRMXA -
(Ha) (Witd) EEMERE Eif#E i ER 2
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million
BEER BEER BE%En BE%n BERR BERR
Balance at 1 January 2011 R=E——E-F-RER 9,835.9 342.3 74.2 430.5 (460.0) 10,222.9
Currency translation differences EANEEE = = = 4215 = 4215
Employee share option benefits [EEBERER - - 3.1 - - 31
Transfer between reserves A (1,134.0) 1,1340 - - - -
Release of reserve upon the BREXVERR R
lapse of share options - - (13.9) - 139 -
Exercise of bonus warrants TR 156.3 - - - - 156.3
Distribution of certain shares of MEARE-EHBAFZETRA
a subsidiary of the Company - (210.0) - - - (210.0)
2011 first special cash dividend “ES-—FERERERE - (108.9) - - - (108.3)
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (551.6) (551.6)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=F-—F+-R=1-REH 8,858.2 1,158.0 63.4 8520 (997.7) 99339
Representing: f%:
Reserves at 31 December 2011 REZ—F+-B=1-RzfE 9,825.6
2011 proposed special cash dividend ~ —E——SREERHLRE 108.3
9,933.9
Balance at 1 January 2012 RE——5-F—-HER 8,858.2 1,158.0 63.4 852.0 (997.7) 9,933.9
Currency translation differences EAMEEE - - - 748 - 748
Issue of scrip dividend shares HIRRERA 120.5 - - - - 120.5
Employee share option benefits ESBERERT - - 21 - - 21
Transfer between reserves A (800.0) (98.9) - - 898.9 -
Release of reserve upon the ERELUE SRR
lapse of share options - - (8.6) - 8.6 -
2011 second special cash dividend I -EE-NERELRE - (108.3) - - - (108.3)
2012 first special cash dividend “T-CEERRIRERE - (220.1) - - - (220.1)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (82.5) (82.5)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE-—E+-f=1+-R&H 8,178.7 730.7 56.9 926.8 (172.7) 9,7204
Representing: & :
Reserves at 31 December 2012 RoE——F+-f=+-RHyEk 9,720.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

34 Reserves (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The application of the capital redemption reserve account
is governed by section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

On 30 September 2005, by virtue of special resolutions of the
Company with the sanction of an order of the High Court of the
Hong Kong SAR, the nominal value of all the issued and paid up
capital was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 each, thereby
reducing the issued and paid up capital of the Company by
HK$2,305.1 million and such amount was transferred to the
Capital Reduction Reserve Account.

By a special resolution passed on 19 October 2012, the share
premium account was reduced by HK$800.0 million. The credit
thus arising was transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company. The Company applied its contributed surplus
as enlarged to set-off and eliminate its accumulated losses
as at 30 June 2012 and to reduce against special dividend in
2012.

By a special resolution passed on 13 October 2011, the
share premium account was reduced by HK$1,134.0 million.
The credit thus arising was transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. The Company applied its
contributed surplus as enlarged to set-off and eliminate its
entire accumulated losses.

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary entered
into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with the Group’s
non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of the alternative
energy business (“Target Business”). Based on the S&P,
the purchase consideration is settled by way of issuing and
allotting 1,385,170,068 convertible preference shares by such
non-wholly-owned subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the
S&P date, was HK$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the
acquisition was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HK$853.8 million. As
the Target Business remains as the Group’s subsidiary upon
the disposal, such disposal transaction is considered as a
transaction with non-controlling shareholders. As a result, the
Group has recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$8.1 million and an increase in other reserve in equity of
the same amount.

34 fEE#)

B et

(a)

B aERBEZARE-NN\—2QF
EERTARFREE -

BEAREOFER BAZ BB ARIEHE
AQHIEFT B ©

RZZZRFNAA=1H  BRELEER
RSN i I NI S DS
= FEERBETREGRAZEERER
1.008 TR ZE0.018 T » At » XA A
B 817 R AR IR AR 4> 2,305,100,0007%
T ARSEERERAHRFHER

BBAR-_T——F+A+NBEBZES
R - % ERE R 4800,000,000
B AMEAZ CHECEREARAAZ
BAEBIE - AAGRBEDBAZHBAR
HARKEEMER =T —=—F A=1
Bz 22 BEENR - ——F 55|

BB °

FAN_ZET-——4+AT=B8B
ZHEHRZER  KROEBEERERD
1,134,000,0008 T * AMELEZEHEE
BREEARBZHABGBER - ARRKE
ERAZHARSAIEE R 2 F
REHER -

R-ZE—ZTFRA+=-B AEE2E
WEBAREANEBIEZENWE QA
VEERZ(EEH=E])  HEER
REREB(TEEEK]) - REEE®HR
# BENEHRFEZEWNBRRRE
1,385,170,068 IR AT A R E L AR 2 5
- REEHZEB  BEREQAFES
1,018,100,000/& 7T - R=F—ZF )\ A
=+—8 WK=K - mAEETRREL
% 2 A 18 4853,800,000 7C ~ A B
EEFREHERNAEAEEZHBEAR -
A B E R SR A IR AR R 2 R
5 - Bt - NEBC ERIEERAERS R
8,100,000 7T + il 48 & H 2 EL ftb {3 5 Al
EINERSEE -

ERRRER)ERAT
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Borrowings — Group

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35 ER—AFXKHEH

2012 2011
—F-=F —
HKS Million  HK$ Million
BHEBAT BEAT
Non-current FEFE
Bank borrowings RITIEEX 1,926.7 2,455.8
Other loans H &5 - 54.2
Finance lease liabilities MmEREEAE 114.0 84.3
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEERRAR R E K 51.4 396.6
2,092.1 2,990.9
Current mE
Bank borrowings RITIER 879.5 684.8
Other loans H B - 39.9
Finance lease liabilities BEME \E1 9.8 5.8
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEERBRE 10.4 9.5
899.7 740.0
Total borrowings B M5 2,991.8 3,730.9
In 2012, the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by RZT——F AEEZRITERBAE
the investment properties, prepaid land lease payments, ErHEYE  BNTHEER - WX -
properties, plant and equipment, toll road income, properties HeS N FE  WEBRKKA - (EHEZY
held for sale and trade receivables of the Group (Notes 16, FREWERR(MIEE16 - 17 ~ 18~ 19+ 27

17, 18, 19, 27 and 29), certain of which are also secured by
the corporate guarantee provided by the Company or certain

of its subsidiaries.

In 2011, the Group’s bank borrowings were secured by
the items mentioned above except for properties held for
sale (Note 27), and also properties under development and

pledged deposits (Note 20 and 31).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A ERRME (&)
35 Borrowings — Group (continued) 35 fER—AKEE#)
(a) Atthe balance sheet date, the Group’s bank borrowings (a) E“%i@i B AEBEZRITERRE
and other loans were repayable as follows: M ERZERBOT ¢
Secured Unsecured
bank borrowings other loans Total
BEARTER ERRHMER am
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
~%--f “T——% -%--f “T—F “F--f “TF
HKS Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
ABBT FBEET BEAR BE8T HERRT  BEAT
Within one year —£R 879.5 684.8 - 39.9 879.5 724.7
In the second year F-F 181.2 505.7 - 208 181.2 526.5
In the third to fifth year F=EFRF 703.6 672.6 - 26.6 703.6 699.2
Atter the fifth year hFEE 1,041.9 1,277.5 - 6.8 1,041.9 1,284.3
2,806.2 3,140.6 - 94.1 2,806.2 3,234.7
Bank borrowings Other loans Total
RITER Htt &R L
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
~%--f %% -%--fF “T—F “F--F T F
HKS Million HK$ Million  HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
ABBT FAEET BEBR BE%T HERRT  BEAT
Wholl repayable within five years AR TLE R % 2 EE 1,030.5 936.3 - = 1,030.5 936.3
Wholly repayable after fve years R B4 2 2HEE 1,775.7  2,204.3 - 94.1 1,775.7  2,298.4
2,806.2 3,140.6 - 94.1 2,806.2 3,234.7
(b) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate (b) AEBEBXRRBEFRZFEXE
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end ketiEFHEERRIT
of the reporting period are as follows:
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEERX AEBT
6 months or less 61E A AT 2,540.3 3,221.1
6 — 12 months 62 121E A 451.5 509.8
2,991.8 3,730.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M ERER M ()
35 Borrowings — Group (continued) 35 fER—AKEE#)
(c) The Group has finance lease liabilities at the balance (c) MEEBR AEEsmAEAMEERE
sheet date as follows: I N
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT
Gross finance lease liabilities BEREAERRE
— minimum lease payments —RRHEERIEA
Within one year —FK 17.3 11.6
In the second year F_4F 17.8 11.9
In the third to fifth year F=FFRF 56.8 37.9
After the fifth year hFi& 69.3 61.1
161.2 122.5
Future finance charges on MEHEZRKRMEEH
finance leases (37.4) (32.4)
Present value of finance MEHEEE2HE
lease liabilities 123.8 90.1
The present value of finance lease REFEBFEZRENT :
liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —&FR" 9.8 5.8
In the second year F_F 11.0 6.6
In the third to fifth year F=ZEFRF 41.0 24.9
After the fifth year hFEI& 62.0 52.8
123.8 90.1
(d) The loans from non-controlling shareholders are (d) BIFERRECERAEERKER
unsecured and interest free. The loans that are not BB T@RrRRk+=—EARNE
expected to be repayable within twelve months are BEZERMOEAERDEE - &
classified as non-current liabilities. The balance is BEZUAREETHE -

mainly denominated in Renminbi.
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mEMBHRRME(E)
35 Borrowings — Group (continued) 35 ER—A&EHE)
(e) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date (e) REEHZERFZRMT :

were as follows:

2012 2011
=EB-=F e
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT ARY BIT AR
Bank borrowings HRITIEK 0.96%-3.28% 6.22%-8.00% 0.87%-3.33% 5.94%-8.65%
(f)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated () BRZEEAEETIIEEE :
in the following currencies:
2012 2011
s —E——%F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABR BEABT
Hong Kong dollars ABIT 80.3 253.4
Renminbi AR & 2,911.5 3,477.5
2,991.8 3,730.9
(g) The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: (9) AEEETIRBDABHREE:
2012 2011
=F-=F =%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEAT
Floating rate TR ER =
— expiring within one year —R—F A 204.9 -
— expiring beyond one year —R—F&EH 2,854.5 300.6
3,059.4 300.6
(h) The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current (h) SERBERZEABEEQTERS

borrowings are approximately the same.
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A ERRME (&)
36 Trade and other payables 36 ENERRRHEMEMNK
Group Company
by | YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-CF —FF —2--F —FF
HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEETRL BEAT BEETRL BEAT
Trade payables JERER 59.3 25.7 - =
Retention payables R RE 5 121.5 60.9 - -
Other payables and accruals — EffEff 5 & &zt £ F 1,401.5 1,044.0 10.9 14.1
1,582.3 1,130.6 10.9 14.1
(@) At 31 December 2012, retention payables for property (@) RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H" ' &
development projects and contracts in progress amounting to MYEZRREBEEREETIRGHNZ
HK$121.5 million (2011: HK$66.7 million) were included in non- JFE 1SR B 5K &8 121,500,000 7T ( =
current payables and current other payables, depending on T ——% : 66,700,000/ 7T) 2 7 Al
their expected date of payment. RFBEMNRE - 3 BIERE)FEN
R E AR ENET K o
(b) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables at (b) MEHR  AEEEMNERZERER
year end was as follows: DT :
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT
0 to less than 2 months ZE D216 A 43.4 6.2
2 to less than 6 months 2Z DR61ME A 2.6 7.2
6 to less than 12 months 6= L1218 A 3.9 2.2
12 months and more 1218 A &A= 9.4 10.1
59.3 25.7
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A ERRME (&)
36 Trade and other payables (continued) 36 EFNERRRHEMEBEMNRKE)
(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (c) AEEEMNERZFLEMENRZIE
payables are denominated in the following currencies: AEERATERSIE :
2012 2011
—E-C—F T ——%F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEABR BEAT
Hong Kong dollars ABIT 114.5 69.6
Renminbi AR 1,207.3 799.4
US dollars ETT 260.5 261.6
1,582.3 1,130.6
(d) As of 31 December 2012, the fair value of financial (d) R—ZT——F+-_A=+—H &
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is HK$260.5 AEEEEERIEZEREEZ
million (2011: HK$261.6 million). A {E A 260,500,000 T (= E
——4% : 261,600,000/ 7T) °
37 Deferred income tax liabilities 37 EEZEMBHAR
The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and ERERZELEFSEHaBENEZESNT :
movements are as follows:
Group
58
Fair value  Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment land lease
properties payments  Other items Total
RENE Bt
AYERE HEHHRE HitEH g

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATL BEAT BEATL

At 1 January 2011 W=E——F—f—H 678.4 436.9 25 1,117.8
Currency translation differences BEHAEEE 40.1 185 - 58.6
Transfer out for disposal of a subsidiary &N BAREE

(Note 42(b)) (HizE42(b)) (24.6) - - (24.6)
Net of amortisation capitalised in properties REEDNECEAL

under development ZEHENR - (6.0) - (6.0)
(Credited)/charged to income statement ~ RBRR(GHA)/H1B

(Note 12) (KizE12) (26.1) (5.1) 1.4 (29.8)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1—H 667.8 444.3 3.9 1,116.0
At 1 January 2012 n-E——%—f—H 667.8 444.3 3.9 1,116.0
Currency translation differences EBEEE 73 34 0.2 10.9
Net of amortisation capitalised in properties REEDNECEAL

under development ZEHENR - (6.1) - (6.1)
Charged/(credited) to income statement ~ FMB&RME/ (Gt A)

(Note 12) (MizE12) 6.8 (5.4) 45 5.9
At 31 December 2012 W=E-—#+-A=1—H 681.9 436.2 8.6 1,126.7
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A M RR M ()

37 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$399.3 million (2011: HK$358.9 million) in respect of tax
losses of HK$1,899.4 million (2011: HK$1,704.1 million) to
carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses
have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$1,064.6
million (2011: HK$914.8 million) which will expire at various
dates up to and including 2017 (2011: 2016).

38 Derivative liability

A subsidiary of the Group allotted and issued 300,000,000
convertible preference shares at HK$0.65 each on 23
November 2010 to STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd (“STAR”), a
subsidiary of TPG. STAR may at any time during 4 years
following the completion of the initial investment require the
subsidiary to issue to them up to a maximum of 260,000,000
additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per
each preference share. Derivative liability represented the
subscription right granted to STAR, and was fair valued at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

39 Commitments — Group
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet

37 EEFBHAEEE)

fii /5 7] & ﬁaﬂfk;léizu%;éiﬁﬁljﬁé’;ﬁ%ﬁz
MIEF=SE - AlexdsE s HIEER
E@E@;ﬁkmlﬁﬁé o 7N & B3 B LR 1B
/518 1,899,400,000/ 8 L (=& — —F :
1,704,100,000 7% 7t ) & 33 IE R F7 15 7% 18
& £ 399,300,000/ T (=T — — 4
358,900,000/ 7T ) A fEA5 8 - A LA 85
A& ERFIUA o 255118 & 180 & 5 5
B - 1f£1,064,600,000/8 T (=8 ——4F :
914,800,000/ L) Z i BB IEENEE =
T+ F(ZE——F _E—RNF)UR
BB HAZRE -

38 fTAETAEE
AREB—EHBRARIR T —TF+— H
—+Z=HUER0.65B LATPGH BA
STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd(FSTARJ)@E
% N 3£17300,000,000 % A 2 B% (8 5L BE o
STARAJREM VI Z IR E R 4FNEERE
Kz BRARNEBRELRKRCTSB T2
{8 1% [A) H % 17 5% % 260,000,000 % 58 )M ME
KR - STETEBEREE TSTARZRE
o IWR—_E——FR_E—F+=HA
=+—HFEAFE-

39 EE-FXKH
(a) BEXRERE
REHAEABENRELZER

incurred is as follows: R :
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-=F =
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBER BEBTT
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) X% [# 2 & FHE
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) W% - W23 Rk
— Contracted but not provided for —BEAIAEREE 86.9 99.0
— Authorised but not contracted for — EEEERETA 227.8 229.7
(b) Property development projects (b) MEERIAE
— Contracted but not provided for —BEIRERE®E 2,031.8 1,737.8
2,346.5 2,066.5
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (ii) & &2 5].2 B AXEHE
by the jointly controlled entities
Property development projects YZEERIER
Contracted but not provided for EFTAEARRAEHE
— the Group’s share FEAL BB 1E#BE 1,138.0 1,289.2

186 HKC (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

39 Commitments — Group (continued)
(b) Commitments under operating leases

(c)

The aggregate future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings are as follows:

39 EE-—FEEE)

(b) BELEHEEZEIE
RIEE L1 KB F 2 TR RUEHL
EHEZRKRERSEFMT :

2012 2011

—E——F —F——%F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERX BEBTT

No later than 1 year —F R 12.2 14.4
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FZ R4 19.2 42.9
Later than 5 years BEAF 16.1 47.9
47.5 105.2

Future minimum rental receivable
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable under

(c) REZEEYHESR

REBETAIRBELEHE 2 RAERE

non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: U S @ZE T
2012 2011
—E—C—F —T——%
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BE#ER BEETT
No later than 1 year —FR 92.7 90.3
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —& & H4F 213.4 164.4
Later than 5 years HBiA A F 118.3 68.1
424.4 322.8

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for an initial period
of one to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually increased annually to reflect market rentals. No
contingent rent was recognised in both 2011 and 2012.

ARERBEEMEBREYESLA - A
MM RE—2+F LAFREEES
HMBREN  EEAAGRTIEND
EeMeE—RESF LANRKRTIZHE
® - HRMEHREE_F——FR=F

— AR -
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40

41

188

Contingent liabilities — Group

The Group’s investment property located in Shenzhen, the
PRC is subject to housing facility fund pursuant to ;&3
EESEREETRYEEIEIED ) adopted on 1 November
1994. Contingent liabilities of RMB75.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$94.3 million) (2011: RMB75.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$93.6 million)) arising in this
respect have been assessed by management with reference
to the legal opinion previously obtained. Management have
requested relief from the relevant local government authorities
on the grounds that certain amounts of maintenance costs
were already spent for the purposes as specified under

40 HARAEE

—-AREE

BER—NANAEF+—A—BRERAZCOF
e EmREFERMETEEL) A&
ERRFERY 2 —BRENEZRRE
EARZHMERES - BEEEERZZE
BARBZERAZRRE  FERMELEZ
HARBEARARET75,800,0007T(LHHEE
$ 94,300,000 L) (=T ——F : AR
# 75,800,000 7T ( £) #8 & 72 93,600,000 7
L))  c BREREEEAAXEERE
CHERMEEEMNINETREXNAS
o EEEBECHABERAKEIREE

the requirement of housing facility fund, hence no further RER - ARABEAHESEE—FE
provision for the fund is considered necessary. 1 o
Related party transactions M BBAERXS
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed BRIt SRR AR E RS RS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material related BRON - FNEIM 2 ERNBEH AR ST ¢
party transactions during the year were:
2012 2011
—E——fF —F——F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
Bt & BEEBR BEBTT
Income from supply of water to 3R & [A/8 /8 & /854K 3
Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial ~ BRAE (€8 |)#tK 2 WA
Company Limited (“Jinhai”) (a) 17.9 42.2
Notes: Hit 5

(a) Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited (“Yangpu Water”),
a subsidiary of which 65% equity interest held by the Group,
entered into a water supply agreement and a supplemental
agreement with Jinhai, a company indirectly controlled by
the Oei family, for a period of three years commencing from
1 January 2009. Income from Jinhai was conducted on terms
as set out in the agreement and the supplemental agreement
governing this transaction. On 8 December 2011, the Group
entered into the supplement agreement with Jinhai for
extending the terms of the water supply agreement for a further
three years from 1 January 2012.

The provision of water supply services contemplated under
the water supply agreement and the supplemental agreement
constituted a non-exempt continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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41 Related party transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
Hainan Jinhai Trading (Hong Kong) Company Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a company indirectly controlled by the QOei
family, for the sale of its entire equity interest in Treasure
Island Investment Holdings Limited (“Treasure Island”) at a
cash consideration of HK$162.3 million. Treasure Island, an
directly wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the owner of
65% equity interest of and in Yangpu Water. The Purchaser
also undertook to procure Treasure Island repaying a loan
of HK$92.3 million due to the Group. The transaction was
completed in June 2012.

The transaction constituted a connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In June 2010, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with Genesis Capital Group Limited, one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company, for amending
and supplementing the revolving loan agreement dated 8
October 2007, under which the Company might borrow up to
HK$1,000.0 million for a period of ninety-six months from the
date of the said loan agreement. The loan is unsecured and
carried interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per
annum. The Company is required to repay the loan and accrued
interest thereon at the expiry of the said agreement.

There has been no outstanding loan balance since 31
December 2011.

The transaction did not constitute a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule.

At 31 December 2012, subsidiaries of the Group provided
guarantee in respect of credit facilities granted to certain
associated companies of HK$727.2 million (2011: HK$1,284.3
million).

At 31 December 2012, the Company provided guarantee

in respect of credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries of
HK$250.5 million (2011: HK$496.9 million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule.
Key management compensation

Key management solely represents directors of the Company.

41

BB SR % (&)
FHsE - ()

()

FA - AEEHEFRREEEESZAF
BEEBES(EB)ERARTER])
&M W - AR & X {8 162,300,000 %8
THESINESREERERAE([FF
B 2R AER - BN EANEEZH
BE2EWB AR - AT RHEKE5%RA
s o BEAMMAGHERESHSEBELERAK
& F v §3092,300,000/8 T - ZXHH
T —FRNATK e

FRAXSBEHRRELTRAUEI4AE
EE T ZHERS

REZZT—FFA ' ARAIEARREF
—ZFERFELEEFR ARG MLAET
& LALJ&%@}EE%@%f??t¢+
ANBZBRERBE - Bt - AR
R EE R % B R TN EA ,HHF'E.EJ
A A& %1,000,000,000/ 7T > ZEE
HAEIE - BB TRERFERN2%E
REF S o zK T/EBAL it 175 7% 51 A B B

B X%IT%EUE%FLW MAIE14AE
EE N ZmE

R-ZT——&F+=-A=+—8 ' A&EEHK
%’ATﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%“?ﬂiﬂék
HHE{R 727,200,000 L (—ZF——F :
1,284,300,000& 7T)

RZZB——F+—-A=+—0 AQXAH
THBARAZEEBRERMHER
250,500,000 & 7L ( = & — — F :

496,900,000/ 7T) °

BERRXSANERRE ETHRAIE14AE
EENZERS -

TEEBEREZHE

EEEXRBEEARFES - EfFs

The compensation paid or payable to key management is ENTEEEEEKNE CHENT :
shown as below:
2012 2011
—E-CZfF —T——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBIT
Director’s fees Yok 1.5 1.6
Salary and other benefits e kEMERN 30.4 31.1
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme ER&&HE] 2B EHK 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits PERR R A 25 8.5
34.5 36.3
EBER(EER)GRAE 189
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42 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 42 mEBRERERME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash (a) REBNEKEEKFTARSF
used in operations HZHR
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBER BEETT
Profit before income tax 45 554 A s A 154.2 310.2
Finance income BTN (52.3) (29.0)
Depreciation and amortisation ITE R 126.7 143.8
Employee share option benefits EEMRERT - F5
(Note 11) (B7E11) 2.0 4.7
Fair value adjustments on investment &Y% N F(E A
properties (71.0) 142.0
Provision for impairment losses on BERBEBEEE
assets (Note 7) (B=E7) 20.6 26.0
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMTE AR 2 W (141.8) (280.1)
Gain on disposal of an associated k=l i L A=/
company - (108.0)
Net exchange (gain)/loss PE 5, (Ueas) /B 1B 58 (1.6) 20.2
Gain on disposal of property, plant  HEWZ - #E L RE 2 WS
and equipment (11.1) -
Write down of inventories EATE b - 2.9
Fair value gain on financial assets at 1R AFEEEZEXRTIEREZ
fair value through profit or loss and & RIEENITETLE
derivative liability, net BEAFEKE - FHE (7.1) (69.1)
Recovery of receivables written off W [B] LATE £ [ 88 2
in prior years FEM K (49.1) -
Write back of costs provision [B] H K 7R 2 B (2.5) (180.8)
Finance costs BhE AN 160.5 192.4
Share of profits less losses of FE (R B R B AR B 18
associated companies (148.0) (111.2)
Share of profits less losses of FE1E & &R Rl A RUE 18
jointly controlled entities 2.3 17.6
Operating (loss)/profit before EEESBHAKLE(BR),
working capital changes il (18.2) 86.6
Increase in properties under R AP YFELIN
development (714.3) (434.3)
Increase in prepaid land lease &~ £ b 7R & FAE 0
payments - (2.9)
Decrease in properties held for sale  {ESER B2 WER D 13.7 223.3
Decrease in assets held for sales EREBERD - 51.2
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD(3Em) 1.4 (0.1)
Decrease/(increase) in other non- H fth FER B FE WA B2
current receivables and trade and JFEE L B R e L i, JRE LS 3K
other receivables L, (38n) 97.0 (53.3)
Increase in other non-current EL At FF 7t Eh FE AT FRA &
payables and trade and other FE A BR 5% Fe E A FE A 3R
payables 0 387.2 4.3
Increase in non-controlling FEHE R HE 2 1 AN
interests 1.7 2.4
Cash used in operations EEMAEE (231.5) (122.8)
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42 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

()

HEAHERERME )

(b) HEKMBAR

2012 2011
—E——F —F——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Net assets disposed: Fri E & ESE
Investment properties B - 1,409.8
Prepaid land lease payments B T E K 10.1 =
Intangible assets mEE 3.4 =
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEY 70.8 415
Trade and other receivables JrE LS2 BIR 5 % HL At 8 LB R 42.7 2.2
Property, plant and equipment LE Y 164.0 1.5
Shareholders loan BERER - (203.6)
Deferred taxation RERTE - (24.6)
Trade and other payables JE AT B 5% B HL A JE -1 3K (0.1) (24.6)
Other loans HEMER (93.1) (76.0)
Non-controlling interests IR (61.3) 84.1
136.5 1,210.3
Release of exchange reserve S R PR B B (R 1
upon disposal (23.7) (202.7)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMEB AR Z WS 141.8 280.1
Consideration A= 254.6 1,287.7
Satisfied by: LATRF 5 24
Cash consideration HeRE 254.6 992.0
Receivables FE W RIE - 295.7
254.6 1,287.7

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of subsidiaries

(c) ERLENBATI2BERES
ZEYH N BB

2012 2011

—e--% T %

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERT BEAT

Cash consideration RERE 254.6 992.0
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHi&EH 4 RIS Z(EY (70.8) (41.5)

183.8 950.5
EEER(EZER)BRAT 191
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities
FTEMBAR c BEATRREE AT

TR EZRA/EAEERE_FT——F+—
A=+ HLEEXER JEEFEEYEL

ITEMBAR  BMERRRAE QRS -

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated companies
and jointly controlled entities which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

1 Principal subsidiaries 1 FEREAT
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 iAMAL/EEHER TERB BRTRE/ KEEZ
ERRRRR Effifes ERRxES
2012 211 2012 2011
“E-CF 2% —E-C “F-k
(@ Investment holding
RERR
China Renewable Energy Investment ~ Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HK$23,563,718 HK$23,563,718 54.13% 54.13%
Limitegt= RERE/1E RERR 2856318 28563 718ET
HEBENRRERRA A
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 5% 5%
RiEEERAR: Et/HE BB 1,000,007 1,000 00047
Eden Investment Group Limited+* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst USS1 54.13% 54.13%
FERESERRAR ABRLER/H RERR %7 1%
HKC (China) Management Company  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Provision of management US$8,000,000 US$8,000,000 100% 100%
Limiteda enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000 8,000,000
EERR(hE)ERARAAY nENEEARE RehERUE R
HKC Guilin Expressway Company Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limited: Bh /1 RE#R 1%7 187
BERAENRRARERAA:
HKC Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst US$1 100% 100%
ERERERTE(AR)ARAR:  HBRLES/% E 1£7 1%
HKC Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC Invesiment holding HK$77,113,850 N/A 100% N/A
FARIRERRAR Bh/1E REAR 71,113 850% 7 TR TR
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%
ERER (MR RIARARAR:  BA/HE E 287 28T
HKC Property Investments (China) ~ British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst US$t 100% 100%
Limited+ ABRLES/H RERK 127 (B3

192

FRRRNZRA(RA)ARAF
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENEBRRE#)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
&8 MR/ BEHRR TERR BRfkA/ KEEZ
ERRRRR Rifimas RRRsELR
2012 2011 2012 2011
CE-CF -  Z§-C 3%
(@) Investment holding (continued)
REER(A)
HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limiteg Eh/hE RERR 1%7 1A%
ERRRERERRARRAR):
HKE (Chongging) Holdings Limited**  Briish Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst USS1 100% 100%
RERAEE/HE REfK 1%7 1%L
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited+  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$4 HKS$4 54.13% 54.13%
FEVMR(ERTERARAR  FR/1E RERK 4E7 4B
Hong Kong Construction Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100% 100%
(Interior Contracting) Limied &%/ %8 REER 10,000%7 10,0007
FERR(REIR)BRA
Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000 HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Tuan Po Hu Investment Limited &% /48 RERR 462,000,008 462,000,000%7
BRRRREE DR ARRAR
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Investment holding HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited B RERR 150,000,00087% 150,000,007
ERRR(ER) IRARLA
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited+* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst US$t 100% 100%
BB ARAR RERAKE/HE RERK 1%7 1%L
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HKS2 54.13% 54.13%
Wind Power Limited* E8/mE REBR 2% 2R

FiiR (LT ) RaRRAT:
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENEBRRE#)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 MR/ BEHRR TERR BRfkA/ KEEZ
ERRRRR Rifimas RBRxES
2012 2011 2012 2011
E-CF E-fF  Z§-C “2—-F
(@) Investment holding (continued)
REER(A)
Hong Kong New Energy (SiZi Wang Qill) - Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HK$1,000 54.13% 54.18%
Wind Power Limited* B4/0E RELR 1,007 1,007

FAR(DT I ERARAT

HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) Holdings Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limited* Bh/1E REAR 1#7 &7
FERR( LSRR ERARAR):
Karbony Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
B/ 08 RERR 10,000,007 10,000,000
Noble Quest Enterprise Limited? British Virgin Islands/ Investment holding Usst US$t 100% 100%
Hong Kong REER 157 %7
ARRAHEE/BH
Sinoriver International Limited British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst USS1 54.13% 54.13%
B IERER AR AERAHR/HE RERR 127 1%
The Legation Quarter Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HK$82,105,263 70.9% 70.9%
RAREEEERERAR B4/0E RERR 8210526387 82,105263%T
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEMBAT  BELTAREE AT (E)

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENBAR#E)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 AL/ BEHER TEEH BRfkA/ KEEZ
EEREEDY L (EALECS RBRxES
2012 211 2012 2011
—E-CF “F-k —E-C 5-F
(o) Property investment
NERE
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in shopping mall 1S585,500,000 US$85,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited- enterprise of South Ocean Centre, 85,500,000%7 85,500,000
BARR(hE) IRERARH hESERALE Shenzhen, the PRC
RERERIT
BERONES
Karbony Real Estate Development ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in offices, and US$155,000,000 US$155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limitec* enterprise shopping mall of Shun 155,000,000% 70 155,000,000% T
TREHERE (R ERAR hENEEE O Hing Square, Shenzhen,
the PRC
RERERMERER
HAERES
Sky Universe Limited® British Virgin Islands/PRC  Property holding of 9/F., Tower Usst US$t 100% 100%
LERHE/F 1 South Seas Centre, 157 1#7
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
REUAEBNERDE
Nk
RIAATRALR)ERERARS  PRC Wholy foreign-owned  Investment in property for US$18,200,000 US$18,200,000 709% 70.9%
enterprise restaurants and retails in 18,200,000% 18,200,000%7
hEERALE Beiing, the PRC
RERES RINE(EEE
REE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1 FEMELR (@)

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 MR/ BEHRR TEEH BRfkA/ KEEZ
ERRRRR L (EALECS RBRxES
2012 211 2012 2011
cE-cf - ZE-C IE-F
(c) Property development
UEL
Huzhou Nanun International Building ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Development and operation of ~ US$48,000,000 US$48,000,000 100% 100%
Market Center Company Limited#2  enterprise abulding materials centre ~~ 48,000,000%7¢ 48,000,000
MNERERRNHARA A nENEEALE inHuzhou, the PRC
REBIERR
SEREHRD
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Sino-foreign equity joint Real estate development RMB2,300,000,000  RMB1,300,004,573 60% 60%
Development Company Limited=  venture inHongkou Districtin -~ AR#2,300,000,000% AX1,3000045737
HERARNEREERAR hERIEERE Shanghal, the PRC
IEEEmIOE
FERIE
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment - PRC Limited liability company Real estate development in RMBA500,000,000 RMB500,000,000 5% 175%™
Company Limited:# hEERRRAT Nankai District in Tianjin, - A E500,000,0007%  A%7%500,000,0007C
REMEAERRERRAR the PRC
MEXETRRE
FRRIE
Tianjin Renai Properties Development  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development HK$452,200,000 HK$452,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited# enterprise in Tuanbo Lake of 452,200,000 452,200,000 70
REMCREFRRERAR hENEEE O Jinhai County in Tianjin,
the PRC
RERRTHEEE Y
FERNE
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development HK$690,000,000 HK$690,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* enterprise in Tianjin, the PRC 690,000,007 690,000,000
REMhAEEREARAR nENEEALE MERETRERE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENEBRRE#)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 MR/ BEHRR TEEH BRfkA/ KEEZ
EEREEDY L (EALECS RBRxES
2012 211 2012 2011
E-CF E-fF  Z§-C “2—-F
(c) Property development (continued)
NEYR(E)
SEEX(RR)ERAR PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development at HK$928,000,000 HK$928,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Ningbo Road in Heping 928,000,0007% 928,000,000 7
hESERALE Distrct in Shenyang, the
PRC
RRERBTATEERR
FERNE
FARA(IF)NELERBAT  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate developmentin ~ RMB260,000,000  RMB260,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Jiangmen, the PRC AR%260,000,0007  AK 260,000,000

PENEEALR RAEIFMARRILE

(d) Infrastructure and alternative energy

ERRERHR
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 HK$100,000,000 46.55% 46.55%
Company Limited# joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000 7% 100,000,000
FHEAER (L) ERAA PAPARELE RMhEREIER
EVEEE
Chongaing Huangiu Petrochemical  PRC Limited liability Investment in ethanol energy ~ RMB180,470,000  RMB180,470,000 70.65% 70.65%
Company Limited+#3 company busingss in Chongging, ~ AR¥180,470,000%  AK%180,470,0007C
ERBRAIERAFH hEERELAF the PRC. The business is
currently ceased.
RAEERTRE
LEHRER
HERERL
HKC (Guilin) Expressway Company ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Construction and operation RMB543,900,000  RMB543,900,000 100% 100%
Limited-# enterprise ofatoll roadin Guiln, ~ AR#543,900,0007  AR%543,900,0007
ENERRRARARAT PENEEALR the PRC on a Buld-

Operate-Transfer contract

PERE-B-EBARE
BEREEL PEARMTR
NS
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1
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Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1 FEMELR (@)

Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
2 MR/ BEHRR TERR BRfkA/ KEEZ
ERRRRR Rifimas RBRxES
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF “F-k —E-C 5-F
(d) Infrastructure and alternative energy
(continued)
ERRERHRH)
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 HK$150,100,000 46.92% 46.92%
Company Limited:" joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000 7 150,100,000
ERRNEE(BR)ERAA nE AR ERE MBERTER
EVEEE!
EENERNTIEARAERAA®  PRC Sino-foreign equity  Wind Power projectin RMB166,480,000  RMB166,480,000 54.13% 54.13%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner AR%166,480,0007c  AR166,480,0007C
mERNA B E Mongolia, the PRC
RERFANT IR
EVEEE!
BRAERNTIEERERAAY  PRC Sino-foreign equity  Wind Power project in RMB172,526500  RMB172,526,500 54.13% 54.13%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner AR®172526,5007  AR%172,526,5007C
mERNA B E Mongolia, the PRC
RERFANT IR
EVEEE!
(e)  Trading/property services
85/ 0%H%
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Trading on construction 15585,500,000 US$85,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited:* enterprise materials 85,500,000% 7 85,500,000
FRRR(PE) IEARAA nENEEELE HER LA
Shenzhen Kumagai Property PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company Limited+ joint venture management service 60,000,007 60,000,000/ 70
MIEANZERERAR nEARARE T
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

2 Principal associated companies 2 FEBEAT
Issued share Place of Group’s effective
Name capitaliregistered capital incorporation/operation equity interest
BRfTkE/ AeL/ A58
£ RER ggng LLey i
2012 2011 2012 2011
. 2 I8-zf %

(@)  Property

n¥
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
BARZSTERARAA 10000000 100000007 &%/

(b)  Alternative energy
BRER
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited# RMB589,620,000  RMB589,620,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%
REER(HR ANEERRAR AR¥5806200007T  AK589,620,000
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited+* RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%
BERERRNEE (R BRAR AERH545,640,0007T AR%545,640000T FRE
Linyi National Environmental New Energy Company Limited* RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%
R RER AT ARH100,000000  AR%1000000007 FRE
CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited** RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000 PRC 16.24% 16.24%
PEE RN BE (R ) BR A AR%323,260,0007T AR%323,260,0000 EL
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)
FTEWBLR  BELRREE QR (HE)

200

Principal jointly controlled entities 3 EEEEARAH
Form of business Place of
structure/Kind of establishment/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity operation equity interest
EBREBER B,/ AEEZ
£ EEERER e 1t B ERRAER
2012 2011
=F-=F T F
Property development
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Wholly foreign-owned PRC 25% 25%
Estate Company Limited+#" enterprise H
EESBILINEE XEBR AR HNEIBE RS
Notes: Bt :

O Unofficial English transliterations or translation for identification
purposes only

+ Interest held by subsidiaries
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
2 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on the

Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987.

> The companies are considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group from the accounting perspective, as the 25%
shareholders of such companies are not entitled to receive any
future dividends and sharing of residual interest.

Certain principal subsidiaries and associated companies
were disposed of during 2012 and 2011. For details,
please refer to Note 22, Note 41(b) and Note 42(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Five-Year Financial Summary

> 2|
hFERBEREE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f ZEZ——% ZZ-ZF ZIZTHhF ZTIN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BHEER BEATL BEATL BEATL BEATL
Consolidated income statement GEBEEX
Revenue rzs 329 696 499 378 295
Profit/(loss) before income tax FiSTiATE T,/ (E518) 154 310 (414) 2,036 (2,921)
Income tax (expense)/credit FBR(ZH)#He (42) (120) 18 (334) 111
Profit/(loss) for the year AFEEEF/(FHE) 112 190 (396) 1,702 (2,810)
Non-controlling interests IR 9 51 102 (246) 164
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AArERFEB ARG
holders of the Company wA, (E8) 103 241 (294) 1,456 (2,646)
Dividends Ba 220 217 = = 122
Consolidated balance sheet GEEESER
Net current assets MBEEFE 1,375 2,014 1,993 1,608 1,833
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,570 16,393 16,036 16,562 14,022
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3,232) (4,127) (4,384) (4,766) (4,273)
Net assets including BEFE
non-controlling interests (BIiEFEERER) 14,713 14,280 13,645 13,404 11,582
Share capital R 112 108 104 94 83
Reserves B 12,351 12,380 12,398 12,336 10,756
Non-controlling interests R IER 2,250 1,792 1,143 974 743
Total equity EReE 14,713 14,280 13,645 13,404 11,582
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-—f —T——F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTINF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Earnings/(loss) per share* SREF,(EHR)
— basic &K 0.009 0.023 (0.028) 0.15 (0.27)
— diluted — 8 0.009 0.021 (0.029) 0.14 (0.27)
Dividend per share FRARE
- attributable to the year —FEEI 0.020 0.020 = = 0.015
Return on total equity T 2 4R %8 o] 3 2K 0.8% 1.3% (2.9%) 12.7% (24.3%)
Note: P EE -

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as a

percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

b Adjusted for bonus issue approved in 2009 and 2010

BB AN °

BREABELBRE/AEZRTEEREBFEFR

¢ BRSTEAER-T-TEGUEBTAR
AR

BRERER)EBRAF
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FEYR-—EX
(as at the date of the annual report)

(RARFHAM)

Investment properties — Completed

Schedule of Principal Properties

REWFE-BxK

(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Share- GFA GFA Term of
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) lease
(K#)
(R#) EfEm
EEHARR BEE
i 24 ER:gE=S BR#E (FHK) (EF53K) HEH
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces and Commercial 100% 31,000 31,000 Medium
1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, [GES #
Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre,
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luchu, Shenzhen,
the PRC
{2 A R BZR 31| T 78 A [ %% F8 3R B 500255
EHEESMWEEEF ONEYES  EREESR
118 - 2B RS8EHAE
Various units for restaurants and retails, Commercial 70.9% 17,100 12,100 Medium
No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, [EES /2R
Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC
iz 7 FR Bk 7 T BRI S AT P BR R4 235% HY
ZAERBERRTEN BN
Various units for retails in Zone B & C, Commercial 100% 96,600 96,600 Medium
Construction Materials Market, [EES /2R
Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
LR BT T & N T F S A E R 2 R
R REME EHBE RCREH
ZAERTEMNEAL
139,700
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Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)
FEME-ERGE)
(as at the date of the annual report)

(RARFHAEM)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(a) For sale purpose

BRRTUR
(a) fEEEERE

(Approx.)  (Approx)  (Approx.)

Intended Share- Stage of Expected year Site area GFA  Attributable
Location use holding completion  of completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  GFA (sq.m.)
(K#)
(K#) (K&) EfhEE
BEER  BEAER #ER
e RERZ RE ERKER RAERED (FAK) (FHK) (FAK)
A parcel of land along the Residential 100% Planning - 804,000 836,000 836,000
eastern shore of Tuanbo Lake, E stage
Jinhai County, Tianjin, the PRC RE&R
NNGEREINE et
ERAARD N —ELH
A parcel of land located at south Residential 75%  Construction 2013 - 2014 33,000 128,000 96,000
of Hongqi South Road, F=x stage “E-ZfZ
Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC TiERER e ki3
frp e B K2 i P
A EEz — B
Three parcels of land located Residential and 100% Construction 2013 - 2017 67,000 266,000 266,000
at Ningbo Road, retail stage and —2-=%%
Heping District, Shenyang, the PRC ~ FERZTE Planning “EtF
ARAELEG AT E stage
ERB =R IRERR
REER
A parcel of land located at Residential and 100%  Construction 2013 -2015 95,000 189,000 189,000
north of Hong Kong-Macau Pier, commercial stage and =%
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province, ~ EEREE Planning ZZ-h%
the PRC stage
fir e B R &L P TRERR
AREEI Az — R REER
1,387,000
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Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)

FEMPE-BERE)
(as at the date of the annual report)

(RARFHAEM)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued) BRPYIE @)
(b) For investment purpose (b) EREARZE
(Approx.) (Approx.) (Approx.)
Intended Share- Stage of Expected year Site area GFA  Attributable
Location use holding completion  of completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  GFA(sq.m.)
(K#)
(K#) (K&) EERE
‘ \ HEER  SEAER SER
ik RERS hiE ZERER REEREH (FHK) (FHK) (FEX)
A parcel of land located Office, hotel 25% Construction In 2015 57,000 259,000 64,750
in the north side of the _and retail inprogress  MWZE—HF
International Passenger BAZE R T2
Transportation Terminal of REE
Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC
R Al LTI A EEREED L
Lz —tE T
A parcel of land located at Lot 108, Office and 60% Construction In 2016 29,000 161,000 96,600
No. 4, Sichuan North Road, _commercial inprogress  MZE—NE
Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC ~ HAZREE T
fir B L AT O [ 113t B
P55 7571085 iR
161,350
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BEHERERZME
(Approx.) (Approx.) (Approx.)
Intended Share- Site area GFA Attributable
Location use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.)
(R#4)
(K#H) (K#4) EiEE
\ BEER EEAEE BER
2 BRERZ i #E (FE7HXK) (FE7HXK) (E7HXK)
The shopping mall and all car parking spaces, Commercial 100% 5,623 6,300 6,300
South Ocean Centre, Dongmen Road Central, =
Shenzhen, the PRC i
iz 7 R BRI 3R PIAp B A R Y
BYEERIERES
Various units for retails in Zone B & C, Commercial 100% 26,000 51,000 51,000
Construction Materials Market, [EES
Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R BT & MM T RS R
RE R IR BE RCEH)
ZEERTEREL
Various residential units in Tianjin Eka Garden, Residential 75% 21,000 22,000 16,500
South of Honggi South Road, Nanki District, F=E
Tianjin, the PRC
AR EXZEHE -
A THE R ARRERER 2 2 EETEL
73,800
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